HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Board of Directors Meeting

June 2016

Mad River Slough Crossing



Minutes



PAGE NO. /.

secTion V

o o

e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7™ Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

April 12, 2016

. OATH OF OFFICE

President Hecathorn conducted the swearing in of Director Neal Latt who was appointed on March
10" to fill the Division 1 vacancy. The Board welcomed Director Latt.

. ROLL CALL

President Hecathorn called the meeting to order at 9:03 am. Director Rupp conducted the roll call.
Directors Hecathorn, Laird, Latt, Rupp and Woo were present. General Manager Paul Helliker,
Business Manager John Friedenbach and Board Secretary Sherrie Sobol were also present. Susan
O’Gorman of GHD was present for a portion of the meeting.

. FLAG SALUTE

President Hecathorn led the flag salute.

. ACCEPT AGENDA

On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Laird, the Board voted 5-0 to accept the agenda.

. MINUTES

On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the Minutes
of February 29 and March 9 Special Meetings. Directors Woo and Laird requested changes to clarify
the minutes of the March 10 Regular Meeting. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director
Laird, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the amended minutes for the March 10 meeting,.

. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Dave Feral congratulated Director Latt on his appointment.

. CONSENT AGENDA

On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the Consent
Agenda.

. CORRESPONDENCE

There was no correspondence to discuss.

CONTINUING BUSINESS

1. PG&E power sales contracts
As reported last month, JTN successfully negotiated a Small Generator Interconnection
Agreement (SGIA). The Board authorized approval of the SGIA agreement. The next item to
discuss is the ReMAT contract. Mr. Helliker discussed the few parameters that can be negotiated
in the ReMAT contract (contract capacity - kW, contract amount — kWh per year and guaranteed
energy production - % of contract amount.) He stated he initially planned to recommend the
Board proceed with the ReMAT contract with the contract parameters recommended in the staff
report and secure current pricing. However, based on HBMWD and GHD staff review of
potential capital investments at the hydro plant, Mr. Helliker stated that the District had secured
the services of a consultant with expertise in the operations of hydro plants, Mark Trawick of
RTA Construction, to assess the quality and status of the hydro plant facilities. In his initial
conversation with Dale Davidsen, Mr. Trawick indicated there might be potential to increase




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICIECTION Lz, PAGE NO.
828 7 Street, Eureka )

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

April 12,2016

production by 20% with installation of new generators and turbine runners. Mr. Helliker stated
that if production can be increased at a low investment, the District should reconsider the
numbers used for the ReMAT contract. Given this new information, Mr. Helliker recommended
no decisions be made regarding ReMAT until the Facility Analysis for Operational Life
Expectancy and Current Mechanical Condition Opinion is received. The Directors asked several
questions about the ReMAT contract and the CCA. Director Rupp confirmed that the Board
would need to approve the ReMAT contract with PG&E before Mr. Helliker signed it. Mr.

Helliker concurred and stated the contract would likely be ready for approval at the July meeting.

He added that if the timing did not work with the regular meeting, he would convene a Special
Board Meeting, to review and approve the contract.

Water Conservation Regulations

On April 20, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) will hold a workshop on
potential changes to the emergency drought conservation regulations. Mr. Helliker stated the
District would prepare a joint letter with our Municipal Customer to reiterate the fact that in
Humboldt County, we are not experiencing drought conditions and so emergency conservation
regulations are not necessary. Del Norte, Marin and Sonoma agencies will also join us in
advocating for rescission of the drought emergency conservation regulations since their
reservoirs are either full or are higher than average. During a conference call with the
SWRCB in March, their staff discussed some potential long-term programs/authorities they
would like to create. The state would like all agencies to implement the Statewide Emergency
Drought Regulations regardless of local conditions and mandate the retrofit of landscapes to
meet the latest standards that apply to new landscapes. ACWA does not agree with this
approach and is asking member agencies to adopt a resolution stating this. In order to be
prepared to respond to any proposed legislation, staff recommends the Board approve
Resolution 2016-3 Potential Legislation Concerning Water Conservation Regulatory Programs.
The Board discussed the resolution and suggested a few changes. On motion by Director
Laird, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to adopt Resolution
2016-03 Potential Legislation Concerning Water Conservation Regulatory Programs.

Update on Cannabis activities

Mr. Feral provided an update on the cannabis compliance workshops organized by Mad River
Alliance and its partners. The workshops include presentations from the Regional Water
Quality Control Board, California Department of Fish and Wildlife, CalFire, and other
industry specialists that provide information on regulatory requirements, compliance
mechanisms and best management practices. The first meeting was in Blue Lake. They
anticipated around twenty-five attendees and over 75 attendees showed up! The workshop at
the Mateel Community Center drew in over 150 attendees. A total of six workshops are
scheduled and the feedback from the first few workshops has been very positive. Mr, Feral
anticipates about 300 attendees at the Eureka workshop. Attendees receive a Compliance
Workbook which he shared with the Board. He thanked the Board for their financial
assistance in producing the workbook and supporting efforts to bring growers into
compliance, thus protecting the watershed and environment. Mr. Feral stated that County
Board of Supervisors Fennell, Sundberg, and Bohn were also present at the workshops in their
respective Districts and discussed the Humboldt County Ordinance on cannabis.

s g e i



SECTION_])___PAGENO.nT

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

April 12, 2016

4. Mad River Cleanup
Mr. Feral provided information on the upcoming Mad River Clean Up day on April 23. The
Mad River Alliance is again sponsoring the event and this year they are teaming up with New
Directions. They also received funding from the Blue Lake Rancheria. He encouraged the
Board to share the information and attend the event. The Board thanked Mr. Feral for all his
work with the Mad River.

5. Urban Water Management Plan
Mr. Friedenbach shared information on the Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). The
District is currently updating its plan. The purpose of the plan is to support long-term resource
planning and ensure adequate water supply availability to meet existing and future water
demands. State law requires the submittal of an updated plan to the Department of Water
Resources (DWR) every five years and they review them to ensure it meets the requirements
identified in the UWMP Act. In order to be eligible for a state water loan or grant, water
agencies are required to have a UWMP that is deemed “complete” by the DWR. Without a
“complete” UWMP, the District would not be eligible for Prop. 84 grants or other state
funding. In 2010, the District had Kennedy Jenks Consultants (KJC) provide a review of the
UWMP prior to submittal to the DWR. The review helped ensure the 2010 UWMP was
approved by DWR without additional modification. The District will again use the services of
KIC for review. Staff will submit the final draft of the UWMP to the Board for review prior to
conducting the Public Hearing and adoption of the plan. The Public Hearing is scheduled for
the June 2016 meeting and the Board will consider adoption of the plan after the Hearing.

6. Water Resource Planning

Local

Mr. Helliker stated he met with staff from Rio Dell, MCSD, HCSD, Trinidad and Trinidad
Rancheria to organize a project proposal for the State Revolving Loan funds to conduct the next
level of planning and design for expansion of the transmission system north and south to their
areas. The Trinidad Rancheria and the City of Rio Dell agreed to be funding applicants, given
their status as economically disadvantaged communities. The District will explore the option of
serving as grant administrator. GHD volunteered to put together a proposal free of charge. The
Board acknowledged the generosity of GHD.

Transport
Mr. Helliker reported Bob Simpson met with him regarding a project idea involving water sales.

There is nothing concrete yet and Mr. Simpson is in the inquiry phase. Director Rupp stated the
Board needs to select a new Transport Comumittee member next month. He suggested President
Hecathorn consider being on the committee. Staff stated the item will be on the May agenda.

Instream Flow

Mr. Helliker shared the feedback received from the Wildlife Conservation Board grant manager as
to why our grant application was denied. The proposal was rated highly on most aspects but
comments from CDFW regional staff caused it to be rated too low to fund. Assertions by CDFW
staff were that we don’t need an estuary study since there is a lot of information upstream that can
be extrapolated to the estuary and we don’t need to do anything other than mimic “natural” flows.



SECTION PAGENO. U
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

April 12, 2016

Mr. Helliker shared with the grant manager the results of a feasibility study we did in collaboration
with CDFW and other resource agencies. The result of the study was the recommendation that,
because the estuary has been studied so little, we focus our work on analyzing flows and habitat
there to determine the benefits of streamflow enhancement . The grant manager suggested the
District resubmit the grant application and include the feasibility study we did.

The Instream Flow committee met to discuss the status of work in this area. They recommended
staff review the process for streamflow dedication in Section 1707 of the Water Code and inform
the Board on how the District could proceed directly to do such a dedication.

J. NEW BUSINESS

CLOSED SESSION- this will be the last item on the agenda

Closed session began at 2:20 pm. The Board returned to open session at 3:12 pm. President
Hecathorn requested Mr. Helliker to prepare an amendment to Section 4 of his contract and bring it
back next month for review.

K. REPORTS (from Staff)

1. Engineering

Ranney Collector 1 Lateral Replacement Project (partially funded by Prop 84 NCIRWMP grant)
Ms. O’Gorman stated the contractor submitted the work schedule for the project. The new project
completion date is December 14, 2016. She stated staff will bring back a no cost change order to
reflect the date change.

Blue Lake-FG CSD Water Line Replacement over Mad River (funded by Prop 84

The District requested GHD assess two alternatives for the existing crossing to supply
domestic water across the Mad River to the communities of Fieldbrook, Glendale and Blue
Lake. The alternatives are Horizontal Directional Drilling under the river or a Suspended
Waterline over the river. GHD recommends the Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD)
option. This is based on several key factors, including several environmental investigations
and geotechnical investigations. Ms. O’Gorman stated this option is less expensive, results
in less environmental impact, will not affect the archeological cultural site, and would
require reduced maintenance costs. If the Board concurs with the recommendation, the next
step is to complete the NEPA process, then proceed with the design phase. Director Laird
was concerned that choosing an option today would preclude a pedestrian crossing without
the proponents of the Annie and Mary Trail being aware of a decision. The Board agreed to
postpone a-de A he-proje et etire HIFE

P Fath! @ o on o ' = &
o Vv

FEFST s RO a old aboy e-optionidentified bvGHD asthemo
effeetive-their decision on whether to proceed with an underwater tunnel river crossing
versus a bridge until the May meeting, so stakeholders interested in establishing the “Annie
and Mary” trail could be notified of the Board’s intent to make a decision regarding the type

of river crossing it would pursue.

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant (HMG) and Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant (PDMG) Submittals
Mr. Friedenbach stated the HMG is for California projects only and this funding cycle has more
grant funding available than previous years. The PDMG is open to projects nationwide. The




SECTION 7 PAGE NO. 5
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ————

828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

April 12, 2016

District is applying for HMG funding for the Surge Tower and 12Kv Switchgear projects.
Funding for the 12Kv Switchgear is also being pursued under the PDMG.

Potential Exposure of Pipeline on New Navy Base Road

Ms. O’Gorman stated additional erosion is going on and causing exposure of the District pipeline
on New Navy Base Road. Pat Kaspari and District staff met with the County, Coast Guard and
PG&E to discuss this as it affects their infrastructure as well. The Coastal Commission must
approve any work prior to commencing repairs. Staff is coordinating a meeting with above
mentioned agencies and the Coastal Commission to discuss options. Director Laird recommended
the District pursue a Prop 1 grant to create a “living shoreline” as a form of protection for our

waterline in lieu of hardening the shoreline.

Coonrod/Hog Island Oyster/Wayne Bare developments

Mr. Friedenbach reported that he and Mr. Davidsen met with Mr. Coonrod and the City of Arcata
to discuss his plans. Mr. Coonrod was amenable to changing his lot design so as not to encroach
on the District pipeline. The District agreed to change its floating easement to a fixed easement.
Mr. Friedenbach will share Mr. Coonrod’s new design with the Board once it is available.

2. Financial

Financial Report

Director Rupp provided the March financial report. President Hecathorn reviewed the bills and
stated everything was okay. Director Latt noted that year to date maintenance costs appeared to
be low. Mr. Davidsen replied that several expensive projects are coming up and the budgeted
money will be spent. Director Rupp added that this is a typical budget scenario. Much of the
work is done in-house and May and June are very busy project months.

On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the
March 2016 financial statement & vendor detail report in the amount of $203,269.04.

CalOES Compliance Review Report re: Techite

Mr. Friedenbach shared that last month, as part of the audit statement, the auditors highlighted a
footnote in their statement regarding the Techite Project. $378,000 was potentially at risk of not
being funded, based on a compliance field review in 2012. The District responded to the field
review with a corrective action plan. The letter received from CalOES acknowledges receipt of
the plan and they have accepted it with no further action required. This is good news and
repayment of funds is not required.

Surplus Equipment

Mr. Friedenbach stated the District is requesting approval to surplus a GIS computer and 2
monitors at the Eureka office. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Woo, the
Board voted 5-0 surplus the items.

3. Operations



P e g

D paceno. o

828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

April 12, 2016

Mr. Davidsen provided the April Operational Report. He noted three employees took their
Distribution Certification exams and all felt they were successful. He noted that the District has
been working on getting a Treatment Certification (T-3) for one of the employees and there are
now changes in the process which takes a person much longer to achieve certification. He shared
the information since this will affect staffing and may result in more overtime hours for staff.
Additionally, one of the Maintenance Mechanics announced his retirement on April 1%, with
April 15" being his last day. Mr. Davidsen noted he has already started the process to fill the
position.

There is new transformer on Collector 2 and Mr. Davidsen recommends the Board consider

declaring the old transformer surplus. On motion by Director Laird, seconded by Director Woo,
the Board voted 5-0 to declare the old transformer surplus.

L. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION

1. General
Director Rupp inquired if Mr. Helliker had seen information on the California Water Summit that
takes place Junel-3. Mr. Helliker stated he had not but would look into it.

President Hecathorn reported she attended the North Coast ASCE Report Card announcement
regarding the Drinking Water Infrastructure. The event took place at the District’s Essex Facility.
A grade of B was received which was good. She noted that several agencies were in attendance
however, there was not much press to cover the event.

Mr. Friedenbach stated that last year, the Board authorized a new position for the Eureka Office,
a Customer Service and Accounting Assistant. Corey Borghino was hired to fill this position and
is doing a good job. Ms. Borghino will eventually be able to back up Becky in Accounting and
Human Resources. He added that it will take some time to transfer Becky’s extensive
knowledge.

2. ACWA —JPIA
Director Rupp attended a JPIA meeting. The Liability Committee met and had good news-
claims were going down. The Worker’s Comp Committee met and it looks like rates will be
dropping approximately 10 percent. Director Rupp shared that as part of the JPIA Commitment
to Excellence program, staff will come to your agency and do a “friendly audit” to help ensure
best practices. He also noted that JPIA sent a survey out and would like feedback. Mr.
Friedenbach stated District staff received and responded to the survey.

3. ACWA
Mr. Helliker discussed the April ACWA Update on Priority Issues and provided updates on
several of them.

Director Woo stated as a new member to the Region 1 Board she is still on a learning curve. She
shared her notes from the meeting and noted the next meeting will be ACWA Conference.



828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

April 12, 2016

4. Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: RCEA, RREDC, LAFCo
RCEA
Director Woo attended the RCEA meeting. She stated there were numerous members of the
public in attendance to hear about the CCA. Many were concerned about the portfolio mix,
however, that was not up for discussion at that point. The purpose of the meeting was to accept a
proposal for CCA Development and Operational Services. She acknowledged that Mr. Helliker
was on the committee reviewing the request for proposals and was a great asset given his
knowledge and prior experience with Marin CCA. The RCEA Board concurred with the
committee recommendation and selected The Energy Authority (TEA). She noted that TEA
stood out above the others with a proven success record over several years. She added that one of
the companies only had one-year experience and another had mere months.

RREDC

Director Rupp attended the RREDC meeting. He shared that Rob Holmlund, Director of
Development Services provided a City of Eureka Economic Development Update, the Top 50
Projects. The presentation was very good and there is a lot going on. RREDC is in the process of
entering into an agreement with EDA to receive another $1 million in Revolving Loan Funds.
Director Rupp noted this reflects very well on RREDC,

LAFCo

Director Rupp stated he served the last two years on LAFCo and would like to continue for the
next four-year term and would appreciate the District’s vote. On motion by Director Woo,
seconded by Director Laird, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the vote for Director Rupp as the
Special District member on LAFCo.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 3:14 pm.

Attest:

Barbara Hecathorn, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



SECTION_D PAGE NO._ELM

e e s

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

BAY

828 7" Street, Eureka :?%:\'N(n
%Eé‘r a‘sé;E}
Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors %&:c///

May 12, 2016

. ROLL CALL

President Hecathorn called the meeting to order at 9:00 am. Director Rupp conducted the roll call.
Directors Hecathorn, Laird, Latt, Rupp and Woo were present. General Manager Paul Helliker,
Superintendent Dale Davidsen, Business Manager John Friedenbach, and Board Secretary Sherrie
Sobol were also present. Pat Kaspari and John Winzler of GHD were present for a portion of the
meeting.

. FLAG SALUTE

President Hecathorn led the flag salute.

. ACCEPT AGENDA

On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to accept the agenda.

. MINUTES

Director Laird requested several changes to the minutes. Director Rupp suggested he provide the
revised wording and the Minutes of April 12, 2016 Regular Meeting be brought back next month for
approval. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Laird, the Board voted 5-0 to bring the
minutes back with changes for approval next month.

. PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment was received.

CONSENT AGENDA

Directors Woo and Laird requested Item 1 be pulled.

On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the Consent
Agenda less Item 1.

Letter from CalFire re: Notice of Inspection

Mr. Rhett Imperiale of Cal Fire conducted a visual assessment of the District property around Ruth
Lake. He noted the area exhibited a fairly significant amount of dead, dying and diseased trees that
could be harvested under this exemption. Director Woo inquired if the District was going to do
anything with the trees noted. Mr. Helliker stated the District can use the exemption to harvest the
dead, dying and diseased trees as noted by Mr. Imperiale. Mr. Davidsen stated the leaseholders have
been doing this work for several years. They request permission to remove the dead, dying and/or
diseased trees off their lease site and the District grants permission to do so using the exemption.
Director Laird stated he would like it on record that he does not support cutting trees just because
they are dead, dying or diseased. Many of these provide habitat and other benefits for wildlife. Trees
should be removed if they pose a threat to structures. He suggested the District have a Timber
Management Plan. Director Rupp concurred and suggested the District inform the leaseholders that
they are responsible for trees on their lease site. President Hecathorn believes the District should
approach this as a joint responsibility. Director Latt suggested in the meantime, only trees that pose
that a threat to life or property be removed. Mr. Helliker stated staff will work on a Timber
Management Plan.

On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board voted 5-0 to approve Consent
Ttem 1.



2 PAGE oS

£ R
i‘r( o S
Xl i =
%i ESTY  Yiess /-
i\ A
\ S,
& ‘;«‘ﬁ:.
T

o

-]

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICTSECTIO]
828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

G. CORRESPONDENCE

Letter requesting support for Samoa Peninsula CSD

Mr. Helliker discussed the letter from the Samoa Peninsula Fire District requesting a letter of support
for the formation of a Community Services District for the Samoa Peninsula. Mr. Helliker stated the
Samoa Peninsula Fire District is in the process of finalizing an application to the LAFCo, The
application involves a reorganization for a new district formation concurrently with the dissolution of
the existing Samoa Peninsula Fire District. When LAFCo reviews the application, they will be
looking for support from a broad range of stakeholders, and are thus requesting a letter of support.
Mr. Helliker added they were appreciative the District has a rate structure in place going forward the
next five years. This helps them figure out a cost foundation. He also stated in regards to the
infrastructure, most of it is already depreciated with the exception of the Techite line. A map
showing the Samoa PFD reorganization to a CSD outlined the current Samoa PFD boundary and a
section of Samoa that is shown as “possible expansion area”. Director Laird inquired why a portion
of Samoa was being left out. Director Rupp stated the District should recoup any costs related to the
Techite that were not covered by the grant. Both he and Director Laird expressed concerns about
writing a letter of support if the boundaries might change. Director Latt initially suggested a
conditional letter of support, then suggested staff call and find out why the town of Samoa is not
inchaded. Once more information is available, then send a letter. Given the number of unanswered
questions, Mr. Helliker suggested the item come back for discussion in June. In the meantime, he
will try to get more information about the boundaries. The Board concurred.

H. CONTINUING BUSINESS

1. Water Conservation Regulations
Mr. Helliker attended the April 20 State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) meeting. He
and representatives from other water agencies throughout the state testified at that meeting they are
not experiencing drought conditions in their water supplies in 2016, and that emergency
conservation regulations should be rescinded. Mr. Helliker shared that the SWRCB draft
regulations just came out on May 9. They specify that we calculate the supplies available under
precipitation conditions in 2013-15 and compare that to demand in 2013 and 2014, and identify
any shortfalls. That shortfall will be the new conservation standard in effect through January
2017. We can demonstrate that we have plenty of supply available, and the conservation
requirements should be zero.

Mr. Helliker also discussed the Governor’s Executive Order that also came out on May 9". He
noted that Item 6 under Eliminate Water Waste states “ The Water Board and the Department
shall direct urban and agricultural water suppliers to accelerate their data collection, improve
water system management, and prioritize capital projects to reduce waste.” He did not agree with
being forced to prioritize capital improvement projects that reduce waste, especially given our
water supply and lack of drought conditions. Director Laird stated the Executive Order is biased
in that 10 of 13 directives are aimed at urban water uses and only three towards agriculture. Mr.
Helliker added there is nothing directed to commercial/industrial users. The focus is on lawns
that only account for 5% of the state use.

2. Water Resource Planning

Local Sales
Mr. Helliker reported that GHD is taking the lead in putting together a proposal for funding of
designs and analysis of the pipeline extensions to the north and south. They are collecting



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7™ Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

information for the proposal and are doing this at no cost to the District. Mr. Helliker stated he
will follow up with Westhaven and the City of Trinidad to see if they are interested in the project.

Transport
Director Rupp suggested President Hecathorn be on the Transport Committee and she agreed. On

motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Latt, the Board voted 5-0 to select President
Hecathorn as the new Transport Committee member. Staff was directed to schedule a Transport
Committee meeting.

Instream Flow

Last month, Mr. Helliker shared feedback from the Wildlife Conservation Board (WCB) as to why
the grant application was denied. The proposal was rated high on most aspects but comments from
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) caused it to be rated too low to fund.
CDFW staff stated an estuary study was not needed. Mr. Helliker stated he shared the letter from
the WCB stating this with Tony LaBanca, the Coastal Fisheries Program Manager for CDFW.
Director Laird stated it would be good if Mr. LaBanca would confirm in writing that it is not
necessary to conduct additional studies.

Local Coastal Dependent-Interim Use Local Coastal Program Amendment

Mr. Helliker shared information on an item that went before the Humboldt County Planning
Commission. A Public Hearing was held to discuss an Interim Use Local Coastal
Amendment that would allow tenants to use the coastal dependent industrial zone for a limited
time, even if the business is not coastal dependent. The Harbor District, County, and City of
Eureka proposed an interim use term of seven years. The Planning Commission voted against
the Interim Use amendment. Mr. Helliker inquired if the District should send a letter of
support to the County Board of Supervisors supporting the interim use? Director Rupp stated
the District’s purview is water and inquired if the District should get involved in a land use
battle? Director Woo stated the District should be involved to the extent that we have a water
system available for an industrial customer on the peninsula. Director Latt concurred and
noted it is better to support an action that facilitates this rather than inaction. He also added
that he thought the Planning Commission rejected the proposal because they wanted an
interim use term of ten years instead of seven. After additional discussion, the Board
concurred and requested staff draft a letter of support to the County regarding the interim use
based on the District’s water nexus. Mr. Helliker added he will try and get more information
as to why the Planning Commission rejected the interim use proposal.

CLOSED SESSION- Public Employee Performance Evaluation for General Manager
(pursuant to Section 54957(b)(1))
The Board went into closed session at 3:53 pm.

OPEN SESSION

The Board came back into open session at 4:35 pm. President Hecathorn reported they
discussed an amendment to the General Manager’s contract based on his performance review.
In July 2015, District employees received a 2% COLA. Mr. Helliker did not receive an
increase and his salary remained unchanged at $10,200/month. The Board took this into
consideration and on motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Latt, the Board voted 5-
0 to include a salary adjustment for 2015 and 2016, bringing Mr. Helliker’s new monthly
salary to $10,700/month effective July 1, 2016.

PAGE NO.J,O

ey



X%

g

7
(/ X ;a
- Yi )z
EsTY j Yiose )/
./ P
a it

o

PAGE NO. _U,,_....

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICTSECTION,
828 7" Street, Eureka

i

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

I. NEW BUSINESS

1:

Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Fee Grant Program Application

The District applied for and received a $9,150 grant under the 2015/16 Quagga and Zebra Mussel
Infestation Prevention Grant Program. Next steps to receive the grant include approving
Resolution 2016-4 authorizing the District to execute a grant. Director Rupp read the resolution.
On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to
approve Resolution 2016-4 authorizing the Funding Agreement.

July Board meeting

Mr. Helliker stated the next JPTA Executive Leadership Training meeting that Mr. Friedenbach is
attending will be July 14, the day of the Board meeting. Since the final budget
presentation/approval is in July, he recommended the Board consider changing the meeting date
to July 13. The Board concurred.

J. REPORTS (from Staff)

1.

Engineering

Ranney Collector 1 Lateral Replacement Project (partially funded by Prop 84 NCIRWMP grant
Mr. Kaspari stated the work on the perc pond will begin on May 31 and work on the collectors on
June 13", He stated Change order 2 was issued to change the completion date to 12/31/16 and has
no monetary change.

Blue Lake-FG CSD Water Line Replacement over Mad River (funded by Prop 84
NCIRWMP grant and FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant)

As reported last month, GHD assessed two alternatives for a crossing to supply domestic
water across the Mad River to the communities of Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD and Blue Lake.
GHD recommended the Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD) but Director Laird requested
the Board postpone any decision until the following month. He was concerned that choosing
an option would preclude a pedestrian crossing option without the proponents of the Annie &
Mary Trail being aware it was even being considered.

Mr. Kaspari stated GHD still recommends the HDD under river crossing. The cost difference
between the two options is not that significant but the environmental impacts are. By going
under the river, there is no disturbance to the cultural site, no river permits are needed, and the
visual impacts are mitigated. In the event of a flood, the greater impact would be on the
aerial crossing as there would not be any scour effects on the under river crossing. Director
Laird stated an earthquake will happen and there is a risk of an underground pipeline shearing.
Mr. Kaspari responded that an underground crossing will be more resilient than an aerial
crossing in that situation.

Mr. Helliker shared that he spoke with Hank Seemann from Humboldt County Public Works.
Mr. Seemann stated there is no money available to pay for a pedestrian crossing even if the
District were to consider an aerial crossing. It would cost approximately $25,000 to do further
design for the pedestrian crossing, and installing a structure to accommodate a trail would
increase the cost of the pipeline project by tens of thousands of dollars. Additionally, there



SECTION_\)__ PAGE NO. |
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT .
828 7™ Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

are issues with the North Coast Railroad Authority right of way, and the river crossing for the
trail is low on the County’s priority list. The County is working with the City of Blue Lake on
a trail to Glendale and also working with the City of Arcata.

Mr. Helliker also spoke with John Murray and Marcella Clem of HCOAG and they were both
okay with an under river crossing. Mr. Kaspari added that in 2013 when the District first
considered an aerial crossing as a possibility, HCOAG had some money available and chose
not put their funding into consideration of a pedestrian crossing there.

Director Laird commented that he wished the item was listed differently on the agenda. It is
not clear what the Board is deciding, especially to the public. Director Rupp stated it is on the
agenda and the discussion has already been postponed thirty days.

President Hecathomn invited comments from members of the public. Mr. Mike Wilson
addressed the Board. He noted that in regards to the railroad trestle currently supporting the
pipeline, he hasn’t heard from the County if it can be retrofitted. He is aware the County is
working on a trail connecting Blue Lake to Glendale and it’s important. He acknowledged
that conversations have been going on at the staff level regarding a pedestrian crossing,
however, he believes a Board to Board conversation needs to occur. He would like the District
to seek input from the County Board of Supervisors as to whether or not they would like to
partner with the District on retrofitting an aerial crossing with a pedestrian /bike path over the
Mad River. Mr. Kaspari noted the County did do a study on the costs to retrofit the railroad
trestle and determined it was not feasible.

Supervisor Mark Lovelace addressed the Board also. He too would like to see the topic come
before the Board of Supervisors. He acknowledged it would be expensive to include a retrofit
for a pedestrian or bike river crossing, however, it is an important effort for the County.
Additional discussion at the Board level would be valuable to have. He stated he would like
the Board to delay their decision until the Board of Supervisors could be apprised and hear
from their staff.

Mr. Helliker stated he understands that discussions with the County staff have been going on
since 2012. He inquired why it has not previously been on the Board of Supervisors agenda.
Mr. Wilson stated for whatever reason, County staff never moved the issue up to the Board of
Supervisor level. Supervisor Lovelace made it clear he did not mean to imply the District was
in any way responsible for getting the item on the Board of Supervisors agenda. He would
like to hear from County staff regarding time and money impacts. He understands that the
County would incur any additional costs for retrofitting an aerial crossing. He is requesting a
delay so the Board of Supervisors can weigh in on a pedestrian crossing. If the District Board
decides today to go with an under river crossing, that would foreclose the trail option. Mr.
Winzler stated the term “retrofitted” is being tossed around like it’s a simple thing to do. An
aerial crossing can’t be simply retrofitted. It must be designed to be retrofittable. Mr. Kaspari
added that the final design is not completed for either option, however, because the project is
grant funded, grant funds cannot be used to accommodate a pathway. Ifit is designed this
way and not disclosed under CEQA, the repercussions could be loss of funding.

The Board discussed the pros and cons of delaying the decision. After passionate and
somewhat heated discussion and debate, on motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director
Latt, the Board voted 5-0 to delay the decision until the June meeting. Director Laird made a
motion to approve the overhead crossing option. President Hecathorn stated the motion failed
as no second was received.



SECTION_ | ) _ PAGE No.l?___

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIC ZT)
828 7" Street, Eureka / 0

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

Director Laird requested Supervisor Lovelace commit to having the item on their agenda
within the next few weeks. Supervisor Lovelace stated it would be on the May 24 agenda.
Mr. Wilson and Supervisor Lovelace thanked the Board for their time and consideration.

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant and Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant Submittals

Mr. Kaspari stated the 12 kV project is one of the projects forwarded on in the PDM grant. The
PDM grant is a nationwide grant. The District is also submitting the project, along with the Surge
Tower Retrofit to the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program which is statewide. The chances of
getting the Hazard Mitigation Grant are much greater than the PDM. Mr. Helliker stated he met
with the NCRA regarding an expanded easement for the new location of the 12Kv project and
doesn’t anticipate any issues with the easement.

Potential Exposure of Pipeline on New Navy Base Road

As reported last month, a portion of New Navy Base Road was eroded away and caused exposure
of the District pipeline. PG&E and AT&T also have lines there are being exposed as well. Mr.
Kaspari reported that he and staff met with the County, Coast Guard, and PG&E (AT&T declined
to participate) to discuss a consolidated approach to remedy the situation. They met with the
Coastal Commission who indicated a consolidated permit would be appreciated. PG&E needs to
take care of their exposed line immediately and therefore can’t do a consolidated permit. Mr.
Kaspari asked the Coastal Commission if PG&E is required to a Biological Opinion prior to their
repair work, can that Biological Opinion be used for the consolidated permit and it is a possibility.
Mr. Kaspari shared that he asked the Coast Guard to look for funding opportunities but they did
not find any funding sources. The Coast Guard and the County are amenable to being grant
funding partners and will continue to look for opportunities.

Coonrod development

Mr. Friedenbach described the proposed changes Mr. Coonrod was making so as not to encroach
on the District’s easement. With the new plans, only fencing would be over the easement. Mr.
Coonrod stated that as plans progressed, he would provide a copy to the District.

2. Financial

FY 2016/17 budget development schedule
Mr. Friedenbach reviewed the budget development schedule. The Board concurred with the
schedule.

FY 2016/17 Budget

Mr. Friedenbach provided a presentation and the Board discussed two components of the budget:
Service and Supply (S&S) and the Salary and Employee Benefits (SEB). He noted these are still
in draft form and the Board will approve the final budget in July.

Mr. Friedenbach discussed the areas of increase in the S&S budget. Accounting Services will
likely increase. The District could potentially have a new auditor and factors such as PERS,
GASB68 and OPEB will result in additional accounting costs. Insurance costs will rise as JPIA is
projecting increases in property and liability insurance. Other line item increases include
telephone/interet, office maintenance and property tax expenses. Director Latt inquired what
type of costs are in the Miscellaneous Expenses. Mr. Friedenbach stated he would provide
detailed info of that at the June meeting. The total proposed S&S Budget with power costs is
$1,437,300. This is a decrease of $2,100 or - .1% compared to last year.



0t o i e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICEECTIONZ
828 7™ Street, Eureka &

PAGE NO. [q

o
£

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

The SEB discussion focused on four main topics: Cost of Living Allowance, deferred comp,
organizational changes, and healthcare benefits. Each year management consults employees to
find out what is important to them. Feedback from the employees is that they would like a COLA
and increased deferred compensation.

Mr. Friedenbach presented a range of US and Western US CPI’s. Given the CPI indices, he
recommended a 2% COLA. Mr. Helliker concurred and recommended a salary survey for next
budget cycle. The Board seemed comfortable with the COLA recommendation. Director Latt
stated a COLA is good in that employees will see the increase immediately in their paycheck.

Superintendent Davidsen stated COLA’s are important and was appreciative the Board was
supportive of it. He noted that in the last six months, he tried to hire two T-3 Operators. He did
not have any T-3 operators apply. Since the District is the only T4 Plant in the area, he is not
only competing with other local agencies, but those out of the area in order to hire T-3 and 4
operators. President Hecathorn inquired what tools are needed to get the people needed. Perhaps
in the future, the Board could consider a hiring bonus for example. She too agreed a salary
survey would be a way to start. Director Latt asked Mr. Davidsen his thoughts on how to
attract/retain employees. Mr, Davidsen responded the District should be the lead in the wage
arena and continue to provide the good benefits. The District is a good place to work but if the
wage is not there, people will not have the opportunity to know this. The Board stated they would
like to work with him to provide the tools needed to attract and retain employees.

Mr. Friedenbach stated the deferred comp program is a voluntary benefit program and has 100%
participation. This shows that it is a valuable benefit to employees. Based on employee feedback,
staff recommends increasing the match from $25 to $50 and $50 to $100 depending upon the
level of the employee participation.

Mr. Friedenbach stated the District has two electricians on staff. One has provided notice that he
plans to retire next summer in 2017. The electricians deal with a wide diversity of systems,
ranging from millivolts to 12kV. Given the unique combination of electrical skills required,
staff recommends bringing on an electrician trainee to overlap for six months to facilitate
knowledge transfer. It is critical to have the six-month transition period. The Board concurred.

Mr. Friedenbach discussed the health care benefits. The JPIA estimates that premiums will
increased between 8% and 12%. For the 2016/17 budget, an increase of 10% was assumed.
Currently, McKinleyville CSD pays 100% of the premium for active employees and retired
employees. Humboldt CSD pays 100% of the premium for active employees and 50-100%
depending on the hire date. The District has several plans offered ranging from Health Based
Savings Accounts to HMO’s. The District payment towards insurance is tied to the PPO Classic
Family Plan premium. Currently, there is only one plan that exceeds the amount, the CalCare
HMO, and the employees pay the difference. Currently, 67% of employees are on the CalCare
HMO plan. Director Rupp stated JPIA is encouraging members to move to an Account Based
Health Care Plan. Perhaps a two-tier system might be considered in the future with new
employees being offered the Account Based Health Care Plan and existing employees can keep
their plan. He doesn’t want to penalize current employees, but with the rising costs of healthcare,
something needs to change.



828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

Mr. Friedenbach stated the proposed S&EB budget including the 2% COLA, healthcare premium
increase and electrician trainee for 6 months is $3,678,000 or 5.4% more that the 15/16 budget.

Investment Policy

State law requires that the Board consider and confirm the District’s Investment Policy each year.
Mr. Friedenbach stated the Board approved and originally adopted the Investment Policy in 2004
and has re-adopted the policy each year thereafter. The District has three investment objectives
for the funds the District does not need for immediate use. These objectives are: 1) Preserve the
Safety of Principal; 2) Maintain Liquidity, and 3) Achieve a reasonable Rate of Return consistent
with current economic cycles and risk limitations. The policy also specifies the two investment
options the District will utilize are the County Treasury and the State Local Investment Fund
(LAIF). Staff recommends the Board re-adopt the policy. On motion by Director Rupp,
seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to re-adopt the Statement of Investment Policy.

Potential changes to Ordinance 16 and Municipal Contracts

Ordinance 16 establishes rates, charges and conditions of service for water sale to municipal
customers. The terms for water purchases under Ordinance 16 are delineated under contracts
with each of the Districts municipal customers. The current contracts were entered into on July 1,
1999 and are effective for 20 years until June 30, 2019. The contracts contain a provision that the
20 year contract term shall be automatically extended as necessary to correspond to the terms of
the Safe Drinking Water Loan (SRF) that was used to fund the construction of the Turbidity
Reduction Facility. The final payment under the SRF loan will be made on January 1, 2024.

Section 9 of Ordinance 16 contains special provisions to adjust the Moving Five-Year Average
and Peak Rate Allocation for Manila CSD in the event Sierra Pacific Industries (which accounts
for a major amount of their water consumption) were to close or reduce the agency’s total average
use by 25% or more. Sierra Pacific did close its doors and represents serious financial
implications for Manila CSD. The total average loss is 20.16% and is not enough to trigger the
adjustment under Ordinance 16. Manila CSD has requested a meeting to discuss options.

Mr. Friedenbach stated several issues have been identified that should be addressed concerning
the above items. Staff is working on an update to the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). It is clear
that some level of financing will be required to fund the improvements. If the contracts, our
source of revenue, expire in seven years, we are not likely to receive good financing. To make
longer- term financing more favorable, it makes sense to extend the term of the contracts.

Mr. Friedenbach also noted that Section 7.2.5 of Ordinance 16 limits the amount of capital costs
that can be charged in any given fiscal year. He stated he is not clear why the limitation is in the
contract. Staff is requesting direction from the Board regarding possible contract extensions with
the Municipal Customers and possible revisions to Ordinance 16 in certain arcas. President
Hecathorn and Director Rupp stated Section 7.2.5 was a result of the mills. They requested the
limitation.

Director Rupp agreed that longer contracts would be beneficial in term of seeking financing. He
urged staff to consider what should and should not be in the contracts if they decided to open the
contracts and to seek Board input at the appropriate time.



PAGE NO,

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICTSECTION o,
828 7" Street, Eureka T

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

Letter from County Treasurer

Mr. Friedenbach discussed the quarterly letter from the County Treasurer. The District’s fund
balances with the County Treasury earned an annualized interest rate of .79% which is double
that of LATIF.

Financial Report

Director Rupp provided the April financial report. Director Laird reviewed the bills. On motion
by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Laird, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the April 2016
financial statement &vendor detail report in the amount of $184,186.50.

Audit RFP

Mr. Friedenbach stated the District had a three-year audit agreement with the accounting firm of
Hunter, Hunter and Hunt. The third year is now completed. As a result, Request for Proposals
were sent to several auditing firms, including Hunter, Hunter and Hunt. The responses are due by
May 27, 2016. The Audit Committee will review the proposals received and share the
information with the Board at the June meeting.

Operations
Mr. Davidsen provided the May Operational Report. The SCADA system upgrade went out for

bid and they have selected a vendor to start the upgrade process. Telestar was onsite to
commission and install the new chlorinators and chlorine shut down system. The new equipment
is much more user friendly than the previous equipment that was 23 years old.

Employee training included Confined Space Safety as well as Heat Illness and Injury Prevention
training. He noted this training is especially important prior to the annual Ruth maintenance.

Mr. Davidsen informed the Board the 1Mg Industrial Water reservoir overflowed and explained
how this incident occurred. The Harbor District requested the water get pumped to them on
Friday as they have done numerous times before for maintenance purposes. Staff began pumping
the water as requested and soon received a call from a concerned citizen stating water was
coming up on the edge of New Navy Base Road. Staff contacted the Harbor District and found
out they forgot to open their valve to receive the water. This caused the reservoir to overflow. The
dissipater was covered by a sand dune and the sensors were out of calibration since the District is
not investing time or money into the Industrial system. The end result was some minor damage
to the road. GRS was contacted, quickly responded and completed the necessary repairs. Cost to
repair was $3,600. Mr. Davidsen stated he was appreciative of the quick response by GRS. Mr.
Friedenbach suggested it might make sense to have a maintenance agreement in place with the
Harbor District if they plan to request excess water on a regular basis.

Mr. Davidsen also noted that Ruth maintenance was a bit more challenging this year due to being
short-staffed. They also had a maintenance issue that took longer to repair than anticipated. All
ended well.

K. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION

1.

General

President Hecathorn stated she had a good vacation.

b

P i o e



828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

May 12, 2016

2. ACWA —JPIA

Director Rupp reported out on his attendance at the ACWA-JPIA Conference and Training. On
Monday, he attended an Executive Committee meeting and a Board meeting. The big discussion
item was Central Basin Municipal Water District. Previously, the JPIA Board of Directors
voted to cancel Central Basin’s participation in the Liability, Property and Workers’
Compensation risk sharing programs. Central Basin provided presentation as to why they
should be allowed back in.

He attended two sessions on Tuesday; Protecting Your Agency’s Assets by Understanding
and Remediating Potential Threats, and Protecting Y our Board Meeting from Chaos:
Managing strong feelings and difficult meetings during drought and uncertainty.

3. ACWA

At the ACWA Conference, Director Rupp attended a Finance Committee meeting. He noted that
ACWA runs on a calendar year. They will meet again in August, then adopt the budget in
September for CY 2017. He also attended several different programs and renewed his Ethics
training.

Director Woo reported out on her attendance. She also attended several programs, including
sessions on biomass, aquatic resources and attracting the water community’s next generation:
meeting millennials. She also attended the Region 1 Board meeting. The next Region 1 Board
meeting will include a speaker on atmospheric rivers.

Mr. Helliker reported out on his attendance. He attended several programs including a Statewide
Issues Panel- Headwaters Health: Obstacles and opportunities to advance forest management.

4. Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: RCEA, RREDC, LAFCO, NCRP

Director Woo shared that RCEA is starting a public engagement process similar to that of the
District’s Water Resource Planning. Mary Gelinas will be working with them.

Director Rupp reported out on RREDC. College of the Redwoods (CR)is updating their five year
plan- Education Master Plan to meet Humboldt County’s employment and economic
development needs. They requested input from the RREDC Board for their strategic planning.
The Board suggested CR provide more trade or vocational training.

Director Rupp stated he was not elected to the LAFCo Board.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 4:37 p.m.

Attest:

Barbara Hecathorn, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer

10



4 ?;?LTHOND.__-s PAGE NO._
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT -
828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Special Meeting of Board of Directors
At the John R Winzler Control Center in Essex

May 13, 2016

ROLL CALL

President Hecathorn called the meeting to order at 9:01 am. Director Rupp conducted the roll
call. Directors Hecathorn, Laird, Rupp, Latt and Woo were present. General Manager Paul
Helliker, Superintendent Dale Davidsen, and Business Manager John F. riedenbach were also
present. Pat Kaspari and John Winzler of GHD were there for a portion of the meeting.

FLAG SALUTE
Director Hecathom led the flag salute.

ACCEPT AGENDA
On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 5-0 to accept the

agenda.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No public was present.

REPORTS (from Staff)

FY 2016-17 Project Budget

Mr. Davidsen provided an overview of the process to develop the Project Budget. He
highlighted the employee input and involvement, and significant work performed by the
supervisors. Mr. Davidsen summarized each project proposal highlighting all the new
projects.

Mr. Friedenbach provided an overview of the projected costs for the major CIP projects.

The Board asked questions about several projects and staff provided detailed responses.
The Board agreed with the items and associated costs presented in the 2016/17 Project
Budget.

Annual Bar-B-Que

The Board joined staff for the annual bar-b-que luncheon. President Hecathorn thanked
the employees for their good work and provided Neal Latt, Laythen Martines, and Corey
Borghino with their District jackets. The supervisors introduced their employees. Mr.
Helliker and Mr. Davidsen thanked employees for their ongoing dedication and
significant contributions to the District.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 2:00 pm following the bar-b-que.

Attest:

Barbara Hecathorn, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



Consent



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BARBARA HECATHORN, PRESIDENT
ALDARON LAIRD, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
SHERI WOO, DIRECTOR

NEAL LATT, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
PAUL HELLIKER

Ms. Robin Turgeon

Grant Administrator

QZ Prevention Program

Division of Boating and Waterways
One Capitol Mall, Suite 410
Sacramento CA 95814

May 13, 2016

~7nTION_F | _ PAGE NO. __l____
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 » EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 Essex 707-822-2918

FAX707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM

Website: www.hbmwd.com

RE: Quagga and Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant Program

Dear Robin,

Attached is the signed Grant Agreement and Payee Data Record form. In addition, I have enclosed our
signed Board Resolution 2016-04 accepting the grant and authorizing our General Manager and Business

Manager to administer the grant for our District.

If you have any questions, or need any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Rega}‘ds,_ v _
Pl (-

" John Friedenbach
Business Manager



section T4 pace No._|

) T D e e e e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker

Date: June 9, 2016

Subject: General Manager contract amendment

At the May, 2016 Board meeting, the Board discussed with General Manager Helliker his performance
since his start date of May 26, 2015. The Board then directed staff to modify Helliker’s salary to
$10,700 per month, starting on July 1, 2016.

To implement this action, the following modification would be made to Helliker’s contract (highlighted
text):

V. Salary and Benefits

MANAGER shall be paid an initial monthly salary of $10,200. The DISTRICT Board of Directors shall
meet with the MANAGER before November 30, 2015 and review progress and may, in the sole
discretion of the Board, consider an adjustment to the initial salary at that time. Thereafter, the
DISTRICT Board of Directors shall review MANAGER's performance not less than annually based on
the DISTRICT’s fiscal year, on or before June 30", and will consider adjustments in compensation
based upon performance and the overall financial status of the DISTRICT. Beginning July 1, 2016,
MANAGER shall be paid a monthly salary of $10,700.



G,

\/Z%g Ao/ ELS C%(?/?Zéz u7 (o7 yet R, secTioN 1.2 _ PAGENO._|___

(Ebank

/U.S. Bank earns high

scores in customer
satisfaction

U S. Bank customers in California and the
Northwest gave U.S. Bank — the fifth-largest
bank in the United States — the highest
scores in customer satisfaction, according
the results of the J.D. Power 2016 U.S.
Retail Banking Study, which went public on
April 28.

“We view our business through the eyes of
our customers, and to know their perception
of our company is strong means we are
doing the right thing in how we serve them,’
said Andy Cecere, president and chief
operating officer of U.S. Bancorp, parent
company of U.S. Bank.

3

U.S. Bank strives to be the most trusted
choice for consumers and businesses. Its
dedication to making ethical decisions

and doing the right thing is at the heart of
everything it does. U.S. Bank is one of two
banks in the United States to be named as
“2016 World’s Most Ethical Companies” by
an independent organization, Ethisphere.

_//

Humboldt
Association of
Realtors community
giving exceeds one
million dollars

Association of Realtors® 2016 President
Brenda Lockhart of Ming Tree, Realtors®
recently announced that monies raised

in 2015 took the Association’s total
community giving since 1997 over the
one-million-dollar mark.

In 2015 members raised and contributed
more than $40,000.00 to local community
agencies and organizations, and sponsored
the 22nd annual “TOYS FOR KIDS” drive,
which made it possible for 3,500 deserving
children in Humboldt and west Trinity
County to receive toys and necessities this
past Christmas.

Electric vehicle
charging network
expands on North
Coast

The Redwood Coast Energy Authority and
Schatz Energy Research Center celebrated
the Grand Opening of nine new public
electric vehicle charging locations on the
North Coast Electric Vehicle Charging
Network with a ribbon cutting event on
Thursday, April 28th at St. Joseph Hospital
in Eureka.

The event featured an
informational booth,
charging station location
maps, and educational
information on electric
vehicles and future
expansion plans.

About the North Coast

ELECTRIC ¥
VEHICLE |

EXCEPT FOR
ELECTRIC

‘Why Electric Vehicles?

Roughly half of the energy used in our
region is for transportation, and almost all
transportation fuel is from petroleum-based
fossil sources. Electric vehicles will play

a critical role in shifting transportation
away from fossil fuels. We can use our
abundant local renewable energy resources
to produce electricity as a cleaner and
more cost-effective transportation fuel.
Electric vehicles are an excellent way for
our community to enhance local energy
security, reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
and improve our economy.

A Network of Dedicated Partners

A team of local partners participated to
make this project a success. The Redwood
Coast Energy Authority provided overall
program management and the Schatz
Energy Research Center coordinated the
installation effort as Owner’s Engineer.
OurEvolution Energy & Engineering
led the civil engineering tasks and GHD
reviewed electrical plans. McKeever
Energy & Electric
. Inc., partnered with
DCI Builders for civil
contracting work, won the
public bid for electrical
contracting to install
equipment at seven of the
nine sites. The other two
sites, the McKinleyville
Shopping Center (owned
by Pierson Company)
and St. Joseph Hospital,
used their own electrical

Plug-In Electric Vehicle S VLIICLE
Charging Network ' CHARGING
Redwood Coast Energy

Authority promotes
the adoption of
electric vehicles in our region and plans,
implements, and manages electric vehicle
public charging infrastructure, The

agency currently manages public electric
vehicle charging stations at fourteen
locations in Humboldt County. The goals
of the network are to: increase plug-in
electric vehicle travel in our region and
reduce greenhouse gas emissions from
vehicle miles travelled; establish a locally
controlled, affordable, and economically
sustainable network of EV charging stations
in the region; and demonstrate a non-profit
EV network administrator business model.

contractors, Ambrosini
and Sons and Colburn
Electric respectively.

Participating site hosts include the
Arcata Technology Center Partners,
City of Trinidad, City of Ferndale, City
of Fortuna, City of Rio Dell, L and A
Enterprises, North Coast Unified Air
Quality Management District, Roger
and Nancy Brown of Brown Rental, St.
Joseph Hospital, and the Willow Creek
Community Services District.

Funding for this project was generously
provided by a grant from the California
Energy Commission through their
Alternative and Renewable Fuel and
Vehicle Technology Program.

www.eurekachamber.com



—

_f_é_, PAGE NO. ,,,_‘Q_‘_/_

'SECTION

"Buneow
I B 1B PaIopIsucd aq
M eyl suondo dorassp
0} Jels payaarp sioswaaad
-0g "suodire 3uy3snns s £
-Unod sy} 0} pejera jusurdo
~[°A9p dIurou0ds Funueyus
U0 UOISSNOSIp ® papnpout
Osfe way epuaSe ayy,
‘11 1uswerd
-l 01 8T0T [un aAeYy [[Im
£unod 9yl ‘uoneprosuos
9yl 240idde sisj0A JI
‘uonisod
pajutodde 10 pajoaps ue aq
PINOYS adueuy jo peay mou
oY} JI9yleyM Jo uonsenb
o1 Jurpnpur ‘jo[eq uwon
-0970 Surwoadn a3 uo uoy
“EpI0SU0d  [ejusunredap
o1 29e[d 01 pajoa A[snow
-lueun siosiazadng
< eW
01 pey I 1€} SUOISTOAp an
Ul 90UAMjUI SPISINO Paoua
-L1adxa T ‘eouo ueyy QIO
‘omus) Juoy sup Fuump
jeyl  pappe  umens
« SINIBU JE1]
Jo s3uryy pue spury a1 jo
UORIR(00 3y} ‘spuny Irayy
Jo Jusunsaaul a3 Surusny
-Uul 2q 01 gejs Io/pue sios
-latadng jo preog ey uo
A[31 01 JueMm ‘sesed Auew
ur jou op A8, pue ‘pan
-Unuod umeng  ‘Amsean
Aunoo ayy ur Asuowr 1213

9)OA 0} 0D 0] Jab19W d>ueUy

SARY,, S9IDULER JULUILIBA0S
[0 1910 00T 12AQ)
areand ur
SI0SIAISdNS 01  S3110)S TeMm,,
SIY @3e[oI 01 PAIdYjO Bl
Juswedruew [emo
-euy jo AyLgajun a1} 9AISS
-a1d 0] Aressooou SI 9ouRU
-§ JO I030811p juspuadapur
‘Pat0s[e ue Surary ‘soouaLr
-9dxa s1y Jo suros wo paseq
e} siosiaradns ploy oy
81894 Q€ 107 150d ST 38 SEM
umeng usydeyg 10309[[0)
Xe[-I19INSLAL], JOULIOY
‘penunuod 3y  ‘Buryy jo
10S 18U} pUE $30] pUE Safj[e
-uad jo sioArem Supsanbax
o[doed woy ‘suonerado
Funoafoo xel oy uo soud
-0JuI anpun 3q prnoo sy
asnesaq uorysod pajos[e ue
S® UIBWIDI STl AJ[eal 1,
"SI910A Aq USSOYD ST 103001
-Ip @dUBUY Mma3u 213 sk Juo|
se — _Suruosear punos,
§19pfa1  [esodord 1efiowr
9} PIes MawooyLIeg uyop
10309[[0) XBJ-I2INSBAL]
« IO
paysuaodun  pazis-wnip
-9W ® sT 393 03 3uro$ o1,n04

Ssmﬂ\m_\\ﬂ \me

[t ‘s30jo  peystrasoduur
Auny om} 19132801 Suriq nok
JUng, "penunuod Raqep
«utod 1eyy 18 193uons aq
Alqeqoid pmpom am 1eqy
Uy} [ ‘uoneziuesioar sy
30 1red e se ur swoo 03 3w
-08 QI9M ssoInosar Ji,
“Burpuny
JO OB ST JNSST [Bal 91} pres
9H ‘soueurofad saoxdur
A[renioe [im 1810w oy 1o
-Uieym pauonsanb naapn
20  I3[[0IIUO)-10NPIY
« Suonerado [e1
-usuriredap 10§ wIeouod Jo,
9IE S97IS JTE1S [[eWUS J17} Jey)}
saje1s 11odar yyeis usLIM
"SuyyeIs peluI] 2aRY yoeo
pa8iaw aq 03 pesodoid so
~LJO 343 1B} pappe ayg
. Aunon
9l JO suolpunj fenuRUY
911 10J 93EI9A00 191399 IpIA
-01d, [[m g Louowr saes
jou [m aaowt pasodord sy
pres wasfIN Awry  1a0y30
SATBISIUTWDY  £juno)
011Bq
Uuonoafa 8 "AoN ay3 uo [esod
-o1d  paduoid-syqnop oty
Furoerd uonnjosax e pasord

-de f[snowrueun siosarad
-N§ ‘sIajoa Aq posordde
9 0] aAey peay jusurired
-9p  ooueuy  pojurodde
UBY} I9IIBI pads[e ue jo
jusUIysI[qeIss 9yl pue Ia
-8w ayy ‘mef BIUIOJITRD
0} Suipi00E ‘qey; siosw
-Iadns pio1 yeis yunog
"P9193[ 2q Os[e pnoys
NUEBUL]  JO Jusunredaq
MIU 3] JO 1039211p 9]} Jey]
paaide siosiatadng speroy
-JO pa03[a Aq papeay Apuas
-IND 318 $30YJ0 FUmSIXa oY}
JO jog -soueurd jo juswr
-reda opdurs v ojur sa0y
~JO IB[[onuo)-103IpNy pue
I01R[[0D  XBI-IoInsSeai],
oq1  Buidiewr  poyoddns
siosialedng jo pieog om
‘Buneswr o1 ABIN su1 1V
‘UOII09[
8 "AON 911 ul peacxdde 1o
-10A 311nba1 [[m jeryy sa0wr
€ — way) Sulpesy 1oaa1p
o[3uls B M ‘pagiowr aq
few syuewniredsp [ewueu
-§ uew s Auno) 1poq
“WoH - LATO9WNH
NOIN() MHATY aVIAl
ZIUIN pPrueq

I} AJuno)




SECTION Fa PAGE NO. —

P — o g £33

From the Lost Coast Qutpost- May 24, 2016

Too Much Weed! Cannabis Permit Applications Making Planning
Staff Sick and Must Be Paused, Management Says

HANK Stvs / TODAY @ 3:45P.M. / LocAL GOVERNMENT

Senior staff with County of Humboldt’s planning and building department say that
experienced planners are falling physically ill and preparing to flee the department due
to the “untenable level of stress” placed on them by the county’s new commercial
cannabis ordinance.

They say that the amount of staff time sucked up by the ordinance has caused the
department to miss state-mandated deadlines; that permits for projects unrelated to
cannabis are being delayed and pushed aside; that work on the general plan has been
delayed; and that the whole department is “at risk of operation collapse.”

All this and more is detailed in a letter signed by five senior planning staffers —
including interim planning director Rob Wall — and sent to the Humboldt County
Board of Supervisors on May 19. The letter calls for the county to implement “9o-Day
Stand Down,” during which no new applications for commercial cannabis operations
would be accepted.

“These are unprecedented times,” the letter opens, setting the tone for the numbers
which soon follow. In the 9o days the cannabis ordinance has been effect, the letter
states, the department has:

o Taken 447 calls on its “customer cannabis hotline”
e Processed 470 “registration forms”

o Conducted 110 “application assistance meetings”

o Begun processing 42 permit applications

How much is that? Wall and his cosigners say that those 110 assistance meetings, over
those 90 days, were more than double the number of such meetings they held for any
type of project in all 2015. It’s also nearly double the number of permit applications filed
with the department in the first five months of last year. All told, they write, 792 staff-
hours have been expended providing weed program information to the public, and 825
staff-hours have been spent on “program implementation.”

“All of this has been accomplished with no additional resources and no reduction in the
expectation to maintain all preexisting operational responsibilities,” they write.

But the increased workload, they say, has put a strain on the department. Three
employees have exhibited stress-related health problems due to all the extra weed work,
and two people are known to be looking for jobs elsewhere.

“In the military, units conduct temporary stand downs to address issues and ensure
long-term operational readiness and effectiveness,” write the senior planning staff,
arguing that the only way to keep staff healthy and maintain a functioning planning
department is to cease accepting new commercial marijuana permit applications for a
spell. “A 9o day stand down should be implemented as soon as possible.”



L

SECTION T-2_ PAGE No._ﬂ B

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT
PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT

May 19, 2016

TO: Board of Supervisors
CAO

FROM: Rob Wall, Interim Directeor

Todd Sobolik, Chief Building Official

Steven Santos, Development Assisfance Manager
Steve Werner, Supervising Planner

Catherine Munsee, Business Mcnhager

SUBJECT: Managing Growth of Cannabis Services and Risk of Operational Collapse

These are unprecedented times.

Humboldt County achieved an amazing accomplishment. We met the state deadline
and secured our right to local control. We were the first jurisdiction in California to
adopt a Commercial Medical Marijuana Land Use Ordinance (CMMLUQ) in response
to the state Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety legislation, The cannabis
community has responded to these successes and is engaging us earnesily.

The challenge facing the county now is the massive volume of cannabis projects and
service requests -- present and anficipated. Our employees have stepped up and
shown true dedication fo public service. They have worked while sick and foregone
approved leave fo accommodate the initial surge of customers.

Following this initial surge, it is vitally important that we establish realistic expectations
regarding institutional capacity in order to effectively absorb and process cannabis
projects. This strategy must be guided by data driven decisions. The Board of
Supervisors and the Planning and Building Department need to work jointly to triage
and manage this challenge.

Growith of Cannabis Services

In the 90 days since the CMMLUO has been in effect, the Planning and Building
Department has responded to 447 customer cannabis hotline contacts, processed 470
registration forms, conducted over 110 application assistance meetings, and have
begun processing 42 permit application submittals. That is more than double the
number of application assistance meetings that were held for all projects in all of 2015
and almost a 100% increase in permit applications from this fime last year. Since
February, 792 hours have been spent providing general cannabis information to
customers and an additional 825 hours have been spent on program implementation.
All of this has been accomplished with no additional resources and no reduction in the
expectation to maintain all preexisting operational responsibilities.




SECTION (-2 PAGE NO.__g

e o ] U Y

Risk of Operational Collapse
Because of this workload increase the foundation of our operational capacity is

cracking and getting worse, We are heading toward catastrophe. What follows are

examples that demonsfrate we are on an unsustainable path:

*  We are unable to provide customers a permit processing fime estimate due fo the
volume of new projects, All projects are suffering from critical or indefinite delays.
We are, at times, failing to meet state-mandated deadlines.

Policy interpretations, procedures, and systems are either incomplete orin need of a
refresh after being rushed into place to meet the initial February 26 program launch
- window,

e There are gaps in our data that the Board and other agencies rely on because
there is not enough time to complete the file opening process before serving the
next customer.

e Customers are expressing anger and frustration related to non-cannabis permit
delays, as well as anger and frustration from incomplete cannabis procedures.

e Adoption of the General Plan has been delayed.

Most importantly, our employees, which are our most valuable resource, are being
harmed. We risk losing frained and capable individuals as we bring new staff on board.
At least two individuals are known to be seeking employment elsewhere and another
three employees have exhibited health problems due to the untenable level of stress.
Immediate action is needed.

20 Day Stand Down

In the military, units conduct temporary stand downs to address issues and ensure long-
term operational readiness and effectiveness. A 20 day stand down should be
implemented as socn as possible.

During the stand down, the depariment would focus on accomplishing the following

goals:

e Scheduling completed cannabis permit applications for decision and approval.

e Survey agencies and consuitants o generate an estimate of how many more
projects are expected in the near ierm. Then analyze that data and develop o
formula for sustainably absorbing and processing cannabis projects (e.g. maximum
number of project a single planner can carry). Finally, determine what additional
capacity expansion is needed and work with the Board and CAQ to provide it.

s |n consuitation with the Board subcommittee, generate a basic strategic plan for
cannabis services. This may include Board consideration of extending the
application window beyond December 31, 2016 to minimize the workload spike that
is expected with this looming deadline.

e Train the two new planners that start at the end of this month and accelerate the
hiring and training of a third planner.

Explore the potential of reinstituting a qualified consultant program.
Implement, deploy, and refresh policies, procedures, and systems related to
cannabis implementation.

¢ Aftend fo delayed non-cannabis projects.




SECTION_2 _paceNa. (v

o g oy e

The scope of the stand down includes:

e No hew cannabis application assisfance meetings scheduled during the stand
down but pre-existing scheduled meetings will be honored.

¢ No new cannadbis permit applications accepted during the stand down but pre-
existing applications will be processed.

e Cannabis operation registration forms will be accepted in light of the August 23
deadline.

*  General information will still be provided proportional o institutional capacity.

¢ Non-cannhabis projects will still be accepted.

The intended spirit of this communication is that we collectively have a legal and
professional obligation to ensure the health of our employees, the long-term
effectiveness of our institution, and the satisfaction of our customers.

~




secTioN_F2_PAGENO.__7__

From the Lost Coast Qutpost

MELLOWED OUT: Planning Department Creates New Cannabis Services
Division to Deal With Weed-Related Stressors

HANK SiMs / FRIDAY, MAY 27 (@ 4:52 P.M. / LocAL GOVERNMENT

PREVIOUSLY:

e Too Much Weed! Cannabis Permit Applications Making Planning Staff Sick and Must Be
Paused, Management Says

T

Earlier in the week, we told you about how the Humboldt County Community Development
Services Department and its planning staff were wigging out a little bit over the rising tide of
weed-related work flooding into the office since the passage of the county’s commercial
cannabis ordinance.

Well, today — resolution! Apparently that emergency meeting Wednesday resulted in an
agreement to reorganize the planning division and to create a new “Cannabis Services
Division,” which will specialize in all marijuana matters.

Interim planning director Rob Wall told the Outpost that the idea has been kicking around for a
while. “It was something we were discussing earlier on, but we were in kind of a wait-and-see
mode with this industry,” he said. “We just didn’t know what was going to come through the
door.”

Now that they know that there’s a whole ot coming through the door — and now that they can
offload some general plan update environmental documentation to consultants — now appears
to be the time. Wall was confident that the move will result in better service for the public, and in
a mellower work atmosphere for the planning division at large.

Letter from Wall to the Board of Supervisors:

There has been much discussion recently regarding cannabis projects and the impact they are
having on the department. In consultation with the Board, we are taking the following action to
better manage the situation.

New Cannabis Services Division

Starting July 1, 2016, a new Cannabis Services Division will respond to customer inquiries,
conduct application assistance meetings, and process cannabis permit applications. On a
temporary basis, employees will be reassigned from the Advance Planning Division to back fill
staff needs while new employees are hired and trained. This temporary redeployment is
possible because we are hiring a consultant to work on a portion of the Environmental Impact
Report for the General Plan.

Cannabis Permit Applications and Assistance Meetings
The department will continue to accept cannabis permit applications. Customers requesting
application assistance meetings will be given the next available appointment.

Next Steps
During the month of June, the following tasks will be completed prior to the launch of the new
Cannabis Services Division:



SECTION _Eé_, PAGENO._ 9 __

e The Development Assistance Manager will survey state agencies and local consultants and
develop an estimate of how many additional cannabis projects the Department might expect
this calendar year.

e The Chief Building Official will implement a method for tracking cannabis related projects in
the Building Inspection Division

e The Supervising Planner for the Current Planning Division will determine appropriate
workload levels for individual planners to ensure effectiveness and develop a method for
transitioning cannabis projects from the Current Planning Division to the new Cannabis
Services Division.

» The Business Manager will research and provide recommendations regarding options to
augment staff including but not limited to the hiring of extra help and the use of qualified
consultants.

Significant challenges lie ahead. Nevertheless, the Department remains committed to ensuring

applicants’ eligibility for state licensure in 2018 as this is critical to the success of our program

and the future of the local cannabis economy.



Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.times-standard.com) SECTION 2 PAGE NO.,__O‘L___

e oy s gy ]

Supes to consider joining low rate energy program

EIlk River stewardship funding before board

By Will Houston, Eureka Times-Standard
Saturday, May 21, 2016

The Humboldt County Board of Supervisors is expected to support an ordinance at its Tuesday meeting
to become part of a local energy program that would set competitive power rates with Pacific Gas and
Electric Co.

Should the county join the program, Redwood Coast Energy Authority Executive Director Matthew
Marshall said it will likely guarantee the program will be able to move forward by its 2017 launch date.

“This is one of the key milestones to say this can happen in the next 12 or so months,” he said.

As part of an ongoing effort to restore the Elk River from decades of logging impacts, the board is set to
discuss whether to allocate $15,000 in state grant funding to create community stewardship program.

Community Choice Aggregation

The energy program before the board on Tuesday is formally known as Community Choice Aggregation,
which is an established state policy that allows local governments to determine what sources of energy
they wish to purchase and set competitive rates comparative to existing utilities.

After discussing the program throughout 2015, the board chose to move forward with creating the
program with the Redwood Coast Energy Authority being designated as the lead agency. The authority is
a joint powers authority composed of local government representatives from Humboldt County, Arcata,
Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, Rio Dell and Trinidad, as well as the Humboldt Bay Municipal
Water District.

The choice portion of the Community Choice Aggregation allows members and individual customers to
opt out if they prefer to stay with PG&E, but so far Arcata and Fortuna have decided to participate with
other cities such as Trinidad and Eureka to be deciding relatively soon, Marshall said.

The ordinance going before the board for its first reading Tuesday would bring the entire unincorporated
area into the program, which will potentially provide enough customers to make the program feasible,
Marshall said.

Without the funding or staffing available to run the program, Redwood Coast Energy Authority has
contracted with a nonprofit company, The Energy Authority, to operate the program and help procure the
power.

The nonprofit will recoup costs once the program is up and running and bringing in revenue, Marshall
said, which means there are no up-front expenses to the county and cities.



secTion T2 _PAGENO. L0

I e

“It’s a great opportunity to be able to work this all out and not need a huge influx of thousands or maybe
millions of dollars,” he said.

Marshall said they will use the rest of this year to begin assessing the feasibility of the program and
reaching out to the public.

Elk River

As part of ongoing restoration efforts for the Elk River watershed just south of Eureka, the board is set to
consider allocating $15,000 in state grant funding to fund a stewardship program that would allow
stakeholders to decide how projects are prioritized.

“There is a lot of different perspectives on Elk River, a lot of different inputs and directions,” Deputy
Public Works Director Hank Seemann said. “The stewardship program is not an effort to try to mediate
disputes. We’re really trying to focus on common ground, things we agree on, and hopefully ideas for
projects.”

Decades of logging along the upper watershed have caused large amounts of sediment to fall into the
river and its tributaries, causing major flooding for the area’s residents, damaging water systems, and
closing roads for days at a time. The stewardship program would be organized into four working groups
focusing on sediment remediation, water supplies, road access, and science and monitoring, Seemann
said.

The funding would allow the project to continue for two years.
“If it’s successful, I'm hopeful we’ll be attractive for funding to continue,” he said.

If the funding is approved, the program’s first public meeting is set for June 30 from 6:30 to 8:30 p.m. at
the Humboldt County Agricultural Center at 5630 South Broadway, Eureka.

Will Houston can be reached at 707-441-0504.

URL: http://www.times-standard. com/government-and-politics/20160521/supes-to-consid er-joining-low-rate-energy-program

© 2016 Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.times-standard.com)




Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.times-standard.com) SECTION & _PAGE NO.J_ }____“

e e . sl 25

Supes approve Elk River restoration grant
Community Choice Aggregation ordinance moves forward

By Will Houston, Eureka Times-Standard
Tuesday, May 24, 2016

As part of an extensive effort to restore decades’ worth of impacts to the mud-choked Elk River, the
Humboldt County Board of Supervisors unanimously approved a nearly $175,000 grant to allow the
watershed’s stakeholders to come up with solutions.

Longtime Elk River resident Kristi Wrigley said she has been addressing this issue for nearly 20 years,
and said that this is the first time the board has shown concern.

“Though we do appreciate it, it is a long while in coming,” Wrigley said.

Earlier in the meeting, the board voted unanimously to move forward with an ordinance that would join
them with Community Choice Aggregation energy program in order to utilize local renewable energy
sources and to set competitive power rates with Pacific Gas and Electric Co.

Elk River grant

Historic logging in the Elk River watershed, such as clear-cutting and road construction, allowed
sediment to leech into the river for several decades, but the effects did not begin to become noticeable
until the 1980s.

Local farmers, such as Wrigley, noticed their fields and homes were flooding. Roads closed for days at a
time as the mud-clogged river became shallower and shallower. Water lines both for drinking and
agriculture were blocked up by sediment.

The river, which flows into Humboldt Bay 20 miles from its eastern headwaters south of Eureka, was
listed as an officially impaired waterway in 1998 by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

The North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board recently adopted an outline plan of how to stop
further sediment impacts and is considering restrictions on the Humboldt Redwood Company’s logging
practices in the watershed. The company states it is not contributing to the problem.

Humboldt County Deputy Public Works Director Hank Seemann said that the state’s regulations are only
one of three Elk River restoration efforts.

The proposed grant funding that went before the board of supervisors Tuesday will fund a Elk River
Watershed Stewardship Program that Seemann said is designed to identify partnerships and restoration
projects along the river for the next two years.

The program, which is set to have its first public meeting on June 30, will divide into working groups to



secTioN F3_pacEN0. ] O

address issues relating to water quality, health and safety, and address other issues such as water supplies
and road flooding.

“The stewardship program is intended to support planning and implementing community oriented
projects,” Seemann said.

The program will lean on a third component of the Elk River restoration effort — a technical study by
CalTrout detailing which areas of the river should have sediment removed.

Elk River resident Jerry Martien said he and other members of the Friends of the Elk River organization
support this collaborative program, but with significant concerns still left unaddressed.

“This project is very little and very late and will be used to advertise that everything is better while
residents continue to endure flooding, and fish populations struggle to survive,” he said.

Martien said he is also concerned that the projects could lead to more development in the watershed’s
agricultural communities and will also lack restrictions on contemporary logging operations.

“We hope these outcomes can be avoided,” he said.

Wrigley, whose family has resided in the North Fork Elk River watershed for about 100 years, said
residents are being asked to compromise with logging industries that she said have led to her and nearly
three dozen neighbors being unable to farm their land due to flooding.

“We have been robbed entirely of the use of our land,” she said.

Third District Supervisor and board Chairman Mark Lovelace said this program is a necessary step in
restoring the river, and has been needed for some time.

“It was a really, really clear back then that this river is broken and beyond the ability of natural processes
to repair it,” he said.

The board voted to approve the $174,956 in grant funding to support the program, which included large
contributions by the UC Cooperative Extension and CalTrout.

The stewardship program’s first public meeting is set for June 30 from 6:30 to 8:30 p.m. at the Humboldt
County Agricultural Center at 5630 South Broadway in Eureka.

Community Choice Aggregation

As expected, the board voted unanimously to move forward with a local energy program known as
Community Choice Aggregation. The state program allows local jurisdictions to procure their own power
and set their own power rates to compete with local utilities such as PG&E.

If the program moves forward as planned in 2017, PG&E would still be responsible for metering, billing,
outage response and infrastructure maintenance.

The Board of Supervisors has been considering joining the program for over a year. With the
unincorporated county area making up over half the county’s energy load, the county’s participation in
the program is critical in order for the program to work, according to Redwood Coast Energy Authority
Executive Director Matthew Marshall.



 SECTION_{2. _paceNo, [ D
Arcata and Fortuna have also signed on to the program, Marshall said, with more municipalities expected

to join.

The Redwood Coast Energy (RCEA) — a joint powers authority composed of local government
representatives from Humboldt County, Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Fortuna, Rio Dell and
Trinidad, as well as the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District — will manage the program.

A nonprofit company, The Energy Authority, was hired by RCEA earlier this year to operate the program
as well as work to procure the power from local sources, such as biomass plants.

Local residents in participating communities will still have the ability to opt out of the program if they
wish to remain with PG&E.

The Community Choice Aggregation ordinance must still go before the board at a future meeting for
final approval.

Will Houston can be rveached at 707-441-0504.

URL: http://www.times-standard.com/general-news/20160524/supes-approve-elk-river-restoration-grant

© 2016 Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.times-standard.com)



Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.times-standard.com) SECTION _EB ,PAGE NO._'_%_*

Brown calls for permanent drought savings

Governor’s executive order extends conservation to January 2017

By Will Houston, Eureka Times-Standard
Monday, May 9, 2016

Emergency water conservation rules brought about by
California’s now five-year drought are set to become a
permanent fixture in every day life, according to an
announcement by state officials on Monday.

However, some North Coast suppliers could be off the hook if
they can prove they have enough water stowed away for
another three years of drought.

Paul Helliker — the general manager of the Humboldt
County’s largest water wholesaler, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District — said the announcement
is welcome news to him and other water agencies throughout the state that have been calling for a looser
regulatory grip as drought conditions lessen.

“It sounds like they listened to us,” Helliker said.

In his executive order issued on Monday, Gov. Jerry Brown called for the state’s emergency drought
regulations to be extended through January 2017. The regulations have been in place since June 2014.

The order also called for a permanent water savings framework to be established for all water suppliers
and users, including mandatory reporting and conservation for some areas.

Meanwhile, the State Water Resources Control Board is planning at its meeting next week to modify the
“cookie-cutter” water conservation requirements for communities across the state.

Under the proposed change, the conservation targets would be tailored to each specific community based
on how much water has been available and how much has been used over the past few years of drought.

“So if the North Coast agencies look at their supplies and can see under their conservative assumption
that they would not face shortage, they would then no longer have a mandatory conservation standard,”
State Water Board Climate and Conservation Manager Max Gomberg said. “The effect would be the
same as lifting it, but we’re making (the water agencies) go through the exercise.”

Currently, six large water suppliers in Humboldt County are being required to report water use data to the
state and conserve anywhere from 4 to 20 percent more water than 2013.

Five of these suppliers — Eureka, Arcata, the McKinleyville Community Services District, the Humboldt
Community Services District and the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District — obtain their water from
Ruth Lake reservoir in Trinity County.



section F2 _paceno. ) S

10 e e e vy v

The reservoir refilled to capacity multiple times even during some of the state’s worst drought years in
2013 and 2014 and currently is over 100 percent capacity.

Helliker said the loss of two pulp mills reduced water demands on Ruth Lake by nearly 80 percent. As a
result, Helliker said he is confident that he can convince the state that there is no water shortage in the
Humboldt Bay area.

“I think we’re going to show that we have plenty of water available and therefore the water conservation
standard in terms of the emergency regulations should be zero (percent),” Helliker said.

Any changes the State Water Board makes to the mandatory water conservation targets this month will
take effect on June 1.

After the state began requiring communities to meet water conservation targets in June 2015, some local
suppliers sought to be omitted from the regulations due to Ruth Lake’s bountiful supply. This argument
was not enough to convince the State Water Board, though it did yield lower conservation requirements
for Eureka, Arcata and McKinleyville.

Increased rainfall this past winter has helped lift the drought conditions in Northern California and for
some urban suppliers throughout the state. The U.S. Drought Monitor shows the majority of Humboldt
and Siskiyou counties to be out of the drought, with Del Norte County shown to be completely free from
drought.

Other areas of the state, particularly those in the south, are still facing exceptional or extreme drought
conditions, with the state’s top water officials stating that one average season of rainfall is not cause for
relaxation.

)

“We’ll be happy to call off the statewide drought when appropriate, but we’re a long way from that now,’
state Department of Water Resources Director Mark Cowin said.

State Water Resources Control Board Chairwoman Felicia Marcus said the question before them now is
what tools the state should use to reduce water consumption and when those tools should be
implemented.

“This year could simply be a punctuation mark in a multi-year mega-drought,” Marcus said.

The governor is calling for some of these drought tools to become permanent, such as banning the hosing
of sidewalks and driveways, washing cars without a shut-off nozzle on the hose, watering lawns that
causes runoff or within 48 hours after significant rainfall, and irrigating oramental turf on public street
medians, such as those in Rio Dell.

The executive order also calls for certification of water-efficient technology, reducing leaks, continued
mandatory water use reporting by suppliers, and updating drought plans for urban, rural and agricultural
areas.

The State Water Board and Department of Water Resources will begin working with local agencies for
the rest of the year to implement these orders by January 2017.

“Californians stepped up during this drought and saved more water than ever before,” Brown said in a
statement on Monday. “But now we know that drought is becoming a regular occurrence and water
conservation must be a part of our everyday life.”



-omonF3_paeENo. Lo

Sherrie Sobol

From: ACWA [acwabox@acwa.com]

Sent: Wednesday, May 18, 2016 5:37 PM

To: Sherrie Sobol

Subject: State Water Board Adjusts Emergency Conservation Regulation; Local Supply-Based

Assessment to Replace State-Imposed Standards

May 18, 2016 www.aowa.com | Trouble viewing - View onling

- OutreacH Advisory

‘ Association
State Water Board Adjusts r of California_
. Water Agencies
Emergency Conservation ——— s

Leatersalp - Advocacy

Regulation; Local Supply-Based i o
Assessment to Replace State-
Imposed Standards

CONNECT WITH US

fv

The State Water Resources Control Board today approved
modifications fo the existing emergency water conservation regulation
to reflect improved conditions and allow for more local decision
making.

The modified regulation replaces the existing state-imposed
mandatory conservation standards with a locally driven, supply-based
assessment process. Urban water suppliers will now be required to
self-certify their water supply availability assuming three additional dry KEY LINKS
years and customer demands based on 2013 and 2014 averages.
Local suppliers will then determine the level of conservation needed to

assure adequat | that time.
quate supply over that ti @ GET MORE INFO

The regulation, which takes effect June 1 and will remain in effect
through January 17, does not include a mandatory minimum
cons,ervatiorl ﬂopr. Thlough thelconcept of a floor was discussed at @ FIND YOUR LEGISLATOR
today's hearing, it was included in the proposal presented by State

Water Board staff.

The regulation and related documents are at the State Water Board's OUTREACH CENTER
Emergency Conservation Regulation Portal here.

Under the regulation, urban water suppliers and wholesale suppliers
are required to report data and calculations underlying their water ACWA STATE LEGISLATIVE
supply assessments. Wholesalers are required to submit their data by COMMITTEE

June 15 {one week later than proposed in the May 9 staff proposal),
while urban water suppliers are required to submit their assessment
data by June 22 (also one week later than initially proposed.)

Y : Y REGULATORY ISSUES
Urban water suppliers also are required to continue reporting
conservation levels on a monthly basis. Current end-user prohibitions
on water waste also will continue.




Key Provisions

The new regulation requires individual urban water suppliers to self-
certify the level of available water supplies they have assuming three
additional dry years. Suppliers that would face a shortage after a third
dry year would be required to comply with a conservation standard
equal to the amount of that shortage.

Water supply reliability after the 2018-"19 winter would be calculated
as follows:

e  The supply projection for the next three years would be
based on current supply conditions plus an assumed three-
year hydrology mirroring the 2012-13, 2013-14, and 2014-
15 water years.

e  Demand over that same period would be based on each
supplier's average total potable water production for 2013
and 2014.

e  Suppliers would factor into their calculations all available
water sources that are capable of being treated to potable
standard during the three-year projected period.

e  Suppliers' conservation standards would be calculated as a
percentage and rounded to the nearest whole percentage
point.

e Suppliers would self-certify the accuracy of their conclusions
and provide their analysis and supporting data. The State
Water Board would post information provided by suppliers
on its website and assign each supplier, as a mandatory
conservation standard, reductions equal to the suppliers’
projected percentage deficiency in supply at the end of the
third dry year.

®  Wholesale water suppliers would be required to make
projections about how much water they would deliver to
retail water suppliers under the three-dry-years scenario.

e  Option added for a regicnal approach to compliance with an
aggregated regional standard.

Suppliers that do not submit a water reliability certification and
supporting information would retain their current conservation
standard in almost all cases.

ACWA Members Voice Support for Supply-
Based Approach

During today’s hearing on the proposed amended regulation, water
agency representatives expressed support for the supply-based
approach and thanked State Water Board members and staff for
incorporating input from the water community.

Water agency representatives said they did not see a need for a
mandatory “conservation floor” because it would be inconsistent with
the supply-based approach and send a mixed message to customers.

The State Water Board could consider the concept in January if the
self-assessment process is not yielding the desired results, ACWA
members said.

ACWA member agencies with questions may contact ACWA Special
Projects Manager Dave Bolland at (916) 441-4545 or

daveb@acwa.com.
Important Links

e Draft Resolution to Adopt Emergency Regulation (5/13/16)
e Notice of Proposed Emergency Rulemaking

oy B9

o s o

ACWA POLICY PRINCIPLES

PaCENO, | T



sEcTion 3 pacENO._|_ ﬁ_

s i s

THE WALL STREET JOURNAL, 2/ %%¢

This copy is for your personal, non-commercial use only. To order presentation-ready copies for distribution to your colleagues, clients or customers visit
http://www.djreprints.com.

http://www.wsj.com/articles/califomia-lifts-mandatory-statewide-water-restriction-146 3625159

U.S.

California Lifts Mandatory Statewide
Water Restriction

Removal of 25% cutbacks by urban districts marks turning point in the drought, but some
limits remain

: T T e
Aroad sign in June 2015 warned residents heading into Rancho Santa Fe, Calif., of water restrictions. The state on
Wednesday lifted a mandate to cut urban water use by 25%. PHOTO: MIKE BLAKE/REUTERS

By JIM CARLTON
May 18, 2016 10:32 p.m. ET

California lifted its statewide mandate to cut urban water use Wednesday, marking a
turning point in the state’s prolonged drought.

But the move, prompted by a wet winter that eased some drought conditions, doesn’t
mean a free-flowing tap for everyone. Individual water districts can set conservation
targets based onlocal needs, a California regulatory agency determined.

Gov. Jerry Brown a year ago ordered urban districts to cut water use by 25%
statewide. Restrictions were eased slightly in many areas earlier this year, but a



sEcTieN_E3_paceNo. [T

statewide water-conversation target remained.

The move by the State Water Resources Control Board means parts of the state will now
see few to no local restrictions, while others will still have to rigorously conserve. The
changes take effect June 1.

The decision follows an order from Mr. Brown this month directing the board to
adjust his emergency cutbacks after a return to wet weather in many parts of the
state.

Mr. Brown also made permanent some water restrictions, such as a ban on hosing down
sidewalks and driveways, signaling the state considers drought along-term issue.

In general, cities in Northern California stand to get the most relief because that part of
the state received abundant rain and snow over the winter and spring. But many cities in
Southern California may remain on cutbacks because little precipitation fell there.

Despite the improved water situation, state officials say California remains in a fifth
straight year of drought.

All 411 urban suppliers are to provide the state data from assessments in June stating
whether they have adequate supplies to withstand a three-year drought. They have to
continue supplying data updates monthly so the state board can verify their numbers.

Some other restrictions remain, including a ban on homeowners’ associations taking
action against residents for letting lawns go brown during a drought.

The new conservation program is set to run through next January, although board
members warned they could move to reinstitute the mandatory cutbacks if needed.

Local suppliers had pushed for control over conservation to be returned to them
because they have varying situations; some have had ample supplies while others have
been stretched thin.

“We don’t know if we have a megadrought punctuated by an OK year,” board chair
Felicia Marcus said at the end of a day-long hearing in Sacramento. “This compromise
allows us to keep our eyes wide open.”

Most local water officials who gave public comments at the hearing applauded the
change. “We have had a full reservoir for three years,” Paul Helliker, general manager of



secTion_ E2_PAGE KO, 20 _

the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District on the state’s wet northern coast, testified
in his support. “We don’t have any place to store water.”

But some environmental groups expressed concern Californians will go back to wasteful
ways.

“I think it’s risky and unnecessary,” said Sara Aminzadeh, executive director of the
California Coastkeeper Alliance, an environmental group in San Francisco. “I think
there’s also a danger this will send a message to the public that the drought is over.”

Ms. Marcus, though, said her agency intends to “trust but verify” that suppliers are
conserving as they need. “I think the public has done an amazing job,” she said, “and has
learned alot.”

Write to Jim Carlton at jim.carlton@wsj.com



secTioN_C3_ pace No, 2]

P i

“340dad S1YL 01 PAINGILIUOD
PLOPUDIS-SPULLT YT,

« BIUIOII®D)
Ul 9J1] JO ABM B 3¢ 0] Spaau
UOI1BAIISUOD, ‘PIBS 2YS

1834 91 Jo uoseas Fuisn
I91em 1S9YITY pue 1S9LIp
1891107 23 03UI PBAY aMm
SB SPIBPUEL]S UOHRAISSTOD
duixe[ar jou 103y ased Suip
-[odwod e seyew syl
"TIoUNoy) 95UI)
-9(J §92IN0SaY [BINIBN a1
103 15ATRUR A0170d I0TUAS ©
‘uun® £ov1], pres ‘wysnoIp
912498 U SUTBUIAI 21818 3}
JO Yo "peaye Iojuim £I1p
® Jo Afiqissod a1 21e01p
-Ul 1BY1 S15BO9I0] SUID
‘TOTIRAIISUOD Uo dn 319] 01,
jou s10re[n3a1 3els padin
9ABY §1SI[BIUSUIUOIIAUY

‘pres oy fur yond pue
dn doys ardoad ‘aAlasuod 01
pa2u ' puR 143N0Ip SNOLISS
B 521911 UM 1B} TMOLS
9ARY SUBIUIOJI[ED,
'Se3UeYd 91 UM Iajem
mnsmﬁp urdeq A[uappns 01
a1doad 109dxa j,uss0p ag
Te21LID surewral 1ySnolp
911 PUB]SIIPUN SUBTUIOIL
-[BD PIES ‘P10 IIIBM 31R]S
91 JI0J 1STIUIIOS IIBWI[D
IOTUAS ® ‘FIaquIoy) XB
_ ‘191719307
-T® $91BPUR UOTIBAIISUOD
1] 01 9WIIT ST I SUIULIIILP
PInod SI9YL0 J[IYM. ‘Sassou
-Isng pu® SjUIPISAI 10}
S[203 UOI1BAIISUOD }OLIYS
198 S 1uI S10LIISIP SUIOS
‘TeurIou Jo jyuadtad
0¢€ 1% ST YordMmous BPBAIN

. BIIDIS 9yl pue. ‘1ySnoip

ur deap SUIBWoI ‘IAMOY
“@IUIOJI[BD) UJIAYINOS
1Y3noIp woiy 29413 A3191d
-W0D 9q 01 UMOYS AUno)
9LION [o(Q UMM “Aydnoip
97} JO 1IN0 3g 0] SIUNOD
NOATYSIS pUe Iploqung
Jo fjtrofewr oy} pamoys
I03TUOIA 1YSN0IJ “§'1 2431
‘AN Jo Suruuidaq a1 1V
R Yy
EX 18] mhoﬁmmou L3y Buiy
,mEHo.E.mU UISYLION UT 13)
-UTA ST} MOUS pUE Urel jo
SJUNOWE 93BISAR A[IBaU
D2ISAL[OP SULIOLS OUIN [H
Ia1je yoeoxdde mau a3
pai1apisuod srioje[ndoy
'S1011)
-SIP [BI0] Tamodua o1 ued
371 JO 1UIIUL Y} PI1DIpRIY
U092 31 SULABS ‘[9A3] UOIIBA
-I9SU0D IPIMIIBIS 159POUT

® pow Tesodoid ® pajoafar
S[BIDI}JO PIBOQ I3alBM
| AdUsZIduIL Ue SISIYT,

‘a8ueyD a3 Jo pIES BYS I

Yim Aseaun AIsA [99] |
1BY] SS3JU0D 0} JARY T,
“Yoam 15B[ uonrwepoid
ur umolg £11ar "A05 Aq 100
parfeds AousSiaws ynoIp
911 SSaIppPE 0} YSnoua op
10U s30p ypeoidde pasiaal
a2Yy1 Furdes ‘SuUpoA wWolj
poureisqe onpoQg wel,
«uado apim
sa4o 1no doay 03 SN SMO[[E
es1uI01duIod ST, “PIes oys
« PUES 313 ur peay ino nd
011UBM L,TOD OS[€ M ‘J[0m
AId 01 JUBM 1UOD IM,,
‘eued Iy
I0J SUOISTOIP JO 138 NOLIP
® 1 PI[[BY ‘pPIrOg [011U0D
§30IN0S9Y I971BA 9181S 313

Jjo u_mﬁ.“ms&ﬁz B[]
‘Kedes

1uad1ad Q0T I2A0 ST ATjuUsi.

-Ind pue $10% pue gro¢ ul
sIeak 13NO0IP 1SI0OM 597815
911 JO 2UI0S JULIND UIAD
sown ardunm Ayoeded 3
E:ﬂﬁ IT0AI3S3I ayg, ’
hﬁzou Ayuray, ur
JI0AIIS2I BT Yyiny wolj
JIajem IMdYL UIe1qo — 1L
-S1(J I97ep [edotuniy Aegq
IpoquIny 8y} PUE 191IISL(J
$3DIAIRS ANUNWIUIOY IP[oq
-UITY 913 “1OT13ST(] SOITAISS
Arunuwuio)) IrALUTHIN
91 ‘“ejeoIV ‘BYoIny — SId
-1iddns [e00] XIS 911 2AlJ
‘Ayuno) proqunyg uj
*27181S 911 07 SUOIIR[NOED
119y} 11odal pue Alenuef
y3noly) syeod s3uraes 1as
uayl PINoM SIDLIISIP OL

"SIB3A 991Y] I0] YDI2I13S [[IM
SUOTHPUOoD AIp 1B} UOI
-dumnsse 21 Yilm puewap
pue A[ddns 191eMm ar1edwion
T4 SUPTUIONTE]D) UOT[{IW
0% A[1BaU SUIAISS SIOLIISIP
‘quow 1xou SurnuisSag
‘s8UrARS 1020
-Iad (7 ® 18589} 1% soxmnbax
JBYU1 1834 15B] PIlORUL 19D
~10 UOTBAISSUOD dPLADTRIS
® S1J1 yoroxdde mau ay T,
'a1e1s 913 Jo s1aed auros Ol
1YSN0IP IBIA-IAL 3] PISED
I9UIM jom B I01J® S[eod
UOTIRAIISUOD UMO BT[] 108
01 SI0LIISIP IajeMm [BD0] JO
SPaIpuny Mo[[e 01 Y2am
STU1 paplosp ®BIUIOH[BD
$8a.4f PAIVIIOSSE Y [
uixen 4wy pue
qyus Zo"um

S[epIjo —wmx: 0] .I9A0 QOS@V.H@@:OO JIajem m:.ﬁ—ﬁ @H@Hm.

LHON0HA

g _ Qw;mz _ WO THYONYLS-SINIL

9L0¢ ‘02 AYW ‘Avaly4



SECTION_[D _ PAGE No._%é];

High CountryNews

FOR PEOPLE WHO CARE ABOUT THE WEST

Can California’s water agencies keep
up the conservation momentum?

Without mandatory regulations, some local districts fear a return to water waste.

Lyndsey Gilpin | June1,2016 | Web Exclusive

California’s historic drought has led to immense pressure to conserve water, and
during the last year, most Californians stepped up to the task. State “water cops”
issued warnings and fines, people stopped washing their cars, and towns let their
parks fade from green to brown. After El Nifo this winter, some regions received
enough precipitation to replenish reservoirs and aquifers, so in May, Gov. Jerry
Brown lifted the statewide ban on excessive urban water use, giving over 400 water
districts the power to develop individual conservation standards.

It was a controversial decision, because sweeping rules had finally moved people to
take the drought seriously. Water policy experts fear a let up in conservation, even
though nearly 70 percent of the state remains in extreme drought. That concern
isn’t unwarranted. Although some districts want to keep enforcing strict mandates,
others have been fighting for months to put a cap on them.



SECTION -2 _ PAGE NO. A2

o s o s e ey

1ol
1 PARDON THE

a . APPEARANCE OF

In Sacremento, residents stopped watering lawns to
conserve water during the historic drought.

Kevin Cortopassi/Flickr

“A number of water suppliers don’t necessarily deserve (this) trust,” says Sara
Aminzadeh, director of the California Coastkeeper Alliance, an organization that
unites water programs across the state. “It’s really dicey to return to local control,
especially as we enter the hot, dry summer months.”

California’s water infrastructure is complicated: supply comes from snowpack,
rivers, reservoirs, aqueducts and groundwater. These sources were so depleted in
2014 that Brown declared a state of emergency and asked districts to cut water use
by 20 percent. When most failed to do so by 2015, Brown imposed the sharpest
restrictions on water use in history: a ban on excessive water use for landscaping
and urban areas that brought about a 24-percent reduction.

Under Brown’s May mandate, local agencies don’t have to meet specific
conservation targets. Districts can analyze their water needs and certify
conservation plans before submitting them to the state. They must ensure a three-
year supply of water in case of future drought, and the agencies that know they will
face at least three more years of drought must set high conservation standards.

Some broader restrictions from the governor’s mandate, like a ban on hosing off
sidewalks or washing cars without hose nozzles, will remain in place. But
theoretically, if the water supply and demand equal out, a district’s conservation
target could be zero. That means people won't face such strict requirements, which
could lead to them returning to old water habits, such as watering lawns too



_, PAGE NO, ﬂff_

0 et

frequently, turning on their fountains again, or filling up their pools. This new

process also adds a reporting burden on the state board, which has to sift through
hundreds of analyses to make sure each district is complying. It's unclear how that
will be done logistically, and the board did not respond to a request for comment.

However it pans out, the new plan allows agencies to roll back conservation efforts
without much consequence. Several water district managers say that even though
following state standards and reporting numbers every month was a hassle, they
saw huge gains that they hate to lose. “Once your start changing behaviors, you
don’t want to unwind that,” says Harry Starkey, manager of West Kern Water
District. His district will continue to take detailed measurements of water usage
and enforce landscaping restrictions, he says.

Other agencies are relaxing water-saving efforts because they have reserves for
now. Recently, San Diego County lowered its reduction goal because a new
desalination plant provides 10 percent of local water supply. In the Inland Empire,
east of Los Angeles, Riverside Public Utilities says it has already exceeded
conservation goals, so the district doesn't need to enforce strict mandates. The
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, which got so much rain the local
reservoir was spilling over this winter, is cancelling emergency conservation
programs and public education programs for conservation. Several managers from
around the state added that water efficiency is now so engrained in everyday life,
they don’t believe residents will stop saving water. “Even before the regulations, we
had moved the needle quite a bit,” says Todd Jorgenson, assistant manager of
Riverside Public Utilities. “Conservation, drought — these are common things to
us, so we expect to continue those efforts.”

Most water agencies don’t have specific plans in place yet, but water managers say
eventually every water district in California will have to raise rates to make up for
revenue loss in times of drought, and it’s likely that in the future, there will be
policy changes for how both commercial and residential water supplies work.

Tracy Quinn, water policy analyst for the Natural Resources Defense Council, says
that it’s important for districts to keep in mind that even though local drought
conditions may have improved, it doesn’t mean California is in the clear. This year,



SECTION_[-2__ PAGE NO. 29_

e s B et g e e s

snowpack melted quickly and is now only 29 percent of its normal. The National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, meanwhile, says there’s a high chance
for La Nifia conditions this winter, which could mean another dry year ahead.

Since more extreme droughts are inevitable, Quinn says, water agencies should
keep up strong conservation efforts and focus on in-depth reports for the
state. “Water agencies should be cautious and plan for the likelihood that the worst

may be yet to come.”

Lyndsey Gilpin is an editorial intern at High Country News.

Copyright © High Country News



Correspondence



secTion & [_paceNoO._|

o o e s e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2018

FAX707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM

Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BAREARA HECATHORN, PRESIDENT
ALDARON LAIRD, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
SHERI WOO, DIRECTOR

NEAL LATT, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
PAUL HELLIKER
June 1, 2016

Interim Trinity County CAQO

John Fenley, Trinity County Supervisor

Bruce Haney, Trinity County Sheriff

Christopher Compton, Trinity County OES

Bill German, Southern Trinity Volunteer Fire Department
Dan Dill, District Ranger, Mad River Ranger District, USFS
Lee Lupton, CEQ, Southern Trinity Health Services/STAR

Dear Invitees,

We have had a long tradition of conducting annual joint meetings of the Boards of Directors of the Humboldt
Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) and the Ruth Lake Community Services District (RLCSD). The
purpose of these meetings has been to discuss issues that are of mutual interests to both Districts.

This year the Joint Board meeting has been scheduled for Friday, July 22, 2016. It will be held at the
HBMWD Ruth Headquarters Office at 1:00 p.m. The meeting will be preceded by lunch at noon.

We would like to extend an invitation to you to attend both the lunch and the Joint Board meeting. As always,
we will include time for and invite updates and discussion from various agencies. An agenda will be sent out
prior to the meeting with more details.

After the Joint Board meeting, a brief meeting will be held which will meet the requirements by the Federal
Energy Regulatory Agency (FERC) to have face-to-face meetings with emergency responders on our
Emergency Action Plan (EAP) contact list. For our EAP plan holders, please bring your latest copy of our
EAP which has the neon green cover and date of February 2014.

We hope you can join us.

Sincerely,
PM 0 Rl Mz M
Paul Helliker Steve Canale
General Manager General Manager
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Ruth Lake Community Services District

cc: Trinity County EAP plan holders



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRAEGTION _\“L—RAGENO._7
828 7" Street, Eureka )

Agenda for Special Joint Meeting of HBMWD Board of
Directors with the Ruth Lake Community Services District
Board of Directors
July 22, 2016

Convene at Eureka office to travel to Ruth Lake (8:30 am)
Visit Various Ruth Area Sites (10:30 a.m. — 12:00 p.m. includes boat tour)

Marina - Boat tour to inspect lake shore and facilities of interest (11:00 a.m.)

Lunch at HBMWD District Headquarters with RLCSD and Guests (12:00 p.m.)

JOINT BOARD MEETING—1:00 p.m.

Meeting of the HBMWD and RLCSD Board of Directors to discuss issues or
events regarding Ruth Lake and the buffer strip of mutual interest

1. Public Comment
2. Introductions

3. Updates from Guests:
a/ Trinity County - 5™ District Supervisor and Staff
US Forest Service
Trinity County Volunteer Fire Department and /or STAR
Ruth Lake Leaseholders Association

oo o

Any other guests

4. Ruth Lake CSD Topics
a. Aquatic Invasive Species:
1. 2015 Annual Report- discuss

2. Dept. of Boating and Waterways Quagga Prevention
Grant

3. Any issues or areas of concern — discuss
b. Lease Lots- area of concern

¢. Vehicle traffic on the buffer strip between Ruth Store and lease site
76-discuss, Blocking the access with large boulders could be a
possible solution

d. Trinity County Hazard Mitigation Plan- status update



PAGE NO. 3

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIEFTON —@ - e

BAY

828 7™ Street, Eureka R
g(&@%ss)%
Agenda for Special Joint Meeting of HBMWD Board of =0
Directors with the Ruth Lake Community Services District
Board of Directors

July 22, 2016

¥ i,

5. HBMWD Topics
a. Water Resource Planning - status report

b. Humboldt County Dam Break Plan-status update
c. Timber Management — discuss
d. Marijuana Cultivation in the Mad River Watershed

1. discussion re: current enforcement efforts
ii. inputre: ideas or needs to address

ADJOURNMENT

Immediately following the Board meeting, there will be a staff-level meeting to
discuss:

a) HBMWD'’s Emergency Action Plan for Matthews Dam via face-to-face

meeting with RLCSD, USFS, Trinity County Sheriff/OES and Fire
Department staff to discuss EAP, especially notification flow charts

Note — start times listed above are estimates and may vary due to traffic delays or length of site visits.
Members of the public are invited to address the Board on any items listed on the agenda above, or on
issues affecting the operation of the District which are within the jurisdiction of the Board. Public
comment may be limited to 5 minutes per person.

(Posted and mailed July 15, 2016)



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECT'ON"“"Q:"’ PAGE NO._

To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker’

Date: June 9, 2016

Subject: Samoa Community Services District

At the May, 2016 Board meeting, the Board discussed the request by Troy Nicolini and the Samoa
Peninsula Fire District for HBMWD’s support of the proposal to create a Community Services District, to
manage water, wastewater, recreation and other services for the Samoa Peninsula, in the area south of
Highway 255. The service area map (attached) raised some questions about the plans by the CSD to
serve the area designated as “possible expansion area.” This area is the Redwood Marine Terminal,
currently owned by the Humboldt Bay Harbor District, and is not currently in use. Itis served by the
master meter of the Town of Samoa, and will likely be separately metered as part of Danco’s
development plans. That separate meter or meters would provide service to the Harbor District, and
would be managed by the new CSD.

Staff recommends sending letter to LAFCO supporting the creation of the new CSD.



SECTION (1 7 PAGE NO. 9‘

-] e s o

Samoa PFD
Reorganization to C5D

@ Samoa Peninsule Fire District
#®  Tsunami Evacustion Shes
Water & Wastewater Service Aree
S Semoe PFD Boundary
= - Possible Expansion Area

s Rallroad

e 1 .

Samias Boat Launch/
5 ty Park




Continuing Business



secTiontt | __paceNO, L.

s s e )

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker

Date: June 9, 2016

Subject: Water Conservation Regulations

On May 18, the State Water Board adopted revisions to the emergency conservation regulations, to
allow water agencies to define the status of their water supplies and determine whether or not there is
any need for emergency conservation measures in 2016. The changes require agencies to consider
the impacts on their existing supplies of three additional years of drought, similar to the hydrologies in
2013-15. Agencies are to compare the average of their demands in 2013 and 2014 to this hydrologic
sequence, and if there is any shortage of supply in the third year (2019), the percentage below the
supply available that this demand level represents will serve as the conservation requirement the
agency will have to meet in 2016.

Wholesale water agencies will need to report to their retail agencies customers by June 15 the amount
of supply that is projected for each customer during the next three years. Retail agencies are then
required to conduct this analysis and report to the State Water Board by June 22 the status of their
supplies and demands, and any conservation level that may be necessary.

On June 3, 6 and 7, DWR and the State Water Board will conduct listening sessions on the long-term
elements of the Governor's May 9 Executive Order. | will report at the Board meeting on the June 3
session, which | plan to attend to represent our agencies.



SECTION_ij__\___, PAGE NO._

SAVE THE DATE - Public Listening Sessions

The California Department of Water Resources, State Water Resources Control Board and
the California Department of Food and Agriculture (EO State Agencies) have scheduled three
Public Listening Sessions regarding implementation of Executive Order B-37-16 (EQ) issued
by Governor Brown on May 9, 2016. The first Listening Session will focus on urban (am only)
and agricultural (pm only) directives of the EO; the second session on urban directives and
the third session on agricultural and rural water shortage contingency planning directives.

Listening Session 1: ] Friday, June 3, Sacramento, CA:
\ Urban Session 9:00 AM - 12:00 PM
Agricultural Session 1:00 PM - 4:00 PM
Listening Session 2: Monday, June 6, Los Angeles, CA: 10:00 AM - 1:00 PM
Listening Session 3: Tuesday, June 7, Tulare, CA: 9:00 AM - 12:00 PM

Meeting materials will be posted no later than 5:00 pm on June 1, 2016 at:
http://www.water.ca.gov/calendar/index.cfm?month=6&year=2016.
Please print and bring your own copies of these materials.

The meeting will include an overview from the participating EO State Agencies about the
Executive Order including key directives and agency responsibilities. The meeting will then
transition to an extensive open comment period by the public. Participants are encouraged to
identify key topics and suggestions they would like the EO State Agencies and soon to be
formed urban and agricultural stakeholder committees to consider in the coming months
during the EO implementation.

Listening Sessions - Additional Information:

Friday, June 3, Sacramento, CA

Department of Water Resources, Auditorium
1416 Ninth Street

Sacramento, CA 95814

Remote Participation Details (June 3, ONLY)
Live Audio Feed:

Monday, June 6, Los Angeles, CA

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, Headquarters Building
Board Room, First Floor

700 N. Alameda Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Tuesday, June 7, Tulare, CA

Southern California Edison, Energy Education Center
4175 South Laspina Street

Tulare, CA 93274

For reasonable accommodations contact: Kari Fraguela at (916) 653-8053

More information on the projects and the legislation can be found at the following link:
http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/conservation/

7



section T\ pacE NO.2

s e e =

Executive Order B-37-16
Listening Session
June 3, 2016
9:00 AM - 12:00 PM
Department of Water Resources, Auditorium
1416 Ninth Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
Agenda

To join via Webinar: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/1979600691952569604

Please register in advance. If you wish to provide input during the listening session, please join

the webinar.

Objectives:

e Provide an overview from participating agencies on Governor’s Executive Order B-37-16

(EO).

e Describe key projects and agency responsibilities
e Gather stakeholder input on key topics and implementation of the EO

Time Topic
8:30 AM Doors Open
9:00 AM Welcome, Introductions, Agenda Review
9:15 AM Executive Order B-37-16 Overview
e Purpose and objective
e State Agency Roles for EO implementation
e Public Process for EO implementation
Questions and Input on EO Overview and public process
10:00 AM Public Input on Implementation of Executive Order Directives
Executive Order Urban Sections
Use Water More Wisely
Eliminate Water Waste
Strengthen Local Drought Resilience
Questions have been provided to focus the discussion (See Attachment).
Public input will be taken one section at a time
11:40 Next Steps
12:00 PM Adjourn
NOTES:

Timeframes for agenda items are approximate. Meeting materials will be posted by no later than 5:00 pm June 1 at
http://www.water.ca.gov/calendar/.

If you need reasonable accommodation due to a disability or need language assistance please contact Kari Fraguela at (916)

653-8053. For further information about this agenda, please contact Stephanie Lucero at (916) 628-1042 or

slucero@ccp.csus.edu.

EO Listening Session Agenda.final



Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life

On May 9, 2016, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. issued Executive Order B-37-16. The press release stated
“Moving to bolster California’s climate and drought resilience, Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. today issued an
executive order that builds on temporary statewide emergency water restrictions to establish longer-term
water conservation measures, including permanent monthly water use reporting, new permanent water use
standards in California communities and bans on clearly wasteful practices such as hosing off sidewalks,
driveways, and other hardscapes.”

This Executive Order (EQ) builds on the conservation accomplished during the drought and implementation of
the Governor’s California Water Action Plan. The full text of the EO can be found online on the Department of
Water Resources (DWR) website at http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/conservation/. The directives
of the EO actions are summarized below.

Included with each section of this information sheet are questions to help focus and guide the discussion
during the listening sessions. Please read and consider these questions as well as other input in preparation
for the listening sessions.

Use Water More Wisely

DWR and the State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) will require monthly reporting by urban
water suppliers on a permanent basis. This includes information regarding water use, conservation and
enforcement. Through a public process and working with partners such as urban water suppliers, local
governments, and environmental groups, DWR and the Water Board will develop new water use efficiency
targets as part of a long-term conservation framework for urban water agencies. These targets go beyond the
20 percent reduction in per capita urban water use by 2020 that was embodied in SB X7-7 of 2009, and will be
customized to fit the unique conditions of each urban water supplier.

Deliverables: DWR and the Water Board will publicly release a draft long-term conservation framework
by January 10, 2017. This framework will include new water use targets based on strengthened standards
for indoor residential water use, outdoor irrigation, Cll water use, and distribution system water loss. The
EO requires that these new targets are customized for each urban water supplier.

Questions for Listening Sessions

1. What factors should be considered in developing the new standard based water use targets
and customizing them for each urban water supplier?

2. How should the four standards listed in the EO be used to identify and determine those new
water use targets and how urban water suppliers would implement them?

3. How should existing SBX 2020 targets, be considered in determining new targets?

Eliminate Water Waste

The EO directs the Water Board to prohibit a number of practices that waste potable water, and directs the
Water Board and DWR to minimize system leaks, accelerate data collection, improve system management, and
prioritize capital projects that reduce water waste. The California Energy Commission (CEC) and California
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) also have EO roles in eliminating water waste.

1

Listening Session Fact Sheet
Final_ Updated June 1, 2016



SECTION_t | _ PAGE No. 5

Deliverables: The Water Board and DWR will take actions to minimize water system leaks across the
state that continue to waste large amounts of water. The CPUC will take actions to minimize leaks, and
CEC will certify innovative water conservation and water loss detection technologies.

Questions for Listening Sessions

4. What actions should the State and/or urban water suppliers take to accelerate leak detection
and repair?

5. How can the State Agencies contribute or support local efforts to identify leaks and reduce
related potable water loss through leaks?

6. What key data should urban water suppliers be responsible to develop, and what data should
the State provide?

Strengthen Local Drought Resilience

In consultation with urban water suppliers, local governments, environmental groups, and other partners,
DWR will strengthen standards for local Water Shortage Contingency Plans, which are part of the Urban Water
Management Plans that water districts must submit every five years. Under new strengthened standards,
districts must plan for droughts lasting at least five years, as well as more frequent and severe periods of
drought. These plans must be actionable, so that districts can turn to them to guide their drought response.

Deliverables: DWR shall publicly release the updated draft requirements by January 10, 2017. For areas
not covered by the Water Shortage Contingency Plan, DWR will work with counties to improve drought
planning for small water suppliers and rural communities.

Questions for Listening Sessions

7. After five years of drought conditions, how can water shortage contingency plans
requirements be improved and strengthened to make the plans a more effective tool for
urban water suppliers to respond to future droughts?

8. Which elements of a water shortage contingency plan requirements are conducive for
developing uniform statewide standards, and which requirements should be more flexible to
account for local conditions?

9. How can small supplier and rural community drought planning be improved and
strengthened?

Improve Agricultural Water Use Efficiency and Drought Planning

DWR, working with the California Department of Food and Agriculture (CDFA), will update existing
requirements for Agricultural Water Management Plans so that irrigation districts quantify their customers'
water use efficiency and plan for water supply shortages.

Current law requires agricultural water districts serving 25,000 acres or more to file such plans. The EO
increases the number of irrigation districts who must file water management plans by lowering the threshold
to irrigation districts serving 10,000 acres or more. DWR will check the plans to ensure they quantify
conservation efforts and adequately plan for water shortages.

2

Listening Session Fact Sheet
Final_ Updated June 1, 2016



SECTION_Yt| PAGENO._(/___

Deliverables: The Water Board and DWR will work with water suppliers to accelerate data collection,
improve water system management, and prioritize capital projects to reduce water waste. DWR and CDFA
will seek public input on the updated standards, and release a public draft of proposed changes by
January 10, 2017.

Questions for Listening Sessions

10. How could the Agricultural Water Management Planning requirements (AWMPs) better
identify local measures and practices to improve water use efficiency?

11. How could the AWMP better quantify improvements in water use efficiency?

12. The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires local Groundwater Sustainable
Agencies to complete a water balance for the groundwater basin. Should water balances be
part of AWMPs?

13. Are there ways the AWMP reporting requirements can be streamlined with other reporting
requirements including SGMA and the Irrigated Lands Program?

Compliance Methods

To ensure compliance with the provisions of the EO, DWR, Water Board, and CPUC will work together
to develop methods which could include technical and financial assistance, regulatory oversight and
enforcement mechanisms.

Stakeholder Engagement Process and Schedule

DWR, Water Board, CDFA, CPUC, and CEC as members of a State Agency Team are working together
to carry out the EO and will convene venues to engage stakeholders in the process including urban
water suppliers, agricultural water suppliers, environmental organizations, local governments, tribes,
and other partners. The State Agency Team is convening public Listening Session on June 3, 6, and 7,
2016 to describe the Executive Order and receive initial public comments on its implementation.

The State Agency Team will engage stakeholders to inform the development of the deliverables listed
above. The stakeholder engagement process and schedule are being developed and will be posted
online at: http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/conservation

The questions listed above focus on specific EO actions for which the State Agencies are seeking
feedback; comments or input on items not specified may be discussed at the Listening Sessions or
submitted to: WUE@water.ca.gov.

A | cdfa

EALIFORNIA

st
Wat"er Boa;rqs CALIFORNIA DEPARTHENT OF

s FOOD & AGRICULTURE

@Y. CALIFORNIA
k ENERGY COMMISSION

3
Listening Session Fact Sheet

Final_Updated June 1, 2016



secTion 2 PacENo, |

] ——

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
To: Board of Directors
From: Paul Helliker
Date: June 9, 2016
Subject: Water Resource Planning (WRP) — Status Report

The purpose of this memo is to summarize recent activities and introduce next steps for discussion.

1) Top-Tier Water Use Options

a) Local Sales

GHD prepared a grant application for State Revolving Loan funds for further design and
analysis of pipeline extensions to the north and south. They have submitted some parts of
the application, but are awaiting assignment of a grant officer to whom to pose questions
before they complete the financial sections of the application.

b) Transport
Here is the latest from Bob Simpson (email dated June 1, 2016):
“Unfortunately, | am unable to proceed. The only possible way to reduce transport cost is to
build a floating platform off the end of the ocean outfall line to make it possible to load Super
Tanker class vessels. These vessels would serve the middle east, Asia and Africa where
water is scarce. Fred Smith of FedEx took a look at the opportunity. For personal
reasons Fred declined. With that said, | am afraid | have exhausted my resources.”

A meeting of the Transport Committee was held on June 7, a report from which will be
provided at the Board meeting.

c) Instream Flow Dedication
| re-sent my request for a meeting to Tony LaBanca, the CDFW manager who supervises
the staff who participate in our work on streamflow enhancement. The purpose of the
discussion would be to clarify what needs to be done to ensure that we and CDFW are in
synch on the next steps for streamflow enhancement dedications and any analysis that
might need to be done.



New Business



secTION L | _ PAGE NO._

Memo To: Board of Directors

From: Thavisak Syphanthong

Date: June 2, 2016

Subject: 2015 Urban Water Management Plan & Public Hearing
Introduction

As previously discussed, the District has been preparing its 2015 Urban Water Management Plan
(UWMP or Plan). UWMPs are prepared by California's urban water suppliers who either
provide 3,000 acre-feet of water annually or serve 3,000 or more connections.

The purpose of the UWMP is to support long-term resource planning and ensure adequate water
supplies are available to meet existing and future water demands. Water suppliers are required to
assess the reliability of their water sources over a 20-year planning horizon considering normal,
singly dry years and multiple dry years.

The plans are to be prepared every 5 years and submitted to the Department of Water Resources
(DWR) for review. The 2015 UWMPs are required to be adopted by July 1, 2016 and then
submitted to DWR.

DWR reviews the plans for compliance with the requirements identified in the Urban Water
Management Planning Act. Some important sections of the UWMP include water supply
reliability, water conservation and water shortage contingency planning.

A copy of the District’s 2015 UWMP including all appendices is available for public review at
the District’s main office in Eureka and available on the District’s website at
http://www.hbmwd.com/district-regulatory-plans.

Legislative Requirements

The UWMP Act has emphasis on water conservation and water use reduction targets per SBX7-7
Water Conservation Bill of 2009. The main focus of SBX7-7 is achievement of a 20% reduction
in statewide urban water use in gallons per capita per day (gped) by 2020. Water use and water
use projections are reported in urban water suppliers’ 2010 and 2015 UWMPs.

Requirements of SBX7-7 affect retail water suppliers more than wholesale water suppliers like
the District. Retail water suppliers are required to determine base daily per capita water use,
urban water use targets, and interim water use targets. The District only has to support its
wholesale customers in their water conservation efforts and meeting their water use targets.

In order to be eligible for any state water loan or grant, water agencies need to meet the
requirements of SBX7-7 and have a UWMP that has been deemed “complete” by DWR.
Meeting these requirements is especially important for the District to be able to apply for
additional SRF loans, Prop 1 and Prop 84 grants.

I

o



_PAGE NO. __o~

————— o o e o s

Professional Reviews
The District hired Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (KJC) to conduct a final review of the entire plan

for compliance with the requirements of the UWMP Act and amending legislation.

Related Activities and Next Steps

The District has published the Notice of the Public Hearing for the 2015 UWMP in three local
newspapers.

The District has sent out notification of time and date of the Public Hearing to all its municipal
customers and to agencies with land-use planning authority within the District boundaries.

Resolution No. 2016-06, “Adopting the District’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan,” is
attached.

The Public Hearing to receive public input on the District’s 2015 UWMP is scheduled for the
June 9, 2016 Board meeting.

Following the Public Hearing, the Board will consider adoption of the District’s 2015 UWMP.
Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board conduct the Public Hearing; consider and approve the District’s
2015 Urban Water Management Plan and adopt Resolution 2016-06.



e m . 1 e g .

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOX 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

Fax 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM

Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BARBARA HECATHORN, PRESIDENT
ALDARON LAIRD, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
SHERIWOO, DIRECTOR

NEAL LATT, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
PAUL HELLIKER

May 27, 2016

To: Agencies with Land Use Planning Authority:
Kevin Hamblin, Director, Humboldt County Community Development Services Dept.
Robert Wall, Humboldt County Planning Dept.
David Loya, Director, City of Arcata Community Development Dept.
Rob Holmlund, Director, City of Eureka Community Development Dept.

Municipal Customer Representatives:
Mark Andre, City of Arcata

Brian Gerving, City of Eureka

David Hull, Humboldt CSD

Greg Orsini, McKinleyville CSD

Amanda Mager, City of Blue Lake

Rick Hanger & Rebecca Crow, Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD
Chris Drop, Manila CSD

Re: Notice of Public Hearing for HBMWD’s 2015 UWMP

In a previous letter dated January 13, 2016 sent to the District's municipal customers, Humboldt Bay Municipal
Water District gave notification that we were in the process of reviewing and updating our 2015 Urban Water
Management Plan (UWMP). We have finished our draft 2015 UWMP and will hold a public hearing on
Thursday, June 9™, 2016, at 10:00 am, at the District Office, 828 7th Street in Eureka.

The UWMP establishes HBMWD's compliance with California Water Code, Division 6, Part 2.6, for all urban
water suppliers that provide municipal water to more than 3,000 customers or supply its customers with more
than 3,000 acre-feet of water. The purpose of the UWMP is to support long-term resource planning and ensure
adequate water supplies are available to meet existing and future water demands. Water suppliers are required
to assess the reliability of their water sources over a 20-year planning horizon considering normal, dry, and
multiple dry years. Some important sections of the UWMP include water supply reliability, water conservation
and water shortage contingency planning.

The UWMP was prepared for the State of California Department of Water Resources in accordance with the
California Urban Water Management Planning Act of 1983 (AB 797) (UWMP Act) and Water Conservation Bill
of 2009 (SBX7-7) as amended. Requirements of SBX7-7 affect retail water suppliers more than wholesale
water suppliers such as the District. Retail water suppliers are required to determine base daily per capita water
use, urban water use targets, and interim water use targets. The District must support its municipal customers
in their water conservation efforts and meeting their water use targets.



secTion - | _ pace NO._Lf__

The District would like to thank its municipal customers and the agencies with land use planning authority within
the District for working together in helping the District and its four larger municipal customers with our respective
UWMPs. The District's UWMP has been available for public review at the District Office since May 25, 2016.

If you have any questions, please call me at 443-5018.

St St

Thavisak Syphanthong
Program & Regulatory Analyst

Sincerely,

Cc: Jason Patton, McKinleyville CSD
Dan Duncan, City of Eureka
Rachel Hernandez, City of Arcata



SECTION = | _PAGENO. 5

Resolution No. 2016-06

Resolution of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Board of Directors
Adopting the District’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan

Whereas, the Urban Water Management Planning Act of 1983, as amended (California Water
Code Division 6, Part 2.6) requires the preparation and submission to the California Department
of Water Resources of an Urban Water Management Plan by all water suppliers that qualify as
urban water suppliers as defined by the act; and

Whereas, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District qualifies as an urban water supplier as
defined by the Urban Water Management Planning Act; and

Whereas, the Urban Water Management Planning Act as amended requires retail urban water
suppliers to address components of the Water Conservation Bill of 2009 (SBX7-7), which sets an
overall goal of reducing the state’s per capita urban water use by 20% by December 31, 2020, for
which the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District must provide support; and

Whereas, the Urban Water Management Planning Act requires the submission of Urban Water
Management Plans in years ending in 5 and 0; and

Whereas, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District last prepared and submitted an Urban
Water Management Plan in 2010; and

Whereas, the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan must be adopted by July 1, 2016, after public
review and hearing, and filed with the Department of Water Resources within thirty days of
adoption; and

Whereas, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District has therefore prepared and made available
for public review a draft of the Urban Water Management Plan, and a properly noticed public
meeting regarding the Plan was held by the Board of Directors on June 9, 2016.

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Directors of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
adopts the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan and authorizes its submission to the California
Department of Water Resources.

PASSED and ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Humboldt
Bay Municipal Water District this 9™ day of June, 2016 by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Attest:

Barbara Hecathorn, Board President J. Bruce Rupp, Board Secretary/Treasurer

B el



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: Sherrie Sobol

Date: June 2, 2016

Re: Agenda Review Committee

Background:
The current charter for the Agenda Review Committee states:

The agenda review committee is composed of the Board President,
Secretary/Treasurer, and the General Manager. The purpose of this committee
is to meet immediately prior to the monthly Board of Directors meeting to
conduct a brief review of the agenda. It is intended to allow those responsible
for presiding over the Board meeting an opportunity to become fully oriented to
the posted agenda.

Current Situation:

Director Rupp posed the question of why the Secretary/Treasurer is involved since the
purpose of the meeting is to alert the President or whoever manages the meeting of any
potential controversies and the importance of particular items on the agenda.

Staff Recommendation:

Board members continue to see value in a discussion between the General Manager and
the Board President (or whoever will chair the upcoming Board meeting) about the
items on the meeting agenda. However, it does not appear necessary to continue to
have a standing committee to perform this function, as the meeting would normally be
just between the President (or meeting chair) and the General Manager. One other
Board member could participate in such discussions without the discussion qualifying as
a “meeting” for the purposes of complying with the requirements of the Brown Act, as
long as such participation is on an ad hoc basis. Staff recommends the Board
discontinue the Agenda Review Committee.




SECTION T Z_PAGENO._| ___

Landslide Investigation — Matthews Dam Vicinity

Mad River Ranger District, Six Rivers National Forest

Prepared by: Fred Levitan, Six Rivers National Forest Geologist

May 3, 2016



SECTION = 3_ PAGE NO.__

Landslide Investigation — Matthews Dam Vicinity Mad River Ranger District, Six Rivers
National Forest

Executive Summary

Renewed landslide activity on hillslopes above and to the west of the left abutment of the R.W.
Matthews Dam on Ruth Lake was observed in the winter of 2016, following wildfire in summer
2015 and a wet winter season. Significant landslide activity had occurred previously in 1998,
when slide debris including earth materials and large trees were deposited on the dam
powerhouse access road. The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) requested that
the Forest Service assist in evaluating the landslide activity, in part because it appeared that
forest road drainage might be promoting slope instability. Field review by Forest Service earth
scientists corroborated the findings of previous geologic investigations, namely that: 1) A large,
dormant deep-seated landslide occupies the hillslope above the left dam abutment, although
there is no evidence of contemporary movement of this slide and it likely presents no threat to
the dam; and 2) there is a nested sequence of younger, shallow active landslides on the same
hillslope that appear to have a history of chronic episodic movement. The most recent of these
was involved in the 1998 slide event, and experienced some renewed activity during the winter
of 2015-2016. It appears that 2015 wildfire effects on landsliding were minimal. Road drainage
from Road 1S06A at the crest of the hillslope has been delivering surface runoff directly to the
most active portion of the hillslope and may have affected slide movement. Road drainage was
redirected away from the slide-prone hillslope by Forest Service heavy equipment work in
February 2016, and should no longer directly affect slide behavior. Episodic movement of the
shallow landslides above the powerhouse road is likely to continue in response to wet winters,
and continue to affect the powerhouse road at times. This may be best regarded as a long-term
maintenance item — no serious threat to facilities beyond the road grade is anticipated. Clearing
of dead and down timber from the slide surface might reduce the volume of debris eventually
delivered by the slide, but the sensitivity of the terrain and current Forest Service policy
regarding heavy equipment operations on unstable ground may preclude doing so.

Recommendations going forward include: 1) continued monitoring of landslide activity (existing
survey monuments and piezometer, regular foot traverses, and possible improved imaging and
new instrumentation); 2) re-initiation of engineering geologic review when new landslide
activity is observed; and 3) additional improvement of forest road drainage to maintain its
durability and effectiveness. The Forest Service looks forward to continued cooperation with
HBMWD in monitoring and managing the landslide-prone area to minimize impacts to water
quality, to HBMWD facilities and to both agencies’ customers.

I

o s v



Engineering



SEGTIOND| C PAGENO._L___

ot s )

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSeEx 707-822-2918

Fax 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM

Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BARBARA HECATHORN, PRESIDENT
ALDARON LAIRD, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
SHERI WOO, DIRECTOR

NEAL LATT, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
PAUL HELLIKER May 19, 2016

Gordon Leppig

California Department of Fish and Wildlife
Northern Region, Coastal Habitat Conservation
619 2" Street

Eureka, CA 95501-0494

Re: Subnotification for Routine Maintenance Activity- Collector 1 Lateral Rehabilitation Project

Dear Mr. Leppig:

The purpose of this letter is to provide subnotification to the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife (CDFW) for routine maintenance activities, pursuant to Section 3.2.1 of the Long-term
Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement (LTSAA) dated January 6, 2012 between Humboldt
Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) and the CDFW.

Description of Maintenance Activity

The maintenance activity proposed by HBMWD is authorized by Section 2G of the LTSAA,
described as:

"Gaining access to and maintaining Ranney collectors, which may involve building temporary
gravel structures in the bed of the Mad River to access the collectors."

Attached is a memo from Pat Kaspari of GHD to David Manthorme at CDFW, dated February
13, 2015, which details the maintenance activities. Also attached is a letter from Carol Rische of
HBMWD to David Manthorne at CDFW, dated April 2, 2015, which confirms that Section 10
(d) of the LTSAA requires that maintenance work performed under Section 2G be performed
between May 15 and October 15. HBWMD plans to complete work on the bed of the Mad River
by October 15. However, if access on the river bed is needed beyond October 15, HBMWD will
consult with CDFW well in advance of that date, to allow for any amendments to this
subnotification to be reviewed and approved by CDFW.



SEGTION) | COPAGE NO. .7

CDFW is accorded 15 working days from the date of this subnotification, to allow sufficient time
for CDFW to schedule field and/or office review of the proposed maintenance activity.

Thank you for your assistance in facilitating this activity. If we can provide any further
information, please feel free to contact me at helliker@hbmwd.com or (707) 443-5018.

Sincerely,

Paul Helliker
General Manager

Enclosures:
» Letter to CDFW (4/2/2015)
¢ Memo to CDFW from GHD (2/13/15)
* Site Plan Map showing Collector 1 location

cc: Jane Arnold and Mark Wheetley, DFW w/encls.
Dale Davidsen and Steve Marshall, HBMWD w/o encls.



sECTION. |h PAGENO._|.__

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT

AGENDA ITEM NO.

For the meeting of: May 24, 2016

Updates on the Annie & Mary Trail and the June 4, 2016 Trails Summit, and

Supplemental Budget for Bicycles & Trailways Program (1710715), (4/5 Vote

Date May 18, 2016
To: Board of Supervisors
From: Supervisor Mark Lovelace
Subject:

Required)
RECOMMENDATION(S):

That the Board of Supervisors:
1. Receives an update from Public Works on planning for the Annie & Mary Trail and
discussions with the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District regarding a potential nexus
with the Water District’s pipeline project across the Mad River near Glendale;
2. Receives an update regarding the Trails Summit event scheduled for June 4, 2016;
3. Adopts the following supplemental budget for FY 2015-16:

Revenue:

Expenditure:

1710715-621020

1710715-2118
1710715-3928

Services for Other Agencies

Professional & Special Services
Expense Transfers

$30,000

$27,000
$3,000

SOURCE OF FUNDING: Bicycles & Trailways Program (1710715); Humboldt County Association

of Governments

DISCUSSION:

The Annie & Mary Trail is a proposed multi-use trail connecting the cities of Blue Lake and Arcata
along a route following the former Arcata & Mad River Railroad line, currently owned by the North

Prepared by Hank Seemann (Public Works) Signature
REVIEW
Auditor County Counsel Personnel Risk Manager Other
TYPE OF ITEM: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT
Consent Upon motion of Supervisor Seconded by Supervisor
Departmental
Public Hearing Ayes
XX Other Board Initiated (15 min) Nays
PREVIOUS ACTION/REFERRAL: Abstain
Absent
Board Order No.
and carried by those members present, the Board hereby approves the
Meeting of: recommended action contained in this Board report.

Dated:

By:

Kathy Hayes, Clerk of the Board



“CTION_| 1) PAGE NO, I

Coast Railroad Authority. Since 2011, Public Works has been collaborating with the Humboldt
County Association of Governments (HCAOG), City of Blue Lake, Friends of the Annie & Mary
Trail, and other stakeholders in an effort to advance the planning for this trail, which has been a
regional goal for nearly 20 years. In 2012, Public Works completed an engineering study of the
railroad bridge crossing the Mad River at Glendale to evaluate the potential for rehabilitating the
bridge and upgrading it for use as a trail crossing. At that time, there were also initial discussions with
the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (Water District) regarding the concept of coordinating the
development of a trail crossing in conjunction with the Water District’s project to replace the existing
water supply pipeline which is attached to the railroad bridge. This concept was re-visited at the
Water District’s board meeting on May 12, 2016, as the Water District is preparing to make a decision
on the scope of their pipeline replacement project. Public Works will provide an update on
discussions with the Water District and other planning efforts related to the Annie & Mary Trail.

Public Works, HCOAG, the Humboldt Trails Council, and Redwood Community Action Agency are
sponsoring a Trails Summit event on the morning of Saturday, June 4, 2016, at the Wharfinger
Building in Eureka. The event includes a meet-and-greet gathering (9:30 to 10 am), a program with
speakers from local public agencies and the Volunteer Trail Stewards (10 to 11 am), and an open
house (11 am to noon). The Trails Summit is intended to celebrate the progress by various agencies
and organizations in advancing trail projects throughout the county, and provide updates on projects
currently in development. There will also be information on opportunities for the public to get
involved in supporting trails and expansion of the local trail network.

This item includes a supplemental budget request to incorporate funds provided by HCAOG to Public
Works for (1) coordination of the Trails Summit ($5,000), and (2) sponsoring a preliminary analysis of
the potential for trail projects between Eureka and the Eel River Valley ($25,000).

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The proposed actions will not impact the General Fund. The supplemental budget incorporates a total
of $30,000 in funds being provided by HCAOG for specified tasks.

The requested action will advance two of the Board of Supervisors’ core roles: providing for and
maintaining infrastructure, and creating opportunities for improved safety and health.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, HCAOG

ALTERNATIVES TO STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Board discretion

ATTACHMENTS: Flier for June 4, 2016 Trails Summit




SECTIOND|.C_ PAGENO._|___

P e e e ey

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 SEVENTH STREET, PO B0x 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095

OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

Fax 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE @HBMWD.COM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BARBARA HECATHORN, PRESIDENT
ALDARON LAIRD, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
NEAL LATT, DIRECTOR

SHERI WOO, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
PAUL HELLIKER
May 27, 2016

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services
Hazard Mitigation Grants Program Unit

3650 Schriever Avenue

Mather, CA 95655

RE: 12-kV Switchgear Relocation Project Match Commitment Letter

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer,
As part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program process, a local funding match is required. This
letter serves as Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Districts commitment to meet the matching fund

requirements for the 12-kV Switchgear Relocation Project under the Hazard Mitigation Grant
Program.

Name of funding source: Municipal customer rate payers.
Funding type: Wholesale water rates.
The local matching fund requirement is $450,000 and is available as of July 1, 2016.

If additional federal funds are requested, an additional local match fund commitment letter is required
to be submitted.

Please contact John Friedenbach, Business Manager, by phone at (707) 443-5018 or email at
friedenbach@hbmwd.com if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

!Pfu«ﬂ Hol fv~

Paul Helliker, General Manager




JPAGENO, -

770 s o s,

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095

OFFICE 707-443-5018 EssEx 707-822-2918

FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE @HEMWD.COM

s e e

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BARBARA HECATHORN, PRESIDENT

ALDARON LAIRD, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER

NEAL LATT, DIRECTOR

SHERI WOO, DIRECTOR May 27, 2016

GENERAL MANAGER
PAUL HELLIKER

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services
Hazard Mitigation Grants Program Unit

3650 Schriever Avenue

Mather, CA 95655

RE: 12-kV Switchgear Relocation Project Maintenance Letter

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer,

This letter serves to confirm that the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is committed to perform
the necessary maintenance for the entire useful life of this project (30 years) once completed. The
District allocates an annual budget which will allow maintenance to occur as needed to ensure the
new switchgear remains operational and in good repair.

Entity responsible for the maintenance: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Maintenance Task: Inspect and clean switchgear components

Maintenance Schedule and Cost: District staff spends an average of 32 per hours per year
inspecting and cleaning switchgear components, which equates to a cost of $800/year at a rate of
$25/hour. Inspections take place monthly, and the switchgear components are thoroughly cleaned
annually. The District hires a contractor every two years to clean the switchgear components for
approximately $3,240 per occurrence ($1,620/year). These maintenance activities will continue at the
same schedule and cost for the new switchgear. The average annual cost for switchgear

maintenance is $2,420/year.
Associated Budget: $2,420/year

Please contact Dale Davidsen, Superintendent, by phone at (707) 822-2918 or email at
supt@hbmwd.com if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Paul Helliker, General Manager




Financial



SECTIONJ 2 PAGE NO. |

e S e e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

To: Board of Directors
Date: June 1, 2016
From: John Friedenbach, Business Manager

RE: Resolution for Annual Limit for Appropriations (Resolution 2016-5)

The California Constitution Article XlII (b) requires the adoption of an annual resolution
limiting the amount of appropriations from taxes to a certain base level plus annual
increases based on per capital income and population increases. The State
Department of Finance has provided the District with these annual Price and Population
figures for the fiscal 2016/17 year.

Staff is recommending Board adoption of the attached Resolution 2016-5 to establish
the required appropriations limit for the 2016/2017 fiscal year.

e o et



SECTIONJ %0~ PAGE N0, 7~

Resolution 2016-5
Resolution of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Board of Directors
Adopting Article XIII (b) Limit for Appropriations from Taxes
Fiscal Year 2016/2017

Whereas, Article XIII (b) of the State Constitution limits the amount of
appropriations from taxes to a certain base level plus annual increases based on
per capita income and population increases; and,

Whereas, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District has received annual
updates from the State as to the allowed increase levels; and,

Whereas, Section 7910 of the California Government Code requires formal
adoption, by resolution, of the annual appropriations limit.

Therefore be it resolved:

That the appropriations from taxes limit for fiscal year 2016/2017 is hereby set at
$1,144,583; and

That this resolution shall become effective 45 days from the date of its adoption.
Passed, approved and adopted this 9" day of June 2016 by the following votes:
Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

Attest:

Barbara Hecathorn, President

J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



SECTIOND 90~ PAGE NO..3

wNT O
* FRRA
= 1.;’
AT

() z

I g
. "IE:_EIPﬁRTMIIiFT QF EpMunND G, BROWN JR. = GOVERNOR
LiFor™ G STATE CAPITOL B ROOM 1145 B SACRAMENTO CA H 95814-4998 B www.DOF.CA.GOV

Dear Fiscal Officer:

Subject: Price Factor and Population Information

Appropriations Limit

The California Revenue and Taxation Code, section 2227, requires the Department of Finance
(Finance) to transmit an estimate of the percentage change in population to local governments.
Each local jurisdiction must use their percentage change in population factor for January 1, 2016,
in conjunction with a change in the cost of living, or price factor, to calculate their appropriations
limit for fiscal year 2016-17. Attachment A provides the change in California’s per capita personal
income and an example for utilizing the price factor and population percentage change factor to
calculate the 2016-17 appropriations limit. Attachment B provides the city and unincorporated
county population percentage change. Attachment C provides the population percentage change
for counties and their summed incorporated areas. The population percentage change data
excludes federal and state institutionalized populations and military populations.

Population Percent Change for Special Districts

Some special districts must establish an annual appropriations limit. The Revenue and Taxation
Code, section 2228 provides additional information regarding the appropriations limit.

Article Xl B, section 9(C) of the California Constitution exempts certain special districts from the
appropriations limit calculation mandate. The Code and the California Constitution can be
accessed at the following website: http:/leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes.xhtml.

Special districts required by law to calculate their appropriations limit must present the calculation
as part of their annual audit. Any questions special districts have on this requirement should be
directed to their county, district legal counsel, or the law itself. No state agency reviews the local
appropriations limits.

Population Certification

The population certification program applies only to cities and counties. Revenue and Taxation
Code section 11005.6 mandates Finance to automatically certify any population estimate that
exceeds the current certified population with the State Controller’s Office. Finance will certify
the higher estimate to the State Controller by June 1, 2016.

Please Note: Prior year's city population estimates may be revised.

If you have any questions regarding this data, please contact the Demographic Research Unit at
(916) 323-4086.

MICHAEL COHEN

Director
By:

AMY COSTA
Chief Deputy Director

Attachment



SECTION J % PAGE no.

s 3 5 e 0 e

May 2016
Attachment A

A. Price Factor: Article XlII B specifies that local jurisdictions select their cost of living
factor to compute their appropriation limit by a vote of their governing body. The cost
of living factor provided here is per capita personal income. If the percentage
change in per capita personal income is selected, the percentage change to be used
in setting the fiscal year 2016-17 appropriation limit is:

Per Capita Personal Income

Fiscal Year Percentage change
(FY) over prior year
2016-17 5.37
B. Following is an example using sample population change and the change in

California per capita personal income as growth factors in computing a 2016-17
appropriation limit.

2016-17:

Per Capita Cost of Living Change = 5.37 percent
Population Change = 0.90 percent

Per Capita Cost of Living converted to a ratio: 537 +100 =1.0537
100

Population converted to a ratio: 0.20 + 100 =1.0090
100

Calculation of factor for FY 2016-17;
1.0537 x 1.0090 = 1.0632



Fiscal Year 2016-17

County
City

Humboldt

Arcata

Blue Lake
Eureka
Ferndale
Fortuna

Rio Dell
Trinidad
Unincorporated

County Total

Percent Change
2015-2016

0.46
0.70
-0.17
-0.07
-0.29
0.06
-0.27
0.07

0.05

Attachment B
Annual Percent Change in Population Minus Exclusions*
January 1, 2015 to January 1, 2016 and Total Population, January 1, 2016

18,085
1,278
26,811
1,435
11,882
3,414
368
71,577

134,850

inus Exclusions ---
1-1-16

18,169
1,287
26,765
1,434
11,848
3,418
367
71,628

134,914

SECTION D & O

St g e

Total
Population

1-1-2016

18,169
1,287
26,765
1,434
11,848
3,416
367
71,830

135,116

PAGENO. D ___

*Exclusions include residents on federal military installations and group quarters residents in state mental institutions, state
and federal correctional institutions and veteran homes.



SECTION-JJ C PAGE No, g

o e

Limit for Appropriations from taxes (Prop 4 Calculation)
Article XIIT (b) of the State Constitution limits the amount of appropriations from taxes.
California State Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit (DRU) provides Price and Population information
Information will be available on website after May 1st http://www.dof.ca.gov/Research/Research.asp

Calculation of 16/17 Limit
$1,228,692.78 X 1.0632 = $1,306,346.17

Instructions: Multiply prior year limit by current year factor

Humboldt County
0.05 + 100 divided by 100 = 1.00050
1.0537 x 1.00050 E 1.05423
$1,085709.11 x 1.05423 = $1,144,583.70

Instructions: Convert Humboldt County Percent change to ratio (Humboldt County Percent change + 100 divided by 100)
Multiply State percentage change by Humboldt County Percent change. Example 1.0442 x 1.0044 = 1.0488
Multiply prior year Humboldt County limit by resulting factor (1.0488).

G:\Accounting\Budget\FYE 063017\Prop 4 Calc Appropriations Limit



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: June 3, 2016

Re: Mid-Year 2015/16 Budget Review and Modification

Staff has conducted a mid-year project budget analysis for projects that are charged to our Muni
customers. Using a minimum threshold of $1,000, various projects have been identified that either have
money left over after completion or are not going to be performed during our current fiscal year 2015/16.
The amount available from these projects is being determined in coordination with the Maintenance Staff
at Essex. Due to the short timeframe between the end of May and Blue Book assembly today, additional
time is required to finalize the accounting for several of the affected projects and coordination with Essex
staff. Therefore, staff will provide a list of these projects and corresponding budget revision early next
week prior to the Board meeting.

The District has a multi-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Implementation of the CIP requires
significant financial resources. In order to minimize the impact in any one fiscal year, staff uses a
combination of funding mechanisms including grants, loans and Advance Charges. Staff has
communicated the process of budget re-allocation to enhance the Advance Charges funding mechanism
for our larger CIP projects to our Muni customers and they have agreed to the process. This minimizes
large fluctuations in Municipal customer charges and the upward pressure on retail rates.

Our next scheduled major CIP project is the Collector 1 & 1A rehabilitation. The amount of grant funding
(5667,000) obtained for the Collector 1 & 1A will be approximately 30% of construction costs. The
magnitude of the additional funding required for these projects dictates a multi-year approach. Therefore,
staff recommends that any unused project budget from our current fiscal year be re-allocated to certain
authorized but unbudgeted projects by the Board and any net remainder to “Advance Charges” as defined
under Ordinance 16 for our Collector 1 & 1A rehabilitation project and the Ruth Cabin replacement
project.

As you may recall from our previous staff discussions regarding the sources of funding for the Collector 1
& 1A project, the Board authorized the use of the DWFP reserve for this project. By re-allocating unused
project budget to Advance Charges now for this project, a smaller amount of the DWFP reserve will be
necessary, thereby making any unused DWFP reserves available for other CIP projects.

Under our Capital Improvement Plan, the next collector rehabilitation project was to be Collector 2. We
have collected Advanced Charges in the current and prior fiscal years. The District had applied for a Prop
84 Round 3 grant for a substantial amount of funding for the Collector 2 project. We were not granted
any funding from that application. Given the yield from the Collector 3 rehabilitation and the projected
increased yield from the Collector 1 rehabilitation, staff is recommending that the Collector 2 project be
postponed until the actual yield from the Collector 1 project is known. In addition, there are limitations
under Ordinance 16 for the collection of Advance Charges. The project must exceed $250,000 in cost and
the project must be completed within 3 years of collecting the Advance Charges. This would require that
the Collector 2 project be completed in the 2017/18 fiscal year. And finally, with the update to our CIP
that is in progress, staff assisted by Bartle Wells will be analyzing possible financing mechanisms for the



SECTIONOAL) PAGE NO.__ 2

next phase of major projects scheduled in the CIP. Therefore, staff recommends that the Collector 2
Advance Charges be re-designated to the Collector 1 & 1A rehabilitation project.

There are some maintenance projects with low actual expenditures relative to their budgeted amounts.
All maintenance projects have been or will be completed with some minor carryovers and staff can
provide details on specific projects if the Board is interested.

Recommendation and Action

Due to the short amount of time between the end of May and the Blue Book preparation on June 3" staff
requires additional time to complete the re-allocation analysis in coordination with the Maintenance Staff
at Essex. Staff will present a recommendation that the Board consider and approve modifying our current
2015/16 project budget at the Board meeting.

Staff further recommends that the 2014/15 Advance Charges for Collector 2 in the amount of $125,000
be re-designated as Advance Charges for the Collector 1 & 1A rehabilitation project.



SECTIONJAAC, PAGE NO._|

] ¢ LU o e

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: June 3, 2016

Re: 2016/17 Budget Summary

Staff will make a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the fiscal year 2016/2017 District Budget. The
presentation will include: 1) a brief recap of the Service & Supply and Salary & Employee Benefits
components which were introduced last month; 2) revenue summary; 3) Project Budget summary, and
4) estimate of wholesale customer charges.

Service and Supply
At the May Board meeting, the Board requested additional historical expense details for the following

items: 1) Dues & Subscriptions; 2) Miscellaneous; 3) Office Expense; 4) Office Building Maintenance; 5)
Regulatory Agency Fees; and 6) Telephone. Graphs for these items will be included in the PowerPoint
presentation for review and discussion.

Salary & Employee Benefits

One additional item has come to light since the May Board meeting presentation on the SEB budget.
The Superintendent has received notice from a Maintenance Mechanic that he intends to retire in April
2017. As you may recall, the other Maintenance Mechanic retired in April 2016. These two employees
have a combined experience with the District of 29 years. The District only has two Maintenance
Mechanic positions. So the District will lose all of the institutional knowledge of these two employees.

Five candidates were interviewed to fill the current Maintenance Mechanic vacancy and one candidate
stood out in addition to the in-house Maintenance Worker who was ultimately hired. Staff
recommends hiring an additional Maintenance Mechanic, similar to what we did for the Electrical
Technician, to facilitate transfer of District knowledge to the two new Mechanics. The Maintenance
Worker position that was vacated would remain vacant until April 2017. The District would then have
three Maintenance Mechanics and one Maintenance Worker instead of two in each job classification,
until the next Maintenance Mechanic retires in April 2017. This transitional approach would result in
a budget impact of approximately $7,500.

Project Budget
The Project Budget - Carryover Items will not be finalized until we close June’s accounting. This is the

only substantial item that will be revised after the June Board meeting.

Next Steps
The finalized budget will be presented for consideration and adoption at the July 13, 2016 Board

meeting.



SEOTION:S?QCs PAGE NO.

8 e e o} o et e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Fund Balances at May 31, 2016

Account Fund Balance at Month End AT 5-31-16 AT 5-31-15 Increase/(Decrease)

U.S. BANK ACCOUNTS

- Commercial Account - Cld General Fund Account 0.00 376.13
- Commercial Account - New General Fund Account 133,253.31 519,755.74
- Money Market Account (DWR Contract for SRF Loan) @ 297,027.29 296,668.99
- Certificate of Deposit (DWR Contract for SRF Reserve) ® 547,381.82 547,383.30
- Municipal Investor Account {Loan for Ranney & Techite Projects) ©) 0.00 50,257.15
- Prop 50 Project Account (Community Intertie Projects) 0.00 395,745.69
Subtotal 977,662.42 1,810,187.00 (832,524,58)
HUMBOLDT COUNTY:
- Investment Account 3,165,515.50 1,463,301.61
- DWFP Reserve (in accordance with Ordinance 16) @ 465,928.39 577,677.07
- MSRA Reserve [Municipal Supplemental Reserve Account) @ 417,265.78 413,941.30
- SRF Loan Payment ® 139,353.19 138,956.49
- A/B Bond Tax Account 0.00 0.00
- 1% Tax Account @ 373,738.84 366,950.63
Subtotal 4,561,805.70 2,960,827.10 1,600,978.60
_LAIF. 1,600.38 1,594.64 5.74
Cash on Hand 650.00 650.00 0.00
TOTAL CASH $ 5,541,718.50 $ 4,773,258.74 $ 768,459.76

Less: Encumbrances & Reserves (Funds Dedicated for Specific Purposes and Projects)

RESTRICTED
Municipal Customers PF2 Prior Year Reconciliation (32,965.08) (28,869.60)
1% Tax Account @ (373,738.84) (366,950.63)
Municipal Investor Account (Loan for Ranney & Techite Projects) @ 0.00 (50,257.15)
Municipal Customer Advanced Charging - Ranney Collector 1 & 1A Rehabilitation (786,784.47) (525,506.55)
Municipal Customer Advanced Charging - Ranney Collector 2 Rehabilitation (212,056.19) 0.00
DWR Reserve Fund for SRF Loan @ (547,381.82) (547,383.30)
DWR Contract Payment for SRF Loan for DWFP (Drinking Water
Filtration Plant-PF1 Charges from Munis) @ (297,027.29) (296,668.99)
- Prop 50 Project Account {Community Intertie Projects) 0.00 (395,745.69)
SUBTOTAL RESTRICTED RESERVES {Net Position (2,249,953.69) (2,211,381.91) 38,571.78
UNRESTRICTED:
Board Restricted:
Paik-Nicely Development {4,158.00) (4,158.00)
Sequoia Investments X, LLC (Hog Island Project) (4,573.50) 0.00
DWFP Reserve * @ (465,928.39) (577,677.07)
MSRA Reserve (Municipal Supplemental Reserve Account) @ (417,269.78) (413,941.30)
Unrestricted Reserves
SRF Loan Payment ® (139,353.19) (138,956.49)
Techite CalEMA Subgrantee Administrative Allowance [30,004.63) (30,766.18)
Municipal Customer Accumulation for Debt Service for US Bank
Ranney & Techite Project Loan Payment 20,794.45 14,556.75
General Fund Reserve (2,251,271.77) (1,410,934.54)
SUBTOTAL UNRESTRICTED RESERVES (Net Position} (3,291,764.81) (2,561,876.83) 729,887.98
Total Net Position {5,541,718.50) (4,773,258.74) 768,459.76

* DWFP Reserve designated Source of Funds for Techite Pipeline Replacement Project



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MAY 31, 2016 {11 MONTH - 91.7% =% ‘
AT L2016 (1 H - 91.7%) SECTION JQA’ PAGE NO, 9-

e g vt oy s ENEAslE T

MAY YTD TOTAL % OF ¥YTD TOTAL
RECEIPTS AT 5-31-16 BUDGET BUDGET AT 5-31-15
[MISCELLANEQUS RECEIPTS (RETURNED TO CUSTOMERS VIA PF2) |
RETAIL WATER SALES § 2032748 $  269,564.60 $306,000 88% $  268,619.83
SUBTOTAL RETAIL WATER SALES $ 2032748 $  269,564.60 $306,000 88% $  268,619.83
GENERAL REVENUES
INTEREST 0.00 11,661.29 $12,000 97% 10,945.82
FCSD CONTRACT FOR MAINT. & OPERATIONS 0.00 236,541.42 175,000 135% 187,390.93
POWER SALES 23,024.69 130,368.44 175,000 74% 139,135.97
MISCELLANEOUS (SEE NEXT PAGE) $10,505.77 § 48,414.58 75,000 65% $ 44,935.64
SUBTOTAL GENERAL REVENUES $ 3353046 $  426,985.73 $437,000 98% $  382,408.38
[TAX RECEIPTS |
1% TAXES 382,689.84 849,152 55 750,000 113% 487,709.51
TOTAL PF 2 CREDIT $ 436,547.78 § 1,545,702.88 $1,493,000 104% $ 1,138,737.70
|WHOLESALE CONTRACT RECEIPTS |
INDUSTRIAL $0.00 $0.00 $0 0% $0.00
TOTAL INDUSTRIAL $0.00 $0.00 $0 0% $0.00
CITY OF ARCATA $87,026.55 $966,441.33 $1,129,075 86% $813,999.47
CITY OF EUREKA - 2,330,739.39 2,745,393 85% 1,990,074.36
HUMBOLDT CSD 70,904.29 784,018.41 939,692 83% 669,842.26
MANILA CSD 5,793.24 63,854.63 74,906 85% 54,077.37
MCKINLEYVILLE CSD 70,200.51 779,278.74 920,087 84% 666,082.84
FIELDBROOK CSD 11,432.45 137,353.35 148,575 92% 115,298.52
BLUE LAKE 12,556.04 143,886.33 173,361 83% 156,259.87
TOTAL MUNIS $257,913.08  $5,205,572.18 $6,140,089 85% $ 4,465,634.69
A/B BOND TAXES $0.00 $0.00 $0 0% $0.00

TOTAL RECEIPTS $ 694,460.86 § 6,751,275.06 $7,633,089 88% $ 5,604,372.39




MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS

MAY YEAR TO DATE
Administrative
Parking Lot Rent $25.00 $275.00
Employee Telephone 12.60 115,13
Employee Gas 0.00 487.91
Retirees' Reimbursement of Health Insurance Premium 493.83 23,768.19
COBRA Dental Ins & Admin Fee - Retiree 216.48 697.46
COBRA Vision Ins & Admin Fee - Retiree 37.86 170.37
Water Processing Fees 0.00 540.00
Hydrant Rental Deposit 175.00 175.00
Meter Installations 0.00 0.00
Refail Connection Charge 0.00 0.00
Mainline Connection Charge 0.00 0.00
Right of Way Fees 0.00 0.00
Special Event Liability Insurance 0.00 361.50
ACWA/IPIA Retrospective Premium Adjustment 0.00 0.00
ACWA/JPIA Insurance Claim 0.00 0.00
Dividend Check (Principal Life} 0.00 811.68
Bad Debf Recovery 0.00 146.29
Miscellaneous Payments for Copies &/or Postage Costs 30.00 205.38
Diesel Fuel Tax Refund 0.00 20.57
Park Use Fees 25.00 300.00
Qverpayment Refund - Reynolds RV 0.00 40.00
McMaster-Carr- Refund of Sales Tax overpayment 0.00 13.76
Pump Solutions-Refund of Sales Tax overpayment 0.00 4.50
State of California - Open Meeting Act Claims 1997-2003 0.00 1,465.00
State of California - Refund of Sales Tax Penalty 0.00 789.30
US Bank - Closed Credit Card Rewards 0.00 500.00
IRS - Refund - Overpayment of Payroll Taxes 2015 0.00 523.93
Sequoia Investments X, LLC - Hog Island Project 5,000.00 5,000.00
Ruth Area
Use of Ruth Cabin 30.00 240.00
RLCSD-Water System Permit Fees 0.00 0.00
Ruth Area Water Use Permit 0.00 0.00
Buffer Strip Right of Way License Fee 0.00 0.00
Ruth Buffer Strip PG&E Right of Way Fees 0.00 0.00
Ruth Sale of Merchantable Timber 0.00 0.00
Ruth Sale of Surplus Gravel 10.00 10.00
Don Bridge Lease 0.00 691.20
Miscellanecus
Sale of Scrap Transformer 0.00 714.00
Sale of Surplus Transformer 1,650.00 1,650.00
Sale of Scrap Mefals 0.00 75.65
Sale of Surplus Equipment 0.00 3,200.00
Sale of Surplus Vehicle 2,800.00 2,800.00
Humboldt Bay Harbor Recreation & Conservation District 0.00 622.76
GHD - Contribution for Carol Rische's Retirement Event 0.00 2,000.00
Other 0.00 0.00
Total Miscellaneous Receipts $10,505.77 S 48,414.58
OTHER RECEIPTS or GRANTS
CalEMA Techite Grant Reimbursement (Note 1) $0.00 $279,518.00
CDPH - Prop 50 Intertie Project Grant Reimbursement (Note 1) 0.00 186,812.95
Prop 84 - Ranney Collector 1 0.00 15,962.35
CalEMA Blue Lake/Fieldbrook Pipefine Crossing(Note1) 0.00 10,267.00
Fire Hydrant Installation - Techite Fipeline Replacement 0.00 8,200.00

Notes:

1 - The CalEMA Techite Grant Reimbursement, Prop 50 Intertie Project Grant Reimbursement,
CalEMA Blue Lake/Fieldbrook Pipeline Crossing and Fire Hydrant Installation- Techite Pipeline
Replacement are not included in PF2 revenue credits because the costs are not included

in PF2 project monthly expense totals.

SECTION_Q%_A_, PAGENO.-Z ___



i

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

AT MAY 31, 2016 (11 MONTHS - 81.67%)

SECTION. ﬁ_d peENo.

LA

MAY TOTAL % OF TOTAL
EXPENSES 5/31/2016 BUDGET BUDGET 5/31/2015
PAYROLL:
Regular $ 147,669.50 % 1,671,431.36 §$ 1,886,825 89% $ 1,693,368.95
Part-Time 1,553.25 23,127.02 53,600 43% 45,672.21
Overtime 6,612.22 25,660.39 35,000 73% 33,767.19
Standby 6,128.63 68,810.11 74,000 93% 67,043.51
Pay Differential 913.52 8,493,92 11,500 T4% 7,672.71
Deferred Compensation 1,275.00 13,650.00 14,400 95% 13,200,00
Employee Assistance Plan 75.20 807.03 1,078 75% 827.39
Director Compensation 2,640.00 20,208.00 26,000 78% 25,760.00
Director - Secretary Fees 262.50 2,887.50 3,200 90% 2,887.50
Taxes/Benefits 98,736.91 1,199,658.49 1,347,689 89% 1,132,773.50
TOTAL PAYROLL $ 285,866.73 $ 3,034,733.82 § 3,453,292 B8% $ 2,922,872.96
SERVICE & SUPPLY
O&M
Engineering $7,485.25 $72,608.58 $ 75,000 97% $29,490.88
Maint., Repairs, Supplies 7,636.08 106,611.63 115,000 93% 88,441.77
TRF Maint, Repairs, Supplies 457.45 34,785.98 55,000 63% 43,900.61
Lab 620.00 8,990.16 13,000 69% 9,842.14
Auto Maintenance 3,156.89 33,047.09 46,000 72% 36,288.90
Radio Maintenance 250.00 7,608.45 10,500 72% 2,840.28
USGS Meter Station 0.00 0.00 7,800 0% 0.00
Ruth Lake License 0.00 1,500.00 1,500 100% 1,500.00
A&G
Accounting Services 0.00 32,00000 $ 33,000 97% 26,150.00
Legal 0.00 9,498.50 28,000 34% 6,792.08
Professional Services 374.36 3,896.70 20,000 19% B,477.45
Insurance 0.00 101,216.00 93,000 109% 97,182.60
Telephone 4,354.49 44,692.50 31,000 144% 38,408.59
Office Building Maintenance 1,342.29 19,869.40 14,000 142% 19,255.14
Office Expense 2,850.80 47,200.80 46,000 103% 486,715.40
Travel & Conference 1,408.17 8,813.77 25,000 35% 15,217.72
Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 14,094.03 14,500 97% 14,867.10
Technical Training 26.45 6,972.02 11,000 63% 2,765.44
County Tax Fee 8,951.00 17,902,00 21,000 85% 18,576.00
County Property Taxes 0.00 998.60 1,100 91% 998.60
LAFCO 0.00 5,847.74 4,500 130% 3,678.22
Regulatory Agency Fees 0.00 ©6,201.54 71,000 135% 69,917.40
Ruth Lake Programs 0.00 0.00 5,000 0% 4,000.00
Miscellaneous 2,816.88 19,041.96 10,500 181% 15,077.07
TOTAL SERVICE/SUPPLIES W/OUT POWER $41,830.11 $693,281.46 §$ 752,400 92% $599,383.39
POWER
Essex Pacific Gas & Electric $ 39,653.50 § 500,169.68 $ 503,960.60
Fuel For 2 MW Generator 0.00 4,394.36 10,946.30
Subtotal Essex Pumping $ 39,653.50 § 504,564.04 $ 514,906.90
All Other Pacific Gas & Electric 7.168.89 72,596.88 75,690.28
POWER EXPENSE SUBTOTAL $ 4682239 § 577,160.92 § 687,000 84% $ 590,597.18
TOTAL SERVICE/SUPPLIES WITH POWER $88,652.50 $1,270,442.38 § 1,439,400 88%  $1,189,980.57
PROJECTS, FIXED ASSETS
& CONSULTING SERVICES $ 60,845.56 3§ 885,909.34 § 3,945,710 22% $ 5,583,598.05
TOTAL OPERATING $ 41536479 $ 5,191,201.54 § 8,838,402 59% $ 9,696,451.58
DEBT SERVICE - SRF LOAN $0.00 $547,336.96 § 547,337 100% $273,668.48
TOTAL EXPEND_iﬁJRES $ 415,364.79 $ ©5,738,538.50 % 9,385,739 61% $ 9,970,120.06
DEBT SERVICE - US Bank $0.00 $162,188.10 § 162,200 100% $162,188.10

{1) SRF Loan payment was made by U.S. Bank on 7/1/2015. This amount was collected from Municipal Customers monthly per PF1 during FY14/15.

U. 5. Bank as Fiscal Agent for District pays State of California semi-annual payments (January and July)



snzcnom_)}}d, PAGE No._fq/_ B

'SJ9L03sNa 3jesajoym auy 0} pagieyd Sulaq aue sysfoid pasueul a5aL) 1oy S31A19S 1P |enuUe 343 AjuQ "s1eaA 0T Jano Budueuly yum papuny Ajjersed usag

aney spafold Juswsde|day auljadig a1ysal pue g 1033|103 Asuuey 343 UORIIPPE U] S324N0S 42410 Aq papun4 s193f014 o Bupsy 8yl s1 D spelolg ended

‘090°€60¢S 246 sedieyd Jawoisnd 2(esajoym |enjoe ayg .o.ﬁm‘mwm.mw le _uwammn:n aJe saunjipuadxa soafold |B3103 3yl 3jiym

LIV'69L Juiuleway asuejeg
Z8R'ETES- a1ep 01 pasieyd |ej0)
00£°€80'T Hwn |enuuy $T/ETOCAL
“JE3A [BISY B Ul SISWO0ISND 3]BSa|oym 0} pafieyd aq ued ey Junowy
{91 ®aueUIpIO Jo 57772 uoRIBS Jad) uorenw 193014 |eNdeD [enuuy
%81 00T'0EL'T 8S°v8r'08YS €0'VIVITS S133r0¥d VLIdVYD V101
%8 0586022 T¥209'99TS 00'609°95 :21v1018ns
%e 000°S6E v0'98£°9 TTTI8Y'T sanssay Yanoayy papuny Ajjeled | asnowpjung yiny aoejday
%t 0S8°915°T 9/°99%'c9 6L°LTT'S sagieyd "Apy R Jueln g doid y3nouyy papuny Ajjeineq | s|esaie] v g T 10193)j00 Asuuey
%CE 000'86¢ T9'6¥£96S 00'0% SIuEiD VINIL 8 ¥8 doud Ag papung | Buissol) Jaary asDD4/33eT 3njg
(4m4) se24n0s 1aY10 Aq papun4 spaloiqd o
%SL 00ST0T Y6 TLLSLS ¥S°L09% ‘g 1v.L018ns
%tE 05T'LT ¥6°€C6'S ¥S°£09 S pays aun 4y |apowsay
%SL 000'se St'T0%'9Z 000 433uno) apiyed ade|day
%TOT 00567 S09Z6'6T 000 sI9zAjeuy 3ulolYD 441 984y de|day
%0 000's 000 00°0 91D $5300V 441 ANpoN/aoe|day
%6 0SL'vT 0S°0CS'ETS 00°0% Juawdinb3 uo)-aq pue asuodsay xeaq aulio|yD apesddn
(41MQ) 7 101084 33114 BIA SIBWOYSN) [edPIUNK O3 pasiey) sypaloid g
%LS 0SL'8TY €TOTT'BETS 6t L6165 'V 1vL018ns
%0 0009 000 000 wooy Aipunet/yreq Ja1seln OH Yiny Jeday
%Sb 000°s Y LST'T 000 suonelunwwoy eipAy Yyiny apesddn
%0 0sZ's 000 000 Swooussay yied apessdn/ueday
%S 00009 0T'0EL'T 000 WwI21sAg 211dag xass3 aoe|day
%16 000'%T 0Z'569°CT 000 uonels duing 191500g BOWES 3 aAlQ Adusnba.y ?|qelen dHOOT soe|day
%T 000'8T 85901 857901 uonels duing J91500g LOWIES 1B 5WIISAS D1d/swapo olpey 19uiayl3 apesddn
%0 ooo‘oL 000 00’0 dleday s123u) a3saWOQ/|eLISNpU)
%00T 000°00T 10°000'00T 16'060°6 a8Jey) pasuenpy - z 10103|j0D
%98 00s‘0vT 08'02€°0ZTS 000 uonenjiqeyay g 40393)|0) Asuuey
{4Mma) 7 Jo1dE4 Bd1id BIA SI3WOISN) ||V 01 pasiey) syo3fold vy
13sang 139ans 910zZ/1€/s S3ISNIAX3 -
40 % V101 alA AVIN S$103r0dd Tv.LIdvD ‘i




SECTION g&é_ . PAGE NO, ,,.Lé_....

%62 059'¥81 9L'v0T eSS [45:1) 8 :S173r0¥d S13SSV a3xXid Iv.L0L
%0 0SLTy 000S 00°0$ g 1v1o1ans
%0 0sL's 000 000 dwng a8pn|s 441 dn-yoeg aseyaingd
%0 0SZ'ET 000 000 X3553 1B S10}eULIOJYD YDI1ON-A Se|day
%0 0SL'€T 00°0S 00°0S Wwa3sAs umopinys Ayajes aulojy) sdejday
{(11Ma) Z 403084 22144 BIA S13WOISN) |eddiuny 03 padley) spdalold g
%LE 006'T¥#T 9/'t02'€SS ¢T'80T'TS ¥ 1vLol4ans
%3L 009 ¥9'STRC 000 Jandwo) §i9 9210 eyaung 3dejday
%8 05£'0Z ST/80°LT T80Tt (vjueg Asenieq) WwalsAs Jamod JQA SZT 04PAH yiny ejday
%0 00s'y 000 000 221814 "M 1e Jaiydwy [eudis [jeisu]
%0 0SL'S 000 000 SuIp|oyeas ajqenod aseyaing
%29 0SLT 80VTL'T 000 Junyan yiom s|qeniod apeiddn/aoeday
%16 0SL'T L0651 000 Jawweyyder 21303|3 aseyaing
%69 0S2'T 99°'998 000 auel) 29plg doys 4oy |043u0) Sl0WaY
%9/ 0SL°LT 99'€86°0C 000 €T 1un 2oejday
%8L 0087 S9°09/'¢ 000 ST HUMN 40} 2189 YIT JINeIpAH
%0 052'Z9 000 000 dwng ssuseq yau| g aoejday
%0 005z 000 000 Jeindwo) wajsAs joI3uod ade|day - xass]
%E0T 0sz'Y 9€'98€E'rS 0003 S19INd WO dAIIRIISIUIWPY 228|daYy -X3553
13oang 13oang 910¢/1£/S SaSNIdX3 (4MQ) Z 10324 33144 eIA SI12WOISN) ||y 01 pasiey) saaloid 'y
10 % TY101 AlA AVIA $13SSV a@3xid ‘i




M

A
-t

%EY 0TS LLT LY'TT69LS 91'S0v'91S ‘S10310¥d IDNVYNILNIVIN TVLOL

%SL 0SL'¥T 8L EPOTIS 89'959% ‘4 1vLo0149ns
%9L 0S2°S 0Z'ZI0Y 000 SIABA |043U0D |[DM 19M 38pN|S 441 doe|day
%9¢ 00S°C 89959 89'959 dwind a3pn|s 441 p|Ingay
%96 0059 v6'zeC9 000 S3M UOIISIBAUOD SO-VXIAI 9AIBA 3nbionuwin Y1
%8¢C 00s 96 I¥TS 00'0S 9JIAIBS 0JEBIBULD - Y1
(40Ma) z 103084 32144 BIA Siawolsn) |eddiunpy 0} padieyd spslold 'g
%01 094291 69°/98'59% 8¥'8YL'STS 'Y 1vliol9ns
%T0T 0002 8L°SY0°/ 000 12pullA) a1inelpAH aajeA 198ung ||omoH adejday - 0JpAH yiny
%0 0TT'T 000 000 uolloadsu| aajea Jasung [|9MoH - 0JpAH Yiny
%8S ovs's 00°002'€ 00°00Z°€ wieq yany 1e Juswaleqy ysnig
%LE 0SS 0S'IET'T 000 jue] |an4 uojes gOT apessdn/aiedsy
%6 00501 670586 000 jUe| |an4 pUe 2insojoul J01eJauan MIAIZ Juled
%LS 0s49 99'€78'E 000 Jooy uoliels dwngd J331scog eowes aoejday
%S€ 005's PO'EEBT ¥O'EE6T W21SAS uleIg PUB UOIIRIS JaMOYS/ysemaA] aoe(day
%0 000°ST 000 000 B2UBUILUIBIA 7§ UOIIEIQI|ED 181N 931AIDS 3114 8 ssauisng ad.ie
%SL 000's 80°0%L'E 000 sJieday 1uied 199)4
%0t 000°0F £8'9409T ¥Z2°916°S 1ieday Aduagiawz aoueuauIRy
%E ovL's Y€ EST 000 uo01129104d 2Ipoyied
%0 0vs's 000 000 |eAoway 934 ) paseasiq 'y pJezeH
%6 000y 89°8G¢ 02291 9DIAIDBS J0]BIBUDD
%8Y 00012 98'1ZT0T 00°LES'Y walsAS 1011U0D apnpou| 01 salepdn a1emiyos 1§ Loddns [eo1uyda |
%0¢ 0009 609LT'T 000 uoneiqied) mo|4 J913Al auljuIBA
%SGE 000z TT'T69 000 syed Jieday Aouadiawl piezT
%0 000y 000 000 JoURUIIUIEIA] WBISAS J14123|13 ANZT
%S DEETT £7°'695'GS 00°0% 23ueualuleln auljadid
13oang 130ang 910Z/1E/S S3ISN3IdX3 {3mg) z 103284 a211d BIA SIBWOISN) ||y 03 padiey) 'y
10 % TVLOL AlA AVIA S123r0dd IDNVYNILNIVIA Il




g‘d PAGE NO._&..-_

J

SECTIONZ XA |

—

%ET 0sz's9 00°£52'8S 00°0$ '$123r0dd WILSAS TVIY1SNANI TVL0L
%0 0 00°0$ 000$ 'd1v10L8ns
(41M@) Z4d ein si3wioisn) [edpdiuniy 03 padiey) g
%ET 05Z7'€9 00'£52'8S 00°0% ¥ IV1014ns
%9T 000°05 00°LT6°L 000 sue|d Juswade|day Joamaj aging -
%€ 0SZ'ET 00°0vES 00°0% SYUo moj4-mo] Fuuing (9 uoirels duwing) uonelrs dwnd [eLsnpu 03 Ajddng Ja1e UIBJUE N -
13oang l13isang 9t10zZ/1€/S SASN3IIX3 {4Ma) Z 10304 32114 EIA SIBWOISN) ||y 03 padiey) Y
10 % IVLIOL dlA AVIN S103r0Hd IILSAS TYIHLSNANI “Al
%rE 0S€°009 L6°8L8'E02S §T'816'9Z% :S3DIAY3S DNILTNSNOD B TYNOISS3IJ0¥d TV1I0L
%8S 00191 €€°'897'65 S8°06% '41v1oL8ns

%8S 0019t £E°852'6S 58065 2duURUBIUIEIN WR)SAS BULIOJY)
(41Mma) Z J01084 83114 B1A SJoW0LSND [edidIUNK 03 padiey) s1dalold 'g

%EE 0SZ'v8s ¥9'029'¥61S 0v'£28'9Z% 'Y Iviolgns
%0¢ 000°sZ 89°G99vT SL°06Z'T Buiuue|d sa1nosay a1
%LE 000°0€ 06°0£0'6¢ OV EV6TT suonedi|ddy juels
%0 000°0T 00°SZ 000 USgIM I013SIq 2peiSdn
%TC 000°00T SS0T'TE 00016t Hoddng BulisauiBug pue uonoadsu| Jueynsuod Juapuadapu) ZT Jed DH34
%8TT 00001 €9°808'CT 000 sisA[eUY DIWISISS ZT Hed DY34
%001 000°0¢ 00°026'62 000 sA9AINS [enuuy-1g ue|d SULIOUO 3auBl|jAINS Alajes weq Hy3d
%61 00052 87'898' 05'60L (2T Hed) mainay A1ajes weq J434/(HINSSA)HOdaY SUlIOLIUOI 13 JUBH|[BAINS A19JeS WeQ Jy34
%8¢ 000'ST 1112y 00912’y s|sA|BUY 3 JUBWISSSSY OJPAH
%0 000'ST 000 000 uswaseuey Jaquil duls Jayng axeT yiny
%0T 0s2's 00'SZT'T 000 Suuiel) |eauyas
%58 000°sT 00'T6L°2T 000 Suiulel] asemyos [013U0D
%P1 000t 00°0TY 000 duiutes] 121531 mo|ppeg
%69 000'€T S9'670'6 000 Wa3sAS UoIBLLIIOMU| SBIY|I9R4/S|D
%T 000°05 00029 000 apesddn waisAs yqyos 404 Bujuueld
%00T 000 00°000°C 000 juess Apeay a1ewlf) Adueasasuoy) [B1Se0) 40 Juauodwo) - wesdoud Suno}uo sung
%L 000°se 05°SIS'T 00°EY saI1pn1s BulieaulBug pasnio4
%0 000'0F 000 00'0 suonedoads 3 sue|d Sulpjing |0J1U0Y) Xass]
%0TT 000°2T ST'TRL6T SL'859'€ uejd J31sejAl 350 Aljoe4 Joj Apnis Supasuidug pasnioy
%05 o000t 00'866'% 00°95 21epdn ue|d Juswageur JBIBM UBGIN
%0T 000°0S 00°000'S 00°0 PaYSIaIBM Janly peIA
%98 0000T 00°£95'8 000 ASAINS |BUOI1D3S-SS0ID) JBAIY PBIA X553
%T 000°L 00°0s 000 Supujed) sojesadQ auen)
%91 00s'9 61°650'TS 0008 uoneIyIHR)/3unsa) auel)
13oang 139ang 910Z/1€/S SISNIdX3 (4m8) z 101084 3314 BIA S13WOISN) ||y 03 padiey) ¢
10 % V101 ALA AYIN S3DIAYIS ONLLTNSNOD 78 TYNOISSIA0Hd ‘NI




o s sy 00 e

PAGE NO. q

s e}

SECTION

‘JueIg 93f0ud 3131U| 05 doud 3yy Aq pasinquiis. Ajny aJam SAOGE UMOYS 53500 3y "a33jdwod st 138(01d auau| ApuUnWWo) ay |

| 9g'T2585TS | 0008 1uels 0s doud Aq papuny | saiaiu) Aunwwod|
|%1v 00'098'SELT £6°90£°6TLS 95"9EZvSS {Piuea sn) a31aas 3qag Fuipnjoxa siswoysn) 03 padieyy |30l ysloig z4d|
_Nw {00°0s8'602°z) (1" 209'99T) (00"609°9) (sansasay/sadiey) paouenpy,/sueoy/suein) sa2IN0s JaL30 W0} papung syafoid wmw._—
%ee OTL'SP6'E  VE'606'SBBS  95'Sp8'09S IVLOL ANVYHD $123f0¥d|
%EE 058681 95'ZLT'€9% 00'0% TY10L SLI3IMOHd HINOANYYD ST/YT0Z
%201 0008 0S'vZ1'8% 00°0% si2aload Suninsuo) g [euoissayoid [B301qNS
%0 0 00705 00°0$ 8 iviolans
(41Ma) Z 401284 22114 eIA SIDWOISN] [EARIUNW 03 padiey) s1aaloid ‘g
%201 0008 0S'vET1'8S 00'0% RALAGIEN
%C0T 0008 09°¥T1'8S 000% 1ioday UOREN|EAT £ 10339)0)
(4Mm8) Z 403084 30114 BIA SI13WOISND ||y 0) padieyd 'y
_ SIDIAYIS ONILINSNOD 8 IYNOISSII0Hd "Il
%ST 000°TZT ST'6V8'LTS 00°0% s12alold souruUIB [EIOIGNS
%0 0 0005 00°0$ 'd WLOL8NS
(41Ma) Z J032e4 30114 BIA S1BLWIOISN] |edRIUNy 0} padseyd spalold 'g
%ST 000'12T ST'6v8'LTS 00°0$ VIvL0Lgns
%0 000's8 000 000 Junuied 38piig Aemjids yiny
%1S 000'0€ ST'89¢€'ST 000 %Ead s34 Je Juawdinb] ojpey ajedojay
%05 000°s 0018+’ 000 ¥ 10323||0] pUNOJy B3y 3pEID-3Y
%0 000°T 00°0% 00'0$ swoo.say doys sdueuslule g xass3 alepdn
(4ma) Z 101084 33114 BIA SIBWIOISN) |1y 03 Padieyd 'Y,
— S103r0dd IDNVNILNIVIN “II
%PT 0528z ¥0°986°ES 00°0% spalo.d 51955y paxiy |eyoiqng,
ST 0S7'87 0'986°€S 00'0$ '8 TvLOLENS
%ES 005’ ¥0'986'¢E Q00 I3XIN AJ0d-N paads mojs aseyding
%0 0SL 000 ooo qET Ul S12UIGED MAN JIBISU) —4Y ]
%0 0000z 00°0% 00°0$ sapesddn waisAs Ajunoas - 4y
(41Mma) Z 103084 23114 e1n sIBWOISND [edidiUnyy OF padiey) s1rafolg g
%0 0 00°0% 00°0$ v 1v.L0L8NS
(4M8) Z 103084 33114 BIA SIBWOISN) |1y 03 pasdieyd 'y
| SLISSV QIXIA I
%20t 009°ZE L8'TITEES 00°0% sy3aload jende) jejoagng
%E6 005C SS'6IEC 000 jUB] |34 J2AD J3A0] ping - yany
%v8 000'vT TETEL'TT 000 Wa1sAS 1321U0YIUAS 0INY ||EISU| - OIPAH YNy
%56 0007 YT'L06T 000 doys |e211333|3 Joy sapeagdn Asuapiy3 Adsaus
%01 00T’z 00'SL1T 000 sdwing J0123)|00 U0 saAjeA o3y 2ae|day
%9¢T 000°ZT 98°8L0'STS 00°0% wa)sAg ondas xas53 Joj uBisaq g Suuauisug
(4Mm8) Z 101083 D214 RIA S1BWOISND ||V 03 padiey) v
13sansg 139ansg 910Z/1E/S S3ISN3IAX3 _ SL23rQUd WLIdYD °|
30 % TVLOL QLA AVIN ST/YT0Z WOU4 S1D370Yd HIAD-AHHYD




1 °beg

sscno@@_d__, eaceNo. 1O __

000 — 00°0

CIpAH Ny ~ g5

uonpI3dQ B IIUDUIIUIDY] — 1S

uonDASIUILPY — 9§

uoUWIDaL] 131D/ ~ €S

3YNIIS J2W0ISN) — GG

1043u0) '3 buydwing - z5

yiny - Is

SUOTINGTIJUOD pue saxel xvAordug

Aeg 38y

Aeg sso1n pejsnlpy

Aeg ssoxn Tejzor

aWTITDAQ
|WTL =3Tgnog
Aeg ssoin
sjusuysnlpy pue ssxe] ‘sebeM asAoldiury

00°0 Q00 00°0Q 0020 00°0 00°0
2Z°z19'9 SLTBET S6°L66‘E SL°s8 £ST6LT ¥ 057911 S'E Z9'vLe S¢'% 85 E9E sg°8 . 20" 0vs8 91 Z0°0Fk8 91
ZZ°z19'9 SLTBET G6°L66'E SL°S8 £S°6LT 14 0579TT S°E Z9°vLe S2°S 85 7E9E Sg°8 Z0'0%s8 ST Z0°0R8 91
€Z°Z19'9 SL™BET S6°L66°E 6L G8 EST6LT 4 05°9TT S°E Z9°PLE GZ°S 8GE9E S2°8 207098 ST Z0°0F8 oT
98°£95'9 SLTLET 6S°6F6'E SL'¥8 €5°6LT 14 087911 S E 29°vLE SZ°5 85°E9¢E §Z'8 0 ops L Z0°0v8 91

9£° 8% 00°'T 9E° 8P & 00°0 000 000 000 00’0 000

91 AR sanoy ol Aen SIANOH 9T AEl sInog 9T ABH SINOH 9T Ael SINOH 91 Ael SINOH 91 AR SITNOH 91 AeR sInoy
TYICL 8% 95 SS ¥ £5 A4 JMLES
9107 ARl

Aeg swtiasan

I2TIISTA x=23em TedToTuny Aeg jpToqumy

91/20/90



SECTION paceENO._LL

- ]

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

06/02/16 Expenses by Vendor Detail
May 2016
Memo Amount

101 Netlink

Ruth Data Link/Internet -160.00
Total 101Netlink -160.00
Advanced Display & Signs

Ruth Dam sign update -120.03

Ruth Dam sign update -120.04
Total Advanced Display & Signs -240.07
Advanced Security Systems

security system maintenance -34.91
Total Advanced Security Systems -34.01
AirGas NCN

shop supplies -70.00

shop supplies for portable welder -61.11
Total AirGas NCN -131.11
Arcata Garbage

Essex garbage -476.31
Total Arcata Garbage -476.31
AT&T

Ruth HQ

TRF

Essex office

Eureka office -75.76

Ruth Hydro

Valve Building Samoa

Ruth HQ -14.15

TRF -180.47

Essex office -55.68

Eureka office -6.32

Ruth Hydro -691.68

Valve Building Samoa -83.85
Total AT& T -1,107.91
AT&T

Eureka/Essex Landline -35.32

Arcata/Essex Landline -35.32

Samoa/Essex Landline -236.85

Blue Lake Meter Signal Line -60.98

Eureka Office -107.27

Eureka Office Alarm Line -38.55

Samoa Booster Pump Station -71.88

Valve Building-Samoa -107.27

Eureka Office -299.92

Essex Office -572.56

TRF -272.21

Ruth Data Line -104.23
Total AT&T -1,942.36
AT&T Advertising Solutions

white page listing -21.00
Total AT&T Advertising Solutions -21.00
B&B Portable Toilets

Annual Ruth Maintenance -60.90

Annual Ruth Maintenance -60.90
Total B&B Portable Toilets -121.80
Cardno, Inc

FERC Part 12 Inspection Report -4,795.00
Total Cardno, Inc -4,795.00

Page 1



06/02/16

A
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District SECTION\ X%

Expenses by Vendor Detail

May 2016
Memo Amount
Carl Johnson Company

Replace Ruth Hydro 125VDC Power System ( Battery Bank) -243.50
Total Carl Johnson Company -243.50
Carol McKibben

expense reimbursement for safety boots -163.48
Total Carol McKibben -163.48
City of Eureka

Eureka office water/sewer -50.76
Total City of Eureka -50.76
Coastal Business Systems Inc.

Eureka office copy and fax machine -563.00
Total Coastal Business Systems Inc. -563.00
Cody Bruffett

auto mileage reimbursement -332.64

auto mileage reimbursement -227.83
Total Cody Bruffett -560.47
Consolidated Electrical Distributors, Inc

Annual SCADA maintenance support -4,537.00
Total Consolidated Electrical Distributors, Inc -4,537.00
Corey Borghino

Project Budget meeting & BBQ supplies -31.98
Total Corey Borghino -31.98
Dale H. Davidsen

Re-Issue Safe Work Practice Award - (Lost Ck# 41364 - Stop Payment sub... -200.00

expense reimbursement for Project budget meeting and BBQ -80.97
Total Dale H. Davidsen -290.97
David Deskins

expense reimbursement for fuel purchase - Unit 5 to Ruth -14.12

expense reimbursement for fuel purchase - Unit 5 to Ruth Hydro -14.12
Total David Deskins -28.24
Drake Vegetation Management, Inc

Ruth Hydro brush abatement -3,200.00
Total Drake Vegetation Management, Inc -3,200.00
Eureka Oxygen

cylinder rental -99.20
Total Eureka Oxygen -89.20
Eureka Rubber Stamp

date stamp -21.59
Total Eureka Rubber Stamp -21.59
FEDEX

mail quagga/zebra mussel grant program application -21.90

return ACWA/JPIA training tape -8.14
Total FEDEX -30.04
FleetPride

hydraulic fittings -13.01
Total FleetPride -13.01
Frontier Communications

Ruth HQ -50.28

Ruth Hydro -156.01
Total Frontier Communications -206.29

Y PAGE NO. .

12~

s s g

Page 2



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District SECTIONACY PAGE NO. @

e g o

06/02/16 Expenses by Vendor Detail
May 2016
Memo Amount

GEI Consultants, Inc

Review and provide input on District's annual FERC DSSMR -430.50
Total GEI Consultants, Inc -430.50
GHD

(63208) Replace Ruth Bunkhouse 616.21

(63206) Collector 1 & 1A Lateral Replacement -703.00

(63212) Focused Engineering Studies -43.00

(63218) Focused Engineering Study on Facility Use Master Plan -3,658.75

(63209) Grant Applications -1,946.00

(63210) Grant Applications -9,975.50

(63207) Water Resources Planning -1,290.75

(63583) General Engineering - Essex -5,435.75

(63583) General Engineering - Techite Biological Monitoring ~775.50

(63583) General Engineering - Eureka -847.50

(63583) General Engineering - FERC DSSMR & FERC Dam Safety Engine... -279.00

(63584) Hog Island Flow Analysis -426.50
Total GHD -25,997.46
GR Sundberg, Inc

Emergency road repair Old Navy Base Road -3,666.24
Total GR Sundberg, Inc -3,666.24
Hach Company

chlorine maintenance -90.85
Total Hach Company -90.85
Harper Motors

vehicle maintenance -16.45
Total Harper Motors -16.45
Hensel Hardware

maintenance shop supplies -115.17

TRF shutdown -18.45
Total Hensel Hardware -133.62
Humboldt Fasteners

Annual Ruth Maintenance -35.81

Annual Ruth Maintenance -35.80

line marking paint -108.36

maintenance supplies -83.28
Total Humboldt Fasteners -263.25
Industrial Electric

rebuild TRF sludge pump -656.68
Total Industrial Electric -656.68
Keenan Supply

replace Essex eyewash/shower station and drain system -138.66
Total Keenan Supply -138.66
Keith Daggs

xpense reimbursement for replacement of Ruth Hydro 125 VDC Power Sys... -102.25
Total Keith Daggs -102.25
Keller America, Inc

TRF filter basin #2 maintenance -439.00
Total Keller America, Inc -439.00
Lisa Newell

auto mileage reimbursement for purchase of supplies for Annual Ruth Main... -22.95

auto mileage reimbursement for purchase of supplies for Annual Ruth Main... -22.95

auto mileage reimbursement - deliver lunch to work crew for Annual Ruth M... -18.90

auto mileage reimbursement - deliver lunch to work crew for Annual Ruth M... -18.90

auto mileage reimbursement -19.22
Total Lisa Newell -102.92

Page 3



06/02/16

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Expenses by Vendor Detail
May 2016

Memo

sscnon_ﬁd, PAGE NO. ,_\

Amount

Mad River Union
Notice of Public Hearing - 2015 Urban Water Management Plan

Total Mad River Union

McMaster-Carr Supply
Ruth Annual Maintenance
Ruth Annual Maintenance
replace danger signs at Ruth Hydro

Total McMaster-Carr Supply

Michael King
Retail customer refund - closed account

Total Michael King

Miller Farms Nursery
replace 1" pump for Unit 8
maintenance supplies
Park 1 fence repair

Total Miller Farms Nursery

Mission Linen
maintenance supplies
Uniform Rental

Total Mission Linen

MM Diving, Inc
Collector 3 dive services to remove 2 pipe plugs Pump 3-1

Total MM Diving, Inc

Napa Auto Parts
maintenance supplies
vehicle maintenance
Howell Bunge Valve maintenance(credit)
account credit balance

Total Napa Auto Parts

Network Management Services
EssentialCare Computer Support Service for Eureka office
Guard-IT Security Service for Eureka office”
Recover-IT Backup Solution
Domain Management
Umbrella- Security
Eureka office - Computer assistance

Total Network Management Services

North Bay Auto
Unit 12 service

Total North Bay Auto

North Coast Cleaning Services, Inc
Eureka office building maintenance

Total North Coast Cleaning Services, Inc

North Coast Laboratories
lab tests

Total North Coast Laboratories

Northern California Safety Consortium
monthly membership

Total Northern California Safety Consortium

Occupational Health Services of Mad River
Pre-employment physical

Total Occupational Health Services of Mad River

-56.00
-56.00

-98.00
-98.01
-166.67

-362.68

-22.16
-22.16

-431.94
-17.23
-244.34

-693.51

-80.48
-494.12

-574.60

-2,250.00

-2,250.00

-9.53
-361.12
286.34
43.38

-40.93

-368.10

-1,040.44

-171.46
-171.46

-545.00
-545.00

-620.00
-620.00

-50.00
-50.00

-225.00
-225.00

(v

e oy

Page 4



06/02/16

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Expenses by Vendor Detail

s&cnot&ﬁé.. PAGE NO.

57

o o o e st

May 2016
Memo Amount

Pacific Gas & Electric Co.

Ruth Bunkhouse -22.21

Eureka Office -577.17

Jackson Ranch Rectifier -18.18

299 Rectifier -99.84

West End Road Rectifier -106.30

TRF -5,740.38

Ruth Valve Control -23.70

Ruth Hydro -258.19

Samoa Booster Pump Station -289.64

Samoa Dial Station -33.28

Essex Pumping April 1-30, 2016 -39,653.50

Ruth Hydro Assessment & Analysis Non-Refundable PPR fee -2,700.00
Total Pacific Gas & Electric Co. -49,622.39
Paul Helliker

auto mileage reimbursement for attending water conservation regulation m... -312.12

expense reimbursement for attending water conservation regulation meetin... -20.00

auto mileage reimbursement for attending water conservation regulation m... -464.40

expense reimbursement for attending water conservation regulation meeti... -503.36
Total Paul Helliker -1,299.88
Pierson Building Center

Replace Ruth Hydro 125VDC Power System (Battery Bank) -9.73
Total Pierson Building Center -9.73
Pitney Bowes

refill postage meter -500.00

postage meter supplies -120.69
Total Pitney Bowes -620.69
Rebecca J. Moyle

Project Budget meeting & BBQ supplies -134.03

Eureka office landscaping -23.91

Eureka office supplies -14.31

Leadership training -26.45

Project Budget meeting & BBQ supplies -80.00
Total Rebecca J. Moyle -278.70
Recology Humboldt County

Eureka office garbage/recycling service -75.27
Total Recology Humboldt County -75.27
Redwood Electronics

Samoa Booster Pump Station Ethernet Radio Modems/PLC systems upgra... -106.58
Total Redwoed Electronics -106.58
Renner Petroleum

cardlock fuel - pumping & control -276.00

cardlock fuel - water quality -276.01

cardlock fuel - maintenance & operations -276.01

cardlock fuel - customer service -276.00
Total Renner Petroleum -1,104.02
RTA Construction, Inc

Ruth Hydro Assessment & Analysis -1,516.00
Total RTA Construction, Inc -1,516.00
Ruth Lake C.S.D.

Boat rental for FERC Part 12 Log Boom Inspection -116.00

Boat rental for Log Boom Inspection -52.00
Total Ruth Lake C.S.D. -167.00
Sheri Woo

expense reimbursement for attending ACWA Conference May 3 - 6, 2016 -884.81
Total Sheri Woo -884.81

-~

Page 5



06/02/16

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Expenses by Vendor Detail

SECTION I PAGE NO, o

May 2016
Memo Amount

Sierra Chemical Company

replenish chlorine -2,386.89
Total Sierra Chemical Company -2,386.89
Sitestar Nationwide Internet

Essex Internet -52.90
Total Sitestar Nationwide Internet -52.90
Staples

Eureka office supplies -115.01
Total Staples -115.01
Steven A. Marshall

Essex office supplies -39.84

mail package to Ruth -56.45

Supplies for Annual Ruth Maintenance -16.47

Employee meeting -22.37

Board of Directors Project Budget meeting -17.98

tarp and bug spray -20.65

vehicle supplies -9.78

ice removal -8.63

Remodel TRF Line Shed 5 -6.80
Total Steven A. Marshall -148.97
Sudden Link

Eureka office Internet -204.95

Essex office Internet -124.95
Total Sudden Link -329.90
Tehama Tire Service

replace trailer tires -506.77
Total Tehama Tire Service -506.77
The Mill Yard

Remodel TRF Line Shed 5 -214.49

Park 1 Picnic Table repair -177.58

Remodel TRF Line Shed 5 -356.25

replace Ruth Hydro 125 VDC power system (Battery Bank) -32.60

shop supplies -62.12
Total The Mill Yard -843.04
The Times-Standard

position advertisement - Maintenanc Mechanic -1,505.36
Total The Times-Standard -1,5605.36
Thrifty Supply

Ruth Annual Maintenance -72.34

Ruth Annual Maintenance -72.35

Replace Essex Eyewash/Shower Station and Drain system -1,794.38

Coliector 1 & 1A Lateral Replacement -4,424.79
Total Thrifty Supply -6,363.86
Times Printing

BlueBook index tabs -485.68
Total Times Printing -485.68
Trinity County Building Department

Plan Review - Ruth Bunkhouse remodel -865.00
Total Trinity County Building Department -865.00
Trinity County General Services

Pickett Peak site lease -250.00
Total Trinity County General Services -250.00

Page 6



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District \’I
06/02/16 Expenses by Vendor Detail SECTION —&“&g PAGENO. } |
May 2016
Memo Amount
Trinity County Solid Waste
Ruth HQ dump fees -40.00
Ruth Hydro dump fees -40.01
Total Trinity County Solid Waste -80.01
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System
Essex office supplies -81.73
Vehicle maintenance tools -20.50
vehicle brake repair -25.91
Paint 2MW Generator Enclosurer & Fuel Tank -162.20
Employee retirement luncheon -342.57
Annual Ruth Maintenance -403.63
Annual Ruth Maintenance -403.63
Remodel TRF Line Shed 5 -30.00
Replace Ruth Hydro 125 VDC Power System ( Battery Bank) -720.04
Network Solutions email hosting -181.92
mailing labels -113.80
Employee and Director jackets -323.81
Total U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System -2,809.74
U.S. Bank Corporate Trust Services
SRF Quarterly Account Maint Fee (January - March 2016) -150.00
Total U.S. Bank Corporate Trust Services -150.00
USTI, Inc
eBill charge Humboldt Bay retail -11.84
eBill charge Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD -13.92
Total USTI, Inc -25.76
Verizon Wireless
Operations 1 -2.46
Superintendent -115.25
Unit 3 -68.82
Electrician -0.22
Operations 2 -0.85
Water Operations Supervisor -49.91
Maintenance Supervisor -44.79
Electrician -10.67
Unit 6 -8.93
Unit 6 -8.94
Assistant Water Operations Supervisor -62.15
Spare Operations -0.22
Total Verizon Wireless -373.21
West Coast Plumbing
Essex bathroom maintenance -9.99
Total West Coast Plumbing -9.99
William B. Newell
expense reimbursement for supplies for Annual Ruth Maintenance work crew -377.84
expense reimbursement for supplies for Annual Ruth Maintenance work crew -377.85
expense reimbursement for supplies for Annual Ruth Maintenance work crew -36.57
expense reimbursement for supplies for Annual Ruth Maintenance work crew -36.58
expense reimbursement for Ruth HQ building/landscaping maintenance -45.94
expense reimbursement for Ruth Hydro landscaping maintenance -35.10
Total William B. Newell -909.88
TOTAL -131,556.70

Page 7



secTIONS ~E paGE NO. |

e e P e ]

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

T Board of Directors
From: John Friedenbach
Date: June 3, 2016

Re: District Auditor - RFP

Last month staff informed the Board that Request For Proposals (RFP) for three fiscal years
(2016 to 2018) of auditing services were sent out. The response deadline was May 27", The six
firms were:

Anderson, Lucas, Sommerville & Borges in Fortuna declined
David L Moonie & Company in Eureka no response
DeMello, McAuley, McReynolds & Holland in Eureka no response
Hunter, Hunter and Hunt in Eureka declined
Jackson & Eklund in McKinleyville proposal
R. J. Ricciardi, Inc. in San Rafael proposal

The Audit Committee will meet on June 3" to review and rank the submitted RFP’s based on
professional qualifications criteria. The criteria categories are:

Responsiveness to scope of services

Experience with auditing services to Special Districts
Experience with Single Audit Act

Qualifications of the firm

Cost

O O 0 O ©

The two responding CPA firms were: Jackson & Eklund (J&E) in Arcata, and R.]. Ricciardi, Inc.
(RJR) in San Rafael. J&E’s prices range from $20,250 to $25,250. Some of their current clients
include: McKinleyville Community Services District; Jacoby Creek County Water District;
Westhaven Community Services District; and the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management
District. RJR’s prices range from $12,605 to $17,405. Some of their current clients include:
Humboldt Community Services District; Clear Creek Community Services District; and the City of
Calistoga. The price paid for our June 30, 2015 audit was $31,000.

Recommendation

At the June 9" Board meeting, the Audit Committee will present its auditor recommendation to
the Board for consideration.



Operations



Memo to: HBMWD Board of Directors SECTION-\-)% PAGE NO."L___

From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent
Date: June 2, 2016
Subject: Essex/Ruth May Operational Report

Ruth Lake, Upper Mad River and Hydro Plant

1. The high flow at Mad River above Ruth Reservoir (Zenia Bridge) during the
month was measured on May 6 at 50 cfs and the low flow was measured on
May 31 at 16 cfs.

2. The conditions at Ruth Lake in May were as follows:

a. The lake level on May 31, 2016 was 2652.30 feet which is:
1. 1.94 feet lower than April 31, 2016
2. 2.31 feet higher than May 31, 2015
3. 0.56 feet below the ten year average
4. 1.70 feet below the spillway

3. Wemeasured 1.11 inches of rain at Ruth Headquarters during the month with a
high reading of 0.31 inches measured on May 8.

4. Ruth hydro power production was 326,400 kWh during the month with 2
shutdowns and 30,799 kW lost production, including a 4 day shutdown for
annual maintenance.

5. The high discharge flow from the lake this month was 171.8 cfs on May 6 and
the low release flow from the lake was 40.3 cfs on May 30.

Winzler Control, TRF and Lower Mad River

6. The river at Winzler Control Center reached a high recorded flow of 651 cfs and
alevel of 23.2 feet on May 1. The low river flow was on May 31 with a flow of
242 cfs and a level of 21.7 feet.

7. The domestic water conditions for May were as follows:
a. The monthly turbidity average was 0.10 NTU, which meets Public Health
Secondary Standards.

b. We metered 262.363 million gallons at an average of 8.463 MGD: note
that the Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD meter has an electrical malfunction and
remains out of service.

c. The maximum metered daily municipal customer use was 9.817 MGD on
May 31.

8. The Turbidity Reduction Facility ran 21 days in May. The conditions were as
follows:
a. Filtered water production was 173.910 million gallons.
b. Average monthly source water turbidity was 0.31 NTU.
¢. Average monthly filtered water turbidity was 0.06 NTU.



10.
.Mayllth

1.1

12,

13

14.

15

16.

1%

18.

SECTION D20~ PAGE NO._0~__

May 2" — May 6" - Maintenance crew left on the 2™ for Ruth to do Annual
Ruth maintenance on the Hydro Plant returning on Friday May 6™.
May 10th-11"™ — Maintenance Department did required 90 day truck inspections

a. Steve and I sat in on a Hazard Communications webinar. This was
regarding the change from the old MSDS sheets (Material Safety Data
Sheet) to the new GHS / SDS (Globally Harmonized System) for hazard
communications and the new (Safety Data Sheet). This is a required
regulatory change in how we label, record and communicate hazardous
materials hazards to employees. We are well on our way to completing
this change.

b. 5 people from Essex attended a Water Symposium class in Fortuna this
class was put on by RCAC.

May 13" - Annual Project Budget Meeting and Board and Employee BBQ at
Essex — I would like to thank all of you that could attend for being there. We
also had a number of employees that work shifts return during their off hours. I
think it is beneficial to get together and share common interests.

May 16™ — The Supervisors and I conducted 5 interviews for the Maintenance
Mechanic position.

May 17" — the Supervisors and I discussed the 5 candidates and decided to hire
Keith Daggs, he has been one of our Maintenance Workers and since he has
worked for the District he has gotten his T-2 and D-2 certifications and has
excelled in the Maintenance Worker position and brings a lot of underground
work and mechanical / maintenance talent to the District. We are now in the
process of hiring someone for the Maintenance worker position.

May 18"

a. Maintenance Supervisor — Ryan Chairez conducted a Traffic Control
safety meeting

b. 1 was on vacation but since I was in the area of Davis, Ca. I attended a
Water Knowledge Seminar at the West Yost Associates office in Davis.
This was a seminar put on by West Yost Associates and Henry Hunt of
Layne. They showcased Sonoma County Water Agency and our District
as being Northern California systems that use Ranney wells, and have well
operated systems.

May 22nd — 26" — Operations Department shut down the TRF for the summer
season.

May 24" — Met with Charles Ahlgren, our new FERC Part 12 Independent
Consultant, and Paul Sorci of Cardno and took them to Ruth to review the Ruth
project before the PFMA meeting on Wednesday.

May 25" — From Essex, Steve, Ryan, Mario, Chris and I attended the FERC
Part 12 PFMA workshop at the Main Office. This was an educational
experience for the Supervisors and Assistant Supervisors to see the detailed
process this is, and stresses the importance of maintenance, record keeping and
being diligent in general dam safety.



SECTION O 0~ PAGE NO._ 2

19. May 26™ — We went to Ruth for the on-site inspection portion of the FERC Part
12 exercise. Since the new FERC Project manager was there he also conducted
the annual FERC project review.



SECTION _:5

(’PAGE NO. 4

Date

Ruth Lake Elevation
.
| S
- ake Elevation 10
Year Avg
2650.0 ij
2645.0 Lake Elevation
2015, ft
2640.0
—|ake Elevation
2635.0 2016, ft
. e S il lway Level
2625.0
2620-0 T T ESEn o T T T T T v T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
STEgiSfEiRsf oo g nde e
E e T T S L ¥ o R e L S « I o O S S o I S N
Date
4000
Flow at Zenia Bridge
3500
= Mad River at
3000 Zenia Br 2015,
cfs
2500
- = Mad River at
‘S Zenia Br 2016,
> 2000
E cfs
'
1500
~——Ten Year Avg
2006 - 2015
1000
500
O L 8 T T T IM T 5 T ¥ T T L T T T T T T T
SEd e gdesshgan ma L g 90 @g
TSNS ReSs YIS E TR 585959389




i
secTION 7 pacE No.__ T

Ruth Rainfall - Water Year 2015-2016

River Level, ft

80
70 / Water Year 14-15
Cumulative
60 —
/ ——Water Year 15-16
50 Cumulative
W
Q
5 40 .
£ w10 Year Cumulative
Average
30
we Historical
20 Cumulative
Average '83-'15
10
0 L T T T T T T T 1
Oct Nov  Dec Jan Feb Mar  Apr May Jun Jul Aug  Sep
35 25000
River Level and Flow
e River Level
30 1 i 2015, ft
- 20000

w——River Level
2016, ft

“ 1 M
™ M J
l - e ~——10 Year Avg

River Level, ft

River Flow, cfs

e 7015 Flow at
10000 299 Bridge, cfs

e 20016 Flow at
299 Bridge, cfs
- 5000
= 10 Year Avg
River Flow, cfs
] T T 1} L} T T L) 0
wm N ™NWwW N M~ s 00N O
ddddaglgdgdadl
M~ I~ o0 © O 4 O o «+H - o~ ™3
— — ~




o e e

PAGE NO. (¢

P
SECTION O U

008961 00t'849 009'T9Z'€ | 0094587 | 9/6'8S8'Y €0E'LYT'S Jagquwiada(
00V '9%T 008'8¥T 008V9LC | 00Z'6/1°C | 9gS'sOr'y 8VL' T8V JaQUIBA0ON
008871 00881 00v‘8T9°C | 00¥'0£0C | 9¥9'¥ST'V T6T'SHS'y 19q0120
0007¥T 0001 009°69%'C | 009'T88'T | 98¥'8I6'E 6825y Jaquiaydas
00Z'6ET 008'8#T 009'GZEC | 009LEL'T | 909669 T8Z'IS6'E 1sn3ny
00ZTST 008'8SY1 007'98T‘Z | 008'88S'T | 0ZL'T6t'S 750'889°¢ Ainr
009'T¥T 008'8VT 00Z'GE0‘C | 0000OFY'T | 009'60£'S LTT'I8Y'E aunf
00t'9zE 009'€ST 00266T 00005 009'¢68‘T | 00Z'T6Z'T | OFP'TE0'E 0L6'961°¢ Aen
009°2€S 009°S0T 002’655 009°€TZ'E 000°0%£L‘T | 000'T60'T | 0Z6°€9S'C PZOTEL'T [udy
00¥'056 002°TLZ 00v'28Y 000'9£9°C 00t'v7€9°'T 008'ZES 09.°LE6'T S01'8£0°C yale
008078 000°0ZL 0 009'SZL'T 00Z°€9¢'T 00%‘0S ovz'90Z't ESTLYT'T Asenigaqg
008'v706 00Z‘c¥9 00%'0S 00806 00Z'ct9 00¥‘0s ovt68S 765765 Asenuer
JAIBINWND | dAIEINWNY | aAlleINWND
9107 S10T 10T ) . aAneINWND | aAlIRINWND
19102 'ST0T 10T . )
uo13INpPoid uolnpold uolNpPoId :a8elany :93elany
0J4pAH 0J4pAH 04pAH toRINpold | UoHnpald | uohanpold 189, uay J140351H
0JpAH QUpAH 0JpAH ' ’

YIUOIAl J2d AAY :uoIdNpoUd 0JpAH Yiny




SECTION 321 PAGE NO

Confidential: Documents submitted under General Order 66-C, §§2.8 and PU Code §583

-

Pacific Gas and
: Electric Company”

) 4
Qa

Purchase / Sales Invoice
Invoice Number: 68862

Delivery Period Start:04/01/2016
Delivery Period End: 04/30/2016
Invoice Date: 05/19/2016

Due Date: 05/27/2016

Log Number: 19H051
Account Code: 2320900
Meter Channel: LI600B
Contract Start: 04/10/1983

From:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company
77 Beale Street

San Francisco, CA 94105

Contract Manager: Nancy Breckenridge
Phone: 415-973-4092
Email: NJB6@pge.com

Settlement Analyst: Kimberly Song
Phone: 415-973-5815

Fax: 415-973-9505

Email: K5SW@pge.com

To:

HUMBOLDT BAY MWD
P. 0. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95501

Project Name: HUMBOLDT BAY MWD
Payment Method: CHECK
Vendor Number: 1024538

Contact: Steve Marshall
Phone: 707-822-2918
Fax:

Email: ops@hbmwd.com

Payment Name Quantity Unit Amount
Energy Payment 04/01/2016 - 04/30/2016 523.572 MWh $-11,263.51
As-Delivered Capacity Payment 433.783 MWh $-1,254.49

Net Total $-12,518.00

Total Amount Due to HUMBOLDT BAY MWD on Due Date: 05/27/2016

UsD $ 12,518.00

19H051 { HUMBOLDT BAY MWD | 68862

Page 1 of 3




SECTION 32D _pace NO._% _

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Ruth Hydro Production Report - Since June 1983

Total Kwh Production for Period Average Monthly

Production Ending 4/30/2016 Kwh Production
On Peak 11,313,641 28,715
Part Peak 56,182,253 192,268 142,595
Off Peak 80,494,157 241,516 204,300
Super Off Peak 25,651,756 89,789 65,106
Grand Total 173,641,807 523,573 440,715

Grand Total Revenues $8,531,283.65

No. of Months of Operation 394

Average $/Kwh $0.0491



SECTIOND 2 1) PAGE NO. 7

UORINPOL Ao WALING s T o S ——

yjuopy
sunp Aely Judy yolel  Alenugeq Alenuer Joquiaos(] JOGLUBAON l2qojo Jequeldag  isnbny Anp
w e
000'000°L
w, 0000002
| ‘000'c 2
000°000'€E 2
b o
—+ 000000t
HMM 860°962°S
. ) jejo] abesaAy |enuuy [eos110)SIH
000°000'S
|
|
_
| SYDUREp RS I S N | ST b e > L S OD0,000.@

SINOH 11eMO|IY U] ejeq ||V
e yiny ® jue|d 214309|90.pAH UIjoSSON)
uoioNpo.id aAle|NWNY [N}y "SA [ESLI0}SIH



secTion I 20 paceno. Y

9l0¢/6L/S

(9102-1102) poid 9u128I3 0UpAH\POId CIpAHIsUOREIadOND

Yiuo
O = e
2 © o L 2> & |
F F & F o 3 A NS m
e TP LR SR U DA S N S0 OGN S S SUN N S W S naied;....lr.u.“t..l_.x“)nl e O
QT O I!.l‘lrtul-.-ln.ﬁ"ﬂlih-l:t ey ig L4133 I FEFTFT ST 2 FT P L o
it espdcuu!uﬁm:.(..ha?w g H;L“....h-[ds% %1&'.11%-44.“@4@.1:1!4.“6 .-I\.DJ“MIE‘.(,‘ i A OOO\ODN
STRT *anwe . \ ; A\
R > S f. i
ressns g i - A\ . . . OO\DD._N =
vIoz o 4 3 0 2
£107 === Fr ! 3
— -~ R S 000009 2
ZT0T +»veee R -~ 2
. = Ty ‘ m
TI0T = = —— —~ R 000°008 2
: S
— — - 000'000°T =
s
.lu-m
: - ~L 0000021
STOZ-600Z (HMM) uonanpoud oipAH AjyauoN :amNgH
105'622°¢ 18L'S0E‘E 20v'SY8'Z L9Z'8zZ'y LL9°2LS'Y 09E'VBL'S lenuuy [ejo]
GL6'0LS €28°'G99 9€6°091 99.'€26 9€9'6G 1 JaquaosaQ
961 'SPl 9L8'gyl G61°LG1 89/'z8¢ L08'9z2 laquianon
v.iG'ivl SLL'8yl ZL8'8LL 90.'6.1 000'6t¢ 18q0j0Q
891'Gy| 020'Si7L 89/'691 058'LylL €9v'vee laquisidas
L16'0V1 0zz'erl 821891 vZy'LSl 2.8'961 Jsnbny
665051 £0G'671 SLL'YIL 120'98| 81161 Ainp
gso'evl 0£9'LL ¥702G 1 18L'8EL 00S‘€19 aunp
£08°1LS1 896'96 | G6.°ZS| 888'€SS 92022 Aep
£15'€TS 852'901 £68'S1S |eovere ZSv'ze8 281298 ludy
052°056 §6S°19Z Z18'L0S 1Z£'S09 1SE'0LY 96£'898 yolep
§.5'8v8 0L1'69. 0 GS0'ELL 868°06€ Gge'eY.L Arenigag
£01°206 119'2€9 200'Ly v2.'296 00£°652 G68'LEL Aenuep
9102 SL0Z 102 €102 zZLoz LL0Z Yuo

9102 - LLOZAD 10} (HMM) uol3onpoud 21393]3 0apAH Ajyjuop
PpuysIq 19jep edoiunpy Aeg jpjoquiny




ACWA



“EATION H%@PAGE NO:_/__,__._

Pre mtg ACWA phone call, June 1, 2016, 1:30pm

Scanned/reviewed 147-page June ACWA Bd packet.
Members commended Tim Quinn for a good job.

Re: emergency regulations. Supply reliability is a message that should come out of ACWA, and
State Board may not get that ACWA agencies are still conserving. At SWRCB meeting, Board
and staff were concerned about whether agencies will still conserve. Jennifer thinks the story
been controlled by SWRCB not ACWA, and maybe not clear that we are committed to
conservation. Question raised as to what portion of agencies who will self-certify? | said
HBMWD will likely self-certify. Sonoma and Marin will too.

R1 events. Tour at Lake Mendocino then following Russian River. Aug 5th, Looking into tour
logistics now. Add to call agenda on Monday. Registration fee?

June 6™, post-mtg ACWA call.



RCEA, RREDC, LAFCO



secToN KA _paceNo. L
Redwood Coast Energy Authority

633 3™ Street, Eureka, CA 95501
Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-RCEA  Fax: (707) 269-1777
E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.orq  Web: www.redwoodenergy.org

MEETING AGENDA
Redwood Coast Energy Resource Center May 16, 2016
633 3™ Street, Eureka, CA 95501 Monday, 3:15 p.m.

Redwood Coast Energy Authority will accommodate those with special needs. Arrangements for people with
disabilities who attend RCEA meetings can be made in advance by contacting Katie Koscielak at 269-1700 by
noon the day of the meeting.

. ROLL CALL
Il. REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES
lll. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This time is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.
At the conclusion of all oral & written communications, the Board may respond to statements. Any request that
requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board and are enacted on one motion.
There is no separate discussion of any of these items. If discussion is required, that item is removed from the
Consent Calendar and considered separately. At the end of the reading of the Consent Calendar, Board members or
members of the public can request that an item be removed for separate discussion.

A. Approve Minutes of April 18, 2016 Board Meeting.
B. Approve attached Warrants.

C. Accept attached Financial Reports.

D.

Approve 2016-2021 Contract for Legal Services with RCEA General Counsel
Nancy Diamond.

V. REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Iltems removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard under this section.

VI.NEW BUSINESS
A. Community Choice Aggregation
o Community engagement subcommittee report
Discuss and consider adoption of Public Engagement Strategy Guidelines.

e CCA launch updated timeline.

» Informational presentation: technical analysis overview and status update — Jeff
Fuller, TEA.

B. CA Energy Commission grant opportunity GFO-15-603: DC Fast Chargers for
California’s Interregional Corridors

Approve partnering with HSU Schatz Energy Research and others on a response
to GFO-15-603 to fund EV charging along the 101 corridor.

VII. ADJOURNMENT




SECTION_AY __ PAGENO. 9= __

RCEA PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY GUIDELINES
May 2016

Outlined below are the purpose, goals, and principles for RCEA’s Public Engagement Strategy. This
document is focused on RCEA’s CCA program, but can be applied more broadly to RCEA’s other efforts

as well.

Purpose and Goals

The Purposes of RCEA’s public engagement efforts are to:

1.

ol WM

Provide clarity to the public and the Board on the CCA program
a. Provide education to increase understanding and awareness of the CCA program
b. Build trust and confidence in the program with the pubic

Create inclusion for members of the public so they are—and feel—heard and understood.

Build community support for the CCA program

Provide input to the Board and staff before decisions are made

Engage a broad diversity of community stakeholders

Ensure that RCEA/CCA decisions are made in alignment with explicitly stated criteria

The Goals and desired outcomes for RCEA’s public engagement are:

1. Averylow CCA opt-out rate (opt-out < 10%)
2. Community enthusiasm and support for CCA decisions
3. High participation in the public engagement process
4. Recognition of RCEA’s desire for a high standard for public engagement
a. Establish ongoing processes, not just engagement on initial launch decisions
Principles

Accountability and Transparency: RCEA will enable the public to participate in decision-making
processes by providing clear information on the issues, the ways to participate, and how their
participation contributes to the decision.

Fairness and Respect: RCEA will maintain a safe environment that cultivates and supports
respectful public engagement.

Accessibility: RCEA will respect and encourage participation by providing ample public notice of
opportunities, resources, and accommodations that enable all to participate.

Predictability and Consistency: RCEA will prepare the public to participate by providing meeting
agendas, discussion guidelines, notes, and information on next steps.

Efficient Use of Resources: RCEA will balance its commitment to provide ample opportunities
for public involvement with its commitment to delivering government services efficiently and
using RCEA resources wisely to make effective forward progress on RCEA’s goals.

Evaluation: RCEA will monitor and evaluate its public participation efforts to identify and act on
opportunities to improve its processes.



section_ A4 paceNo. D

e e )

Initial Strategies for Public Engagement and Board Decision-making Support:

e Form expert advisory groups/committees and integrate their knowledge into policies and
procedures:
o Technical Advisory Group
= Established fall 2015 (will confirm continued participation):
e Karen Diemer, City Manager, City of Arcata
e Paul Helliker, General Manager, Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
e James Zoellick, Senior Research Engineer, Schatz Energy Research Center
e Juliette Bohn, Principal, IPB Consulting
Arne Jacobson, Director, Schatz Energy Research Center
Carol Rische, General Manager, retired, HBMWD
Jana Ganion, Energy Director, Blue Lake Rancheria
David Carter, Senior Research Engineer, Schatz Energy Research Center
Gwelen Paliaga, Technical Director, Building Science Research & Emerging
Solutions, TRC

o Environmental Review Group
®=  Inaugural members:
e Natalynne Delapp, Executive Director, EPIC
e Stephen Kullmann, Environmental Director, Wiyot Tribe
Jen Kalt, Director, Humboldt Baykeeper
Sharon Kramer, Principal, HT Harvey & Associates

L ]

o Economic Decision Support
= Requesting the existing Prosperity! Network economic development working group
(which meets monthly) provide input on economic considerations.

e Organize participatory, workshop-style Special RCEA Board Meetings for education, input, and
feedback
o Board will need to be actively engaged in these
o Approximately once a quarter and/or at key decision points — 2 planned for remainder of
2016 (see schedule).
o Also create complimentary mechanisms for getting public engagement, input, and feedback
online and via other non-meeting opportunities

® Create Board CCA background binders and resources
o Draft FAQs and talking points for Board and advisory committee members

e (Create a Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC)
o Will launch with a group of nine members with each RCEA Board member nominating an
individual for the group.

o Considerations to keep in mind when choosing a CAC member:
= |sconnected to multiple groups and constituencies across sectors.
= |snot a single-issue person, is engaged in or knowledgeable about a number of

issues.

= Issomewhat process savvy, has been involved in other participatory processes.



SECTION_A 4 caceno &

Fp— P e o

= Able to think about the big picture and the inter-relationships among multiple
components/issues.
= Has credibility across various sectors.
® Isinterested in piloting new, more effective ways to conduct public process.
= Has a sense of urgency with regard to the issue.
= Eagerand able to collaborate with others in the process.
o CAC members are expected to:
=  Work with facilitator/consultant to help plan and lead community workshops
® Assist in summarizing and synthesizing input from community workshops
= Present key messages from community workshops to RCEA Board of Directors
® Encourage other stakeholders to participate in community workshops
= Participate in 2 community workshop-style Special RCEA Board Meetings, duration
2 to 2.5 hours, held in July and September 2016
® Participate in up to 6 meetings, two held before each workshop meeting and one
after each workshop meeting, duration of each meeting 2 to 2.5 hours.
o Based on feedback from community workshops, refine and modify the role and future role
and process for the CAC.

Schedule of 2016 RCEA Regular Business Meetings, Special Meetings, and key decision points.

i:::t; (;ESA Board Key meeting content and decision points

Mon., June 20" RCEA FY16-17 Budget; appoint CAC members; finalize contracts with

Regular Meeting TEA/Noble/LEAN; RCEA Board reviews draft technical study and provides
Board input on technical study assumptions and parameters

Mon., July 18" Review Technical Study feasibility and supply scenarios; make decision

Regular Meeting whether to move forward with CCA launch phase 2

Thurs., July 28" Evening community workshop and public engagement meeting: revisit

(proposed day) RePower goals and criteria, provide input on Technical Study scenarios

Special Meeting

Mon., August 15" Select the Technical Study scenario that will inform the Implementation Plan

Regular Meeting

Mon., September 12" Evening community workshop and public engagement meeting: review
{proposed day) and provide input on Implementation Plan
Special Meeting

Mon., September 19" September Regular meeting: review Draft Implementation Plan
Regular Meeting

Mon., October 17" October Regular meeting: approve Final Implementation Plan for submittal
Regular Meeting to CPUC
Mon., Nov. 14™ Finalize supply contracts, rate setting.

Mon., December 19"
Regular Meetings

January/February 2017 | Rates set, customer notification begins




SECTION __)f\_i PAGE NO.___?___

The two key documents related to the above timeline are a Technical Study and an Implementation
Plan:

Technical Study
The Technical Study will provide a clear assessment of the overall feasibility of its CCA program as it
relates to meeting key goals, such as environmental benefits and cost competitiveness. The study will
also provide multiple supply scenarios and information, such as:

¢ how the scenarios compare to PG&E in terms of greenhouse gas content

e an estimate of the percentage of renewable energy content that can be procured from locally-

generated electricity

® an evaluation of the resulting economic/job impacts of local project development, and

e potential rate savings of each scenario compared to PG&E over the forecast period.
The goal is to be able to summarize in straightforward terms the results and options in a way that all
stakeholders can understand.

Implementation Plan
The Implementation Plan is a CPUC requirement that describes the main aspects of the CCA plan of
operations. It must be certified by the CPUC (within 90 days of submission) before the CCA can begin
serving customers. The Plan will be drafted in accordance with all CPUC requirements and established
best practices. The Implementation Plan will include the following:

e Communities participating in the program

e Organizational structure of the program, its operations and funding

e Rate setting and other costs to participants

e Disclosure and due process in setting rates and allocating costs among participants

e Methods for entering and terminating agreements with other entities

e Participant rights and responsibilities

¢ Termination of the program

e Description of initial power supply mix and sources at launch, as well as power procurement

plans and strategy going forward into the future



secnow-h.‘ft, PAGENO.1Z_ _

Redwood Region
Economic Development
Commission

220 E StreREBWOIOD REGION' ECOROMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISEIONH +5-9652
Regular meeting of the Board of Directors
At the Prosperity Center 520 E Street, Eureka, CA .
May 23, 2016 at 6:30 pm
AGENDA

L Call to Order & Flag Salute

. Approval of Agenda and Minutes
A. Approval of Agenda for May 23, 2016
B. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors for April 25, 2016

Ii. Public Input — for non-agenda items

v, Program - Malinda Matson, Economic Development Representative for Northern and Coastal
California, Economic Development Administration, will provide updatgs on EDA programs

V. Consent Calendar
A." Acceptance of Agency-wide Financial Report: April 30, 2016

VI.  Reports — No Action Required
A. Loan Portfolio Reports: April 30, 2016
B. Executive Director’s Report

Vil. © Old Business

VIIl.  New Business
A. Approval of Renewal of Lease with Ronald Pileggi for 520 and 530 E Streets
B. Approval of memorandum of Understanding with the County of Humboldt for Headwaters
Participation in New EDA Recapitalization Grant .

IX. Member Reports
A. - Rio Dell
B. Eureka

X. Agenda/Program Requests for future Board of Directors Meetings-
Xl.  Adjourn

The Redwood Region Economic Development Commission will, on request, make agendas available in appropriate
alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals -
who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order
to participate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at (707) 445-9651. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the Commission to make reasonable arrangements for accommodations.

MEMEBER AGENCIES

City of Arcata » City of Blue Lake = City of Eureka - City of Ferndale » Cily of Fortuna » City ol Rig Dell » City of Trinidad
Courity of Humboldt » Humholdt Bay Harhor, Recreation and Conservation District = Humboldt Bay Munic{p?l Waler District
Humboldt Community Services Disirict » Manila Comimunily Services Districl » MecKinleyviile Cammuuitﬁ Servicas District

Orick Commurity Services Districl » Redwosads Community College District's Hoopa Valiey Tribe

Willow Creek Community Services District . Orleans Communily Services District . Redway Community Services Dislricl



